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Merix Corporation is a leading global
manufacturer of technologically advanced
printed circuit boards, with facilities in
North America and Asia. Our global
manufacturing footprint allows us to
provide complete, end-to-end solutions
of complex, multi-layer PCBs—from
quick-turn prototype to pre-production
through volume production. We provide
our products to original equipment
manufacturers and their electronic
manufacturing service providers across

a diverse set of vertical market segments.




To our Shareholders, Customers, Suppliers, and Friends:

I am pleased to report that 2006 was a year of transformation,
marking the beginning of a new era for Merix Corporation. We
extended our global footprint with the September 2005
acquisition of Eastern Pacific Circuits Ltd, headquartered in
Hong Kong, adding two mutlti-layer facilities in Mainland China
[Huizhou and Huiyang), and one in Hong Kong. With this move,
we have added significant high-volume, lower-cost capacity,
dramatically diversified our customer base, including an entrée
into the automotive market, and created a migration path to
lower-cost production for our customers.

In addition, we have been executing our strategy to shift our
mix to include an increased tevel of higher-margin quick-turn
services. Merix is now a leading provider of quick-turn and
prototyping services in North America. We now support over
500 quick-turn customers and have enhanced our capability in
ultra quick-turns of five days or less. Our North America
operations also provide Merix with significant expertise and
certification in U.S. defense and military production.

We achieved record sales of $309.0 million in the recently ended
fiscal year, up 65% from last year. Although the majority of that
increase was the result of the Asian and San Jose acquisitions,
we also realized organic revenue growth of approximately 13%
over the prior year. in addition, we returned to profitability this
year. As we enter fiscal 2007, we are focused on improving

our operations with the goal of achieving sustained and
increasing profitability,

Today, Merix has a robust end-to-end offering in the high
technology PCB industry. Our manufacturing strategy creates
cross-selling opportunities, and extends our ability to move
production where it best fits our capabilities and our customers’
needs. In our San Jose facility, we offer ultra quick-turns across
the spectrum of technological capability, which also generates
new volume opportunities for our operations in Oregon and
Asia. In our Oregon facilities, our focus is on providing the
highest technology capability, delivering quick-turn and
low-volume pre-production runs, combined with advanced
technology valume business that includes HDI {High Density
Interconnect) and advanced materials manufacturing.

In Asia we provide moderate to advanced technology with
lower-cost manufacturing capability for our high-volume
customers. This manufacturing synergy, and our reputation for
quality and high reliability, allows us to maintain our leadership
in advanced technology across our blue-chip customer base.

Our global manufacturing foctprint, advanced technology,
and continued commitment t3 quality and reliability allow us
to provide a complete PCB sclution to our customers—from
prototype to volume manufacturing—across the product
lifecycle. | believe that through our dedicated employees
worldwide, this business model will allow us to expand the
base of customers we serve, and better position Merix for
future growth.

Qur plans for growth in fiscal 2007 are based upon:

- Enhanced technology leadership

- Our goal to be the #1 quick-turn manufacturer globally

- Increased technology capabilities in Asia

- Cross-selling enhanced services and capabilities to
our customers

We believe we have laid a foundation that, with superior
execution, will enable the company to experience sustained
and profitable growth. We witl continue to focus on our
customers, expand our technology capabilities, maintain
integrity in our business practices and relationships, and
align our business model to enhance shareholder value.

We have made great strides this year in transforming our

business. On behalf of all Marix employees worldwide, we
thank you for supporting our vision.

A

Mark R. Hollinger
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President

Merix Annual Report

i



Transforming Acquisitions

By integrating new facilities acquired in North America and Asia, Merix has advanced its manufacturing
strategy and transformed its business into a global provider of complete end-to-end PCB solutions—from
quick-turn to prototype to full lead-time volume production.

\ Our December 2004 acquisition of Merix San Jose in California significantly bolstered our ultra quick-turn
7 and prototype capabilities. This facility, combined with our Oregon operations, places Merix as one of the
teading quick-turn providers in North America. With a growing customer base, we can now offer:

- Competitive services in both time critical (24 hours and up) and advanced technology (2 - 40 layers)
- Extensive tooling capacity to support over 200 new part numbers per week

The September 2005 acquisition of facilities in Asia provides Merix with a global manufacturing footprint,
adds significant capacity in a lower-cost geographic region and, places Merix as a top 30 PCB manufacturer
worldwide!'l. Merix Asia adds over 250 new customers, including entry into the automotive industry, and
creates a migration path to lower-cost production for our existing customers.

(1) Per N.T. Information Ltd.

Merix - Hong Kong [Asia HQ)
- Factory area: 384,000 sq. ft.

Merix - Forest Grove, OR {Global HQ) - Prototype through volume production

- Fac_tory area: 248,000 sq. ft. ) - RF/Microwave and backpanels

- Quick-turn and volume production - 2-18 layers with up to 32-layer backpanel capability
i - Advanced technology, higher tayer counts, HDI

- 2-40 layers

Merix - Woed Village, OR
: - Factory area: 90,000 sq. ft.
! - Volume for high layer count digital
and RF/Microwave products
- Supporting Farest Grove
- 16-32 layers

Merix - San Jose, CA
i - Factory area: 40,000 sq. ft.
| - Quick-turn and prototype, 24-72 hour turns
- Military certified j

- 2-30 layers

Merix - Huiyang, China

- Factory area: 250,000 sq. ft.
- Volume production

< 4-14 layers

Merix - Huizhou, China
- Factory area: 135,000 sq. ft.

® - Merix manufacturing facility - Automotive market focus
. . - 2-6 layers
# - Sales/Customer Service offices

In addition, we work with over 35 manufacturers’ reps

across the globe that support our product offerings.
E.ﬂ
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Diversification

Diversification: New Customers and End-markets

Merix' global footprint has added significant manufacturing capacity and capabilities,
expanding its offerings to engage a larger and more diverse customer base. Through our
acquisitions in Asia and the U.S., we have added over 750 new customers, and expanded
services into new vertical market segments.

As a recognized leader in PCB fabrication, our expertise can now be used to serve an
even broader range of products throughout their entire product lifecycle.

EXPANDING CUSTOMER BASE AND END-MARKETS

FY2004  --oomeeeeessmmmnonooeoeeeea ——0>  FY2006

TEST &
MEASUREMENT
6%

( COMMUNICATIONS 82%) C AUTOMOTIVE 13% ) CCOMMUNICATIONS 52%)

HIGH-END
COMPUTING

TEST &
MEASUREMENT
&%

*OTHER 5%

HIGH-END
COMPUTING
9%

225 CUSTOMERS 1,000 CUSTOMERS
o TOP 5 CUSTOMERS: 68% > TOP 5 CUSTOMERS:  39%
¢ ANNUAL REVENUE:  $156 MILLION o ANNUAL REVENUE:  $309 MILLION

* Other includes medical, industrial, military defense, aviation and aerospace, EMS!, and other.
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Five-Year Selected Financial Highlights

(

Consolidated Statemen

t of Operations Data
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Amounts in mittions

Fiscal Year FY 2006 FY 2005 FY 2004 FY 2003 FY 2002
Net Sales $309.0 $187.0 $156.4 $94.6 $86.5
Operating Income [loss) $9.9 ($2.8) $1.2 ($21.9] ($17.4)
Net Income (loss) $1.4 {$2.6) $0 1$30.1) ($9.6)
Diluted Net Income (loss)
Per Share $0.07 $0.14) %0 ($2.07) ($0.68)
\_ Amounts in millions, except per share data
Net Sales and EBITDA
Fiscal Year FY2006  FY2005  FY2004  FY2003  FY 2002 C1i - Net Sales
Net Sales $309.0 $187.0 $156.4  $94.4 $86.5
EBITDA ™ $32.9 $12.4 $115 1$12.2)  1$75) -0 -EBITDA L
Net Sales
FY 2006 O $utd | $309.0
FY 2005 — ) $12.4 $187.0
FY 2004 —0 $11.5 $156.4
FY 2003 {$12.2} O————— $94.6
FY 2002 1$7.5) O——— $86.5
{$15) $0 $15 $30 EBITDA
$0 $50 $100 $150 $200 $250 $300 Net Sales
1] Adjusted for one-time items
Amounts in millions
Net Sales and Gross Margin
Fiscal Year FY2006  FY2005  FY2004  FY2003  FY 2002 LT NetSates
Net Sales $309.0 $187.0 $156.4  $9L.4 $86.5 ,
Gross Margin % 18% 13% 13% 3% 1% -O - Gross Margin %
Net Sales
!
| FY 2006 O i8% } $309.0
FY 2005 O 13% $187.0
FY 2004 O 13% $156.4
FY 2003 C— (-3%) $94.6
FY 2002 O- [-1%) $86.5
(-5%) 0% 5% 10% 15% 20% Gross Margin
$0 $50 $100 $150 $200 $250 $300 Net Sales
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Consolidated Balance Sheet Data
Fiscal Year FY 2006 FY 2005 FY 2004 FY 2003 " FY 2002
Cash & Short-term (nvestments $31.1 $77.7 $124.5 $44.0 $51.9
Working Capital $59.5 $99.5 $138.8 $51.9 $59.4
Total Assets $378.9 $253.9 $250.2 $141.6 $161.2
Long-term Debt $98.7 $27.0 $25.0 $25.0 $16.0
Total Shareholders’ Equity $202.1 $198.0 $198.4 $104.4 $132.8

_ Amounts in millions, except per share data Y,

Cash Flow from Operaticns

Fiscal Year FY 2004 FY 2005 FY 2004 FY 2003 FY 2002 (]
[Cash Flow $16.0 $9.8 $1.9 ($10.7)  $2.7 ' [ - Cash Flow ]
) Cash Flow
FY 2006 [ ] w60
FY 2005 $9.8
FY 2004 $1.9
© FY 2003 ($10.7)
FY 2002 $2.7
($9) ($6) ($3) $0 $3 $4 $9 $12 $15
Amounts in millions
Capital Expenditures
fiscal Year FY2006  FY2005 FY2004 FY2003 FY2002 j F_;I - Capital ]
Capital Expenditures  $7.2 $15.8 $13.7 $5.2 $16.8 —  Expenditures
Capital
Expenditures
FY 2005 | $7.2
FY 2005 $15.8
FY 2004 ‘ $13.7
FY 2003 $5.2
FY 2002 | $168
$0 $2.0 $4.0 $6.0 $8.0 $10.0 $12.0 $14.0 $16.0

Ameunts in millions
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Merix Advantage: Seamless Global PCB Manufacturing

Our global manufacturing footprint allows us to provide a unique offering of end-to-end
PCB solutions across the entire product lifecycle. We ofter ultra quick-turn and prototype
support across a spectrum of technological capabilities. As a customer moves into pre-
production and ramps to volume, we can seamlessly transfer the toolset and design

file to the next phase.

Merix Lifecycle
SEAMLESS MANUFACTURING - PROTOTYPE THROUGH PRODUCTION

PRODUCT LIFECYCLE PHASES

1 Common Tooling, Consistent Materials and Process Definition
f"""'; Field Application Engineering Support § """" M
L—( QUICK-TURN PROTOTYPE PRE-PROBUCTION RAMP VOLUME PRODUCTION j——
& —~ ¢ -
, . e : ‘
Quantity - - ----4 30 Units /7 Days or Less b e R R LEE TR PR P 4 2000 Units/Wk / Full Lead-time }----- nemes
Lead-time - ‘
ADVANCED TECHNOLOGY
Velocity PCB Solutions Global Manufacturing Footprint
o Ultra-fast turn times {24 hours and up) ¢ High density interconnects, advanced materials
* Highest service, quality and reliability ¢ RF/Microwave applications
* Advanced technology (2 - 40 layers) * Thermal management solutions
« Design assistance and engineering support * Design for manufacturability, long-term reliability
* Oversized backpanels

" oo
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Cross-Selling Opportunities

Merix’ global manufacturing strategy creates unigque customer business solutions and cross-selling
opportunities. Merix San Jose offers ultra quick-turns across a spectrum of technological
capabilities, which generates new volume opportunities in Oregon and Asia. Merix Oregon focuses
on the highest technology (HD! and advanced materials manufacturing], and delivers quick-turn and
tower-volume pre-production runs and advanced technology volume business. Merix Asia provides
moderate to advanced technology, and lower-cost manufacturing solutions for volume customers.
Our goal is to migrate production between our facilities to best serve our customers’ needs. This
strengthens our position with customers as a single, seamless PGB provider, increases the ease of
doing business with Merix, and allows us to maximize the capacity of all our locations.

ADVANCED TECHNOLOGY
VYOLUME BUSINESS

CProvide QTA for Volume Customers)

USE QTA CAPABILITES TO GENERATE PROVIDE L OWER-COST, MODERATE
NEW OPPORTUNITIES FOR TO HIGH TECHNOLOGY SCLUTIONS

OREGON AND ASIA FOR VOLUME CUSTOMERS

Competitive Advantage

Merix’ comprehensive one-company solution for prototype through off-shore volume production
fills a much needed void in our industry. With our North America based factories providing
quick-turn and prototype manufacturing and our worldwide network of field application engineers
engaging during the design phase, Merix is able to provide a fully engineered first time build that
can then be replicated in our lower-cost facilities in Asia. This combined with our ability to respond
to our customers globally on a real time basis gives us an advantage in speed, engineering support,
and consistent manufacturing practices worldwide. Through our facilities in Hong Kong and Chira
we now also have direct access to the emerging and rapidly growing Asian markets. These factors
combine to provide an opportunity, with superior execution, to achieve higher profits and growing
market share. ‘
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Mark R. Hollinger
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer & President

Mark has been Chairman since September 2001
and served as Chief Executive Officer since
1999. He joined Merix in September 1997 as
Senior Vice President of Operations and served
as the Chief Operating Officer from August 1998
to September 1999.

Daniel T. Olson
SVP & Chief Executive Officer of Merix Asia

Dan has served as Senior Vice President and
CEO of Asian Operations since August 2005.
He served as Vice President, Sales and
Marketing from October 1999 until July 2003
when he was promoted to Senior Vice
President, Sales and Marketing.

Kelly E. Lang
VP Finance

Kelly joined Merix in July 2006, coming from
Schnitzer Steel Industries, Inc. where he was
VP for Capital Investment and Business
Integration. Kelly has over 20 years’
experience including executive leadership

of global financial organizations.

Deborah E. Burke
VP Human Resources

Debbie joined Merix in September 2003 with
many years of valuable experience, having
worked at Intel in Portland, as well as Israel
and Malaysia, and most recently as VP of
Human Resources at Unicru.

Chris L. Remy
VP Global Supply Chain & IT

Chris joined Merix in February 2006. He
came to Merix from Accenture LTD. where
he led the Electronics and High Technology
Supply Chain Management practice in North
America. Chris’ career experience began
with Maersk Lines.

R. Steven Robinson
SVP North America Operations

Steve has been responsible for North America
operations since May 2005 and served as
President of Merix San Jose since December
2004 upon its acquisition by Merix. Prior to the
acquisition, he was President of Data Circuits
from June 2000.

Thomas R. Ingham
VP Sales & Marketing

Tom has served as Vice President of Sales
and Marketing of Merix since August 2005.
He joined Merix in February 2005 as Director
of Quick-Turn Sales. Tom has over 25 years’
experience including over eight years at
Dynamic Details, Inc.

Stephen M. Going
VP General Counsel & Secretary

Steve joined Merix in September 2005. From
March 2002 to June 2004, he served as Vice
President and General Counsel of Merant plc.
Prior to joining Merant, Steve was a Partner in
the Portland, Oregon office of Perkins

Coie LLP.

Lynda C. Ramsey
VP Treasurer & Investor Relations

Lynda has served as Vice President, Treasurer
since October 2005 and served as Corporate
Controller from January 2001 to January
200é. Lynda came to Merix with over 20 years
of financial management experience, most
recently with Nacco Industries.
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" viii Merix Annual Report



UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006
OR

[ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SIECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

Commission file number 0-23818

MERIX CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Oregon 93.1135197
{State or other jurisdiction of (LR.3. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)
1521 Poplar Lane, Forest Grove, Oregon 97116
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(503) 359-9300

(Registrant’s telephone number)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock, no par value Nasdag Global Market
Series A Preferred Stock Purchase Rights Nasdaq Global Market

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
None

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 155(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to
the filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes No []

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K.is not contained herein, and will not be contained
to the best of the registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by refercnce in Part III of this Form 10-K or
in any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of
“accelerated filer” and “large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one).

Large accelerated filer [ ]  Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer []
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes [] No
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes [] No
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes [] No

The aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates computed by reference to the last sales price as
reported by the Nasdaq Global Market as of the last business day of the registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter (November 26,
2005) was $124,820,417. For the purposes of this computation, only executive officers and directors of the registrant have been deemed affiliates.
However, this shall not be deemed an admission that such persons are affiliates or an assertion that there may not be other persons who may be
deemed to be affiliates of the registrant.

The number of shares of the Registrant’s Common Stock outstanding as of August 1, 2006 was 20,026,890 shares.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s proxy statement in connection with its 2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders are incorporated by reference into Part
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PARTI
A Warning About Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. All statements, other than statements of historical fact, including statements regarding
industry prospects and future results of operations or financial position, made in this Annual Report are forward-
looking. We use words such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “expects,” “future” and “intends” and other similar
expressions to identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements reflect management’s current
expectations, plans or projections and are inherently uncertain. Actual results could differ materially from
management’s expectations, plans or projections. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these
Sforward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this report. Certain risks and uncertainties that
could cause our actual results to differ significantly from management’s expectations, plans and projections are
described in Item 1A, “Risk Factors” under the subheading “Risk Factors Affecting Business and Results of
Operations.” This section, along with other sections of this Annual Report, describes some, but not all, of the
factors that could cause actual results to differ significantly from management’s expectations, plans and
projections. We do not intend to publicly release any revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect
events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. Readers are
urged, however, to review the factors set forth in reports that we file from time to time with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Recent Developments

The Company filed a Notification of Late Filing on Form 12b-25 with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) on August 10, 2006 due to the Company’s inability to file this Annual Report on Form 10-K on a timely
basis due to the following:

SEC Inquiry The Company pursued resolution on the Company’s application of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 131, “Derivatives about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”
(SFAS 131) through the SEC Office of Chief Accountant.

Material Weaknesses The Company’s review and evaluation of internal control over financial reporting
have identified a number of material weaknesses. As a result, management’s assessment of internal control
over financial reporting concluded that we did not maintain effective internal conti:ol over financial
reporting as of May 27, 2006. For additional information regarding the material wzaknesses, see Item 9A,
“Controls and Procedures.”

General

Merix Corporation is an Oregon corporation formed in March 1994. In this report, the terms “Merix,”
“Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our” refer to Merix Corporation and its wholly and majority-owned subsidiaries.
We are a leading global manufacturer of technologically advanced printed circuit boarcls for use in electronic
equipment. Our principal products are complex multi-layer rigid printed circuit boards, which are the platforms
used to interconnect microprocessors, integrated circuits and other components that are essential to the operation
of electronic products and systems. We provide our products to original equipment manufacturer (OEM)
customers, and their electronic manufacturing service (EMS) providers, that use them primarily in commercial
equipment in the communications, automotive, high-end computing and storage, and test and measurement
markets. Our markets are generally characterized by rapid technological change, high lzvels of complexity and
short product life-cycles, as new and technologically superior electronic equipment is continually being
developed. We have focused our efforts on shortened lead time delivery, technology and volume production. We
believe we are well positioned to serve our customer base as a result of our quick-turn service capabilities, our
technology leadership, high-technology production capacity and our lower-cost, volume production capabilities
in Asia.




In December 2004, we acquired Data Circuit Systems, now referred to as “Merix San Jose.” Located in San Jose,
California, Merix San Jose is a quick-turn services manufacturer of complex, multilayer printed circuit boards
and provider of related engineering assistance. Merix San Jose’s experienced management team and strong
technical capabilities have provided us additional capabilities to manufacture complex printed circuit boards in
very compressed time frames. The majority of its sales are for prototypes. Merix San Jose has approximately
40,000 square feet of manufacturing space and 10,000 square feet of administration facilities.

In September 2005, we acquired the business operations of Eastern Pacific Circuits Holdings Limited, and certain
of its subsidiaries, a Hong Kong-based lower-cost, high-volume supplier of printed circuit boards, now referred
to as “Merix Asia.” Merix Asia supplies a global customer base of OEMs and contract manufacturers in the
automotive, high-end computing, communications, consumer and industrial markets. Merix Asia provides us
with a strategic combination of well located manufacturing operations, a strong new customer base and
significant market diversification.

Merix Asia has approximately 869,000 square feet of manufacturing space, consisting of four facilities in
Southern China and one facility in Hong Kong. Two of the facilities in the People’s Republic of China as well as
the Hong Kong facility produce multi-layer printed circuit board products. Two smaller facilities in the People’s
Republic of China produce single-sided printed circuit board products.

With our platform in Asia, we believe that we are better positioned to provide a full range of products and
services to our existing customers, as well as to establish Merix as a viable supplier to Asian-based OEMs and
contract manufacturers. Combined with our facilities in Oregon and San Jose, we can offer a combination of
quick-turn service, advanced technology and lower-cost, high volume production capabilities that we believe
“should enable us to have significant cross-selling opportunities as we leverage our combined global sales forces.

Operating Segments

We define our business by three operating segments that are evidence of the internal structure of our
organization. Our three operating segments, as defined by SFAS No. 131 “Disclosures about Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information” (“SFAS 1317) include: (1) Merix Oregon, (2) Merix San Jose and (3) Merix
Asia. Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which separate financial information is
available and regularly reviewed by senior management. Each operating segment operates predominately in the
same industry with production facilities that produce similar customized products for our global customers. The
production facilities, sales management and chief decision-makers for all of our operating segments are managed
by the same executive team. The Company’s chief operating decision maker (CODM) is the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer.

Refer to Note 18 of the consolidated financial statements for disaggregated financial information relating to our
operating segments. '

Industry Overview

Printed circuit boards consist of patterns of electrical circuitry etched from copper that have been laminated on a
board of insulating material. A finished multi-layer printed circuit board consists of a number of layers of
circuitry laminated together using intense heat and pressure under vacuum. The electrical circuitry connects
components, such as microprocessors, that are essential to the operation of electronic products and systems.

Printed circuit boards are used in virtually all electronic equipment from consumer products, such as personal
computers, cellular telephones, automobiles and televisions, to high-end commercial electronic equipment, such
as data communication routers and switches, computer workstations and network servers. Printed circuit boards
used in consumer electronic products typically employ lower layer counts and lower performance materials and
require less manufacturing capability than printed circuit boards used in high-end commercial equipment.
High-end commercial equipment manufacturers require more complex multi-layer printed circuit boards, often
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constructed with advanced materials. Manufacturing printed circuit boards for these high-end products requires
substantial investment in advanced production facilities and process technology as well as engineering and
manufacturing expertise.

We believe the following are significant trends within the printed circuit board manufacturing industry:

Increasing complexity of electronic equipment OEMs are continually designing more complex and high
performance electronic equipment, which requires sophisticated printed circuit boards that accommodate
higher speeds and frequencies and increased component densities and operating temperatures. The
increasing complexity of electronic equipment continues to drive technological advancements in printed
circuit boards and requires manufacturers of these printed circuit boards to continually invest in technology
and advanced manufacturing processes.

Increased customer demand for quick-turn services production and integrated solutions We believe
OEMs are increasingly looking to high-end printed circuit board manufacturers that can offer engineering
support in the design phase, quick turn-around of prototypes and manufacturing scalability throughout the
product life-cycle. Many OEMs, looking to increase the efficiency of their electronic supply chains, are also
working with a smaller number of technically qualified suppliers that have sophisticated manufacturing
expertise and are able to offer a broad range of printed circuit board products and services. Rapid advances
in technology have significantly shortened product life-cycles and placed increased pressure on OEMs to
develop new products in shorter periods of time. In response to these pressures, OEMs have increased their
demand for engineering support in the design phase of their products and quick-turn services production of
small unit volumes of printed circuit boards in the prototype development stage.

Expanding markets The global demand for wireless communication products and the expansion of data
networking infrastructure, including those supporting products such as voice-over IP (VOIP) and network
security, are increasingly driving the demand for more complex multi-layer printed circuit boards. We
believe that increased demand in these markets will result in technological changes, demanding a wider
variety of electronic products, greater bandwidth and increasingly powerful electronic components.

Increased Asian production of printed circuit boards Asian manufacturers of printed circuit boards have
increased their production and market share of less sophisticated, lower layer count printed circuit boards
used in high-volume consumer electronics applications, such as personal computers and cell phones, as well
as in high-volume automotive applications. Generally, Asian manufacturers to date have not produced
printed circuit boards in significant quantities that require complex technologies, advanced manufacturing
processes, quick turn-around times or high-mix production. We believe that the technological expertise and
process know-how to manufacture compliex multi-layered printed circuit boards and the resource
commitments to maintain state-of-the-art capabilities have to date tended to serve as barriers to entry into
the high-end segments of the printed circuit board industry. However, we believe rhat, over time, OEMs and
electronic manufacturing service providers will increase their production of high-¢nd commercial electronic
equipment in Asia to meet growing Asian demand for those products and that printed circuit board
manufacturers in Asia will become increasingly competitive in these areas of the market. In addition, we
expect that increased competition from Asian printed circuit board companies will. result as electronic
manufacturing service providers increase high-end commercial electronic equipment assembly and
manufacturing in Asia to capitalize on lower-cost labor.

Products and Services

Our principal products are complex multi-layer printed circuit boards, which are the platforms used to
interconnect microprocessors, integrated circuits and other components that are essential to the operation of
electronic products and systems. We help our customers throughout the life-cycle of thzir products, from product
conception through volume production. The products and services we provide include:

Design and engineering assistance We provide design and engineering assistance in the early stages of
product development to ensure that mechanical and electrical elements are integrated to achieve a high
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quality and cost-effective product for our customers. We also evaluate customer designs for
manufacturability and recommend design changes. We believe this collaborative process helps our
customers improve the systems they are designing, reduce manufacturing costs and increase manufacturing
yields and the quality of finished printed circuit boards. We also believe this speeds the transition from
development of the prototype design to volume manufacturing and facilitates the timely delivery of high
quality products. In addition, by working closely with our customers throughout the design and
manufacturing process, we gain insight into their product plans and production requirements.

Quick-turn services and premium revenues We can rapidly manufacture custom printed circuit boards
allowing our customers to more quickly develop and market sophisticated electronic products. We
manufacture quick-turn services prototypes with lead times of 24 hours to 10 days and pre-production
quantities with lead times of 10 to 20 days. We also offer compressed lead time volume orders. We
generally receive a premium over our standard volume pricing for each of these services. Consolidated net
sales of quick-turn services and premium revenues comprised approximately 34% and 40% of consolidated
net sales during the fiscal years ended May 28, 2005 and May 29, 2004, respectively. With the addition of
our Merix Asia volume sales, our quick-turn services and premium revenues comprised approximately 30%
of consolidated net sales during the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006.

Volume production Volume production of printed circuit boards is generally characterized by standard
lead times of five to eight weeks, as printed circuit boards move to full-scale commercial production. At this
stage of production, quality, on-time delivery, process capability and price are the factors most important to
our customers.

Our Asian facilities provide lower cost, high volume manufacturing capabilities to serve a global customer
base. In addition, our engineering capability has enabled us to produce commercial volumes of
technologically sophisticated printed circuit boards of up to 40 layers from our Oregon facilities, utilizing
high performance materials and leading edge fabrication techniques. Our manufacturing process controls
enable us to meet accelerated time-to-market and time-to-volume requirements of our customers.

We also have expertise in advanced manufacturing techniques for products utilizing high performance materials
and offer specialty products, including:

RF/Microwave application products We manufacture printed circuit boards using a variety of advanced
insulating materials, primarily for RF/Microwave applications in the wireless infrastructure market.
Although typically included in printed circuit boards with lower layer counts, these advanced materials offer
electrical, thermal and long-term reliability advantages over conventional materials, however, are more
difficult to process through manufacturing.

Thermal management solutions We offer solutions to help our customers manage heat in high
performance applications, such as RF/Microwave, and address thermal and signal integrity requirements in
high power wireless products. Our manufacturing facilities support the integration of metal heat sinks with
printed circuit boards as well as other processes for managing thermal issues.

Backplanes, oversized and standard Backplanes are generally larger and thicker interconnection panels
into or onto which printed circuit boards, integrated circuits and other panels or electronic components can
be plugged or mounted.

Markets and Customers

We have a broad customer base and our customers include leading OEMSs in the electronics and automotive
industries. Our five largest OEM customers, which vary from year to year, comprised 39%, 59%, and 68% of our
consolidated net sales during the fiscal years ended May 27, 2006, May 28, 2005 and May 29, 2004, respectively.
Net sales to one customer individually represented 20% of consolidated net sales during the fiscal year ended

4




May 27, 2006. Comparatively, net sales to two OEM customers individually represented 29% and 16% of
consolidated net sales during the fiscal year ended May 28, 2005 and 35% and 15% of consolidated net sales
during the fiscal year ended May 29, 2004. The reduced concentration of and shift in our major customers is
largely the result of a more diverse customer base resulting from the acquisition of Merix Asia. However, we
expect to continue to depend upon a small number of customers for a significant portion of our consolidated net
sales for the foreseeable future.

The following are our significant end customers by operating segment:

Merix Oregon — Merix Oregon’s five largest customers during the fiscal year 2006, in alphabetic order,
were Cisco Systems Inc., Juniper Networks Inc., Motorola Inc., Nokia Corporation, and Nortel Networks
Inc. During the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006, Merix Oregon’s net sales to Cisco Systems and Motorola
represented 32% and 13%, respectively, of Merix Oregon’s net sales.

Merix Asia — Merix Asia’s five largest customers during the fiscal year 2006, in alphabetic order, were
Astec Power, Lear Corporation, Robert Bosch Corporation, TRW Automotive, Inc. and Visteon
Corporation. During the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006, Merix Asia’s net sales 1o TRW Automotive,
Visteon and Robert Bosch Corporation represented 21%, 12% and 10%, respectively, of Merix Asia’s net
sales.

Merix San Jose - Merix San Jose’s five largest customers during the fiscal year 2006, in alphabetic order,
were Aeroflex, Medtronic Inc., Paramit Corporation, Sauer Danfoss Inc. and Solzctron USA Inc. During the
fiscal year ended May 27, 2006, none of Merix San Jose’s customers represented 10% or more of Merix San
Jose’s net sales.

Sales attributed to OEMs include sales made through their electronic manufacturing szrvice providers.
Approximately 59%, 65% and 68% of our consolidated net sales were through electronic manufacturing service
providers during the fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Although our contractual relationship is with
the electronic manufacturing service provider, most of our shipments to electronic manufacturing service
providers are directed by OEMs that negotiate product pricing and volumes directly with us. In addition, we are
on the approved vendor list of several electronic manufacturing service providers and are awarded incremental
discretionary orders directly from some of them. We expect these discretionary orders to increase in the future as
we strengthen our direct relationships with these electronic manufacturing service providers.

The following table shows, for the periods indicated, the percentage of our consolidated net sales to the principal
end markets we serve in the electronics industry: )

Fiscal Years
2006 2008 2004

End markets:
COmMMUNICAIONS . . o\ vttt et et et e et et e 52% 8% 82%
A0t Ve . . oot e e e 13 0 0
High-end Computing and Storage ..............c.cciiiiiirirrnnnerennn 9 7 7
Test and Measurement . ... ... ..ttt et 6 4 6
Aerospaceand Defense . ..... ... ... ... .. i 2 1 0
O her™ L e e e 18 10 5
0T ) 100% 100% 100%

*  Other includes medical, industrial and other.

Sales in the communications end market represented a lower percentage of sales during the fiscal years 2006 and
2005, as compared to fiscal 2004, due to a more diverse customer base largely due to the December 2004
acquisition of Merix San Jose and the September 2005 acquisition of Merix Asia. The increase in other end
markets is the result of the addition of Merix Asia’s sales, which include additional sales to EMS’s and other
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consumer markets. While we have identified the communications end market as a primary area for growth and
we continue to add new customers in this end market, we will also be expanding our presence in other end
markets.

Sales and Marketing

We market our products and services through a field-based direct sales force, field application engineers,
manufacturers’ representative firms and customer service personnel. We employ field application engineers in
regions across North America, Europe and Asia that serve as the technical interface between us and our
customers’ design engineering teams. Our field application engineers provide technical design assistance
including information and modeling data to help assure that the customers’ final printed circuit board design
meets the customers’ electrical performance requirements, cost goals and design guidelines for
manufacturability. We believe this collaboration of our engineers with our customers’ designers provides us with
a significant competitive advantage.

We have a direct sales force presence in North America, Europe and Asia. Additionally, we have customer
service resources in North America and Asia.

Supplier Relationships

We have strong relationships with certain suppliers of raw materials and services to reduce the lead times
associated with our acquisition of these materials and services and to reduce inventory carrying costs, enhance
the quality and reliability of the supply of materials and reduce our transportation and other logistics costs.

Manufacturing and Technology

Our printed circuit boards manufactured in the United States typically employ various combinations of high layer
counts, advanced materials, precision cavities, embedded passives, narrow circuit widths and separations of
copper traces, and small diameter holes, called “vias” and “microvias,” which connect internal circuitry. Our
Asian facilities also employ advanced technology; however, Merix Asia typically manufactures printed circuit
boards with lower layer counts. Our average layer count, which is a widely used indication of manufacturing
sophistication, was 15.4 for printed circuit boards manufactured in our Oregon facilities during the fiscal year
2006. We estimate that Merix Asia had an average layer count of between six and eight for its multi-layer
facilities. :

The increasing complexity of electronic products has driven technological advancements in printed circuit boards
and has placed increasingly difficult demands on the manufacturing process. Many of our printed circuit boards
employ advanced high performance materials that offer electrical, thermal and long-term reliability advantages
over conventional materials, such as high temperature composite materials for use primarily in wireles$
infrastructure applications, and we have significant expertise in developing advanced manufacturing techniques
for processing these materials.

We employ numerous advanced manufacturing techniques and systems, including automated imaging systems,
automated optical inspection, computer controlled hot oil vacuum lamination, high-speed computer controlled

drilling and routing, automated registration optimizers, periodic reverse pulse copper plating, photo imageable

solder mask processing, dual-sided access electrical testing and automated surface coating.

We generally receive circuit designs directly from our customers in the form of electronic data files, which we
review using our front-end engineering capabilities to ensure data accuracy and product manufacturability. Using
these electronic files, we generate images of the circuit patterns that we develop on individual circuit board layers
using advanced photographic processes. Through a variety of plating and etching processes, we selectively add
and remove conductive materials forming horizontal layers of thin traces or circuits, which are separated by
insulating material. A finished multi-layer printed circuit board consists of a number of layers of circuitry
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laminated together using intense heat and pressure under vacuum. Vertical connections between layers are
achieved by plating vias, which are made by highly specialized drilling equipment capable of achieving
extremely fine tolerances with high accuracy. We specialize in high layer printed circuit boards with extremely
fine geometries and tolerances. Because of the tolerances involved, we use clean rooms for certain manufacturing
processes, in which tiny particles might otherwise create defects on the circuit patterns, and use automated
optical inspection systems to ensure consistent quality.

Competition

We believe our major competitors are United States, Asian and other international independent manufacturers
that manufacture multi-layer printed circuit boards, provide backplanes and other electronic assemblies, and offer
quick-turn services. Those competitors include Daeduck Electronics Co., DDi Corp., Kingboard Chemical
Holdings Ltd., LG Electronics, Multek Corporation (a division of Flextronics International Ltd.), Sanmina-SCI
Corporation, Topsearch International, TTM Technologies, Inc., WUS Printed Circuits Company Ltd. and
ViaSystems, Inc.

We believe that our ability to compete successfully depends upon a number of factors, including our
technological capability; our product quality; our responsiveness to customers in delivery and service; our
manufacturing capabilities and capacity; our cost structure; and our pricing.

Backlog

Backlog comprises purchase orders received and, in some instances, forecast requirements released for
production under customer contracts.

Oregon: Our backlog for our Oregon facilities was approximately $28.5 million and $22.4 million at
May 27, 2006 and May 28, 2005, respectively. g

San Jose: Our backlog for our San Jose facility was approximately $2.3 million and $1.9 million at
May 27, 2006 and May 28, 2005, respectively.

Asia:  Our backlog for our Asian facilities acquired in September 2005 was approximately $34.1 million at
April 22, 2006.

A substantial portion of our backlog is typically scheduled for delivery within 60 days and customers may cancel
or postpone all scheduled orders, and in most cases, without penalty. Therefore, backlog may not be a meaningful
indicator of future financial results.

Patents and Other Intellectual Property

Although we seek to protect certain proprietary technology and other intangible assets, we believe our business
depends on our effective execution of fabrication techniques and our ability to improve: our manufacturing
processes. We generally enter into confidentiality and non-disclosure agreements with our employees,
consultants and customers, as needed, and generally limit access to and distribution of our proprietary
information and processes. This practice was generally not followed by the predecesso:: companies of our Asian
operations. We cannot be sure that the steps taken by us will prevent the misappropriation of our technology and
processes. Furthermore, effective proprietary process protection may not be available cr may be limited in the
People’s Republic of China or other foreign countries.

Environmental Matters

We are required to comply with foreign, federal, state, county and municipal regulations regarding protection of
the environment and worker health and safety. Printed circuit board manufacturing requires the use of a variety
of materials, including metals and chemicals. As a result, we are subject to laws relating to the storage, use,
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labeling, disposal and human exposure to chemicals, solid waste and other hazardous materials, as well as air
quality regulations, and we incur expenses relating to compliance with these laws and regulations. Many of our
activities are also subject to permits issued by authorized governmental agencies. These permits must be renewed
periodically and are subject to revocation in the event of violations of environmental laws. Certain waste
materials and byproducts generated by our manufacturing processes are either processed by us or sent to third
parties for recycling, reclamation, treatment or disposal. Water used in our manufacturing process must be
properly treated prior to discharge. We have evaluated our environmental health and safety practices to determine
where deficiencies exist and are working to improve our compliance with these laws. For example, we are
working cooperatively with the appropriate agencies in the People’s Republic of China to improve our
compliance with laws related to wastewater discharge at the Huiyang and Huizhou facilities. We incurred $340
thousand and $600 thousand of environmental remediation costs relating to the Huiyang facility and Huizhou
facility, respectively, in the People’s Republic of China during the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006. When
violations of environmental, health, and safety laws occur, we can be held liable for damages, penalties and costs
of investigation and remedial actions. These expenses, or this liability, could have a significant negative impact
on our financial condition. Environmental laws could become more stringent over time, imposing greater
compliance costs and increasing risks and penalties associated with violations. We are at risk of violation of
environmental, health and safety laws in the future as a result of human error, equipment failure, or other causes.

Employees

As of May 27, 2006, we had a total of 4,450 workers, of which 4,225 were regular employees and 225 were
temporary workers. None of our employees is represented by a labor union. We have never experienced an
employee-related work stoppage at any of our facilities. We believe our relationship with our employees is good,
although, like most manufacturing companies, we have experienced employment related claims from time to
time. Our facilities in the People’s Republic of China, as with many similarly-situated Chinese-based companies,
experience considerable turn-over, which we are addressing. '

Available Information

Our principal executive offices are located at 1521 Poplar Lane, Forest Grove, Oregon 97116 and our telephone
number at that address is (503) 359-9300. Our website address is www.merix.com. Our annual, quarterly and
current reports on Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K, respectively, and all amendments thereto filed or furnished
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, can be accessed, free of charge, at
our website as soon as practicable after we file those reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Information contained on our website does not constitute, and shall not be deemed to constitute, part of this
report and shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into this report.

You may also read and copy any materials we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission at the SEC’s
Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. You may obtain information on the
operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the SEC maintains
an Internet site http://www.sec.gov from which you can access our annual, quarterly and current reports on
Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K, respectively, our proxy statements, and all amendments to these materials.




ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.
RISK FACTORS AFFECTING BUSINESS AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Investing in our securities involves a high degree of risk. If any of the following risks occur, the market price of
our shares of common stock and other securities could decline and investors could lose all or part of their
investment. In addition, the following risk factors and uncertainties could cause our actual results to differ
materially from those projected in our forward-looking statements, whether made in this Annual Report on Form
10-K or the other documents we file with the SEC, or in our annual or quarterly reports to shareholders, future
press releases, or orally, whether in presentations, responses to questions or otherwise.

We are dependent upon the electronics industry, which is highly cyclical and suffers significant downturns in
demand resulting in excess manufacturing capacity and increased price competition.

The electronics industry, on which a substantial portion of our business depends, is cyclical and subject to
significant downturns characterized by diminished product demand, rapid-declines in average selling prices and
over-capacity. This industry has experienced periods characterized by relatively low demand and price
depression and is likely to experience recessionary periods in the future. Economic conditions affecting the
electronics industry, in general, or specific customers, in particular, have adversely affected our operating results
in the past and may do so in the future.

The electronics industry is characterized by intense competition, rapid technological ctange, relatively short
product life-cycles and pricing and margin pressures. These factors adversely affect our customers and we suffer
similar effects. Our customers are primarily high-technology equipment manufacturers in the communications,
automotive, high-end computing and storage, test and measurement, and aerospace ancl defense end markets of
the electronics industry. Due to the uncertainty in the markets served by most of our customers, we cannot
accurately predict our future financial results or accurately anticipate future orders. At any time, our customers
can discontinue or modify products containing components manufactured by us, adjust the timing of orders and
shipments or affect our mix of consolidated net sales generated from quick-turn services and premium revenues
versus standard lead time production, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations.

We may not be able to remediate material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting.

As reported in Item 8. of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006, we have
identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting, as follows:

1. The Company did not maintain a sufficient complement of personnel to maintain an appropriate
accounting and financial reporting organizational structure to support the activities of the Company.
Specifically, the Company did not maintain personnel with an appropriate level of accounting
knowledge, experience and training in the selection, application and implementation of generally
accepted accounting principles with respect to: (i) stock-based compensation, (ii) external financial
reporting, including income tax disclosures, (iii) accrued liabilities, and (iv) classification of assets
held-for-sale. This material weakness resulted in audit adjustments to the Company’s 2006 annual
consolidated financial statements and contributed to the material weakness discussed in 2 below.
Additionally, this control deficiency could result in a misstatement of the above mentioned accounts
and disclosures that would result in a material misstatement to the interim or annual consolidated
financial statements that would not be prevented or detected. Accordingly, management has determined
that this control deficiency constitutes a material weakness.

2. The Company did not maintain effective controls over the completeness, accuracy and disclosure of
segment information. Specifically, controls over segment reporting were not effective to ensure that
disclosures were determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. This control
deficiency resulted in an audit adjustment to the required disclosure included in the notes to the
Company’s 2006 annual consolidated financial statements. Additionally, this control deficiency could
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result in a misstatement of segment information that would result in a material misstatement to the
interim or annual consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or detected.
Accordingly, management has determined that this control deficiency constitutes a material weakness.

As a result of the aforementioned material weaknesses, the PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP opinion set forth in the
Internal Control over Financial Reporting section of the Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm as of May 27, 2006 states that we have not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as
of May 27, 2006. Although the Company is implementing remedial controls to address this matter, if we fail to
remedy the material weaknesses in a timely matter, it could cause us to improperly record our financial position
and results of operations and could result in us failing to meet our financial reporting responsibilities in future
reporting periods.

Our recent acquisitions may be costly and difficult to integrate, may divert management resources and may
dilute shareholder value.

As part of our business strategy, we have made and may continue to make acquisitions of, or investments in,
companies, products or technologies that complement our current products, augment our market coverage,
enhance our technical capabilities or production capacity or that may otherwise offer growth opportunities. In
connection with our San Jose and Asian acquisitions or any future acquisitions or investments, we could
experience:

+ problems integrating the purchased operations, technologies or products;

» failure to achieve potential sales, materials costs and other synergies;

« unanticipated expenses and working capital requirements;

» difficulty achieving sufficient revenues to offset increased expenses associated with acquisitions;

« diversion of management’s attention;

+ adverse effects on business relationships with our or the acquired company’s suppliers and customers;
» difficulty in entering markets in which we have limited or no prior experience;

* losses of key employees, particularly those of the acquired organization; and

» problems completing anticipated technology transfers to our Asian operations.

In addition, in connection with any future acquisitions or investments, we could:

-+ issue stock that would dilute our current shareholders’ percentage ownership;

¢ incur debt and assume liabilities that could impair our liquidity;

* incur amortization expenses related to intangible assets; or

* incur large and immediate write-offs that would reduce net income.
Any of these factors could prevent us from realizing anticipated benefits of an acquisition or investment,
including operational synergies, economies of scale and increased profit margins and revenue. Acquisitions are
inherently risky, and any acquisition may not be successful. Failure to manage and successfully integrate
acquisitions could harm our business and operating results in a material way. Even when an acquired company

has already developed and marketed products, product enhancements may not be made in a timely fashion. In
addition, unforeseen issues might arise with respect to such products after the acquisition.

If we are unable to successfully integrate Merix Asia, our business may be materially adversely affected.

We recently acquired Eastern Pacific Circuits Limited and certain of its subsidiaries, now Merix Asia, and are
attempting to integrate Merix Asia’s operations with our domestic operations. We have never acquired foreign
operations before and have never had facilities in Asia. Our operations in Asia will increase our exposure to
certain risks, including the risks that we may not be able to successfully attract and retain qualified personnel in
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Asia, realign our resources for cost savings, realize any anticipated cost savings, adapt 1o business practices
which may be different from our other business locations, integrate our accounting software systems and
implement adequate internal controls and procedures. Under prior ownership, Merix Asia experienced difficulty
in reaching and maintaining profitability. To date, we have not realized expected growth in sales opportunities in
Asia from our domestic operations, nor have we realized expected materials cost savings by operating as a
multinational business. If we are unable to successfully integrate Merix Asia or if Merix Asia is unable to reach
and maintain profitability, our business and results of operations will likely be materially adversely affected.

We have minority investors in our China manufacturing facilities.

We have four printed circuit board manufacturing plants in the People’s Republic of China that are each owned
by a separate Chinese company. While we are the majority interest holder in all of these companies, there are
minority interest holders in each of them. The aggregate minority interest in these companies ranges from five
percent to 15 percent. These minority holders are local investors with close ties to local economic development
and other government agencies. In some cases, the investors lease to the Chinese operating companies the land
on which the plants are located. In connection with the negotiation of their investments, the local investors
secured certain rights to be consulted and consent to certain operating and investment rnatters concerning the
plants and to board representation. Failure to maintain good relations with these investors could materially
adversely affect our ability to manage the operations of one or more of the plants and cur ability to realize the
anticipated benefits of the Asian acquisition.

We do not currently have options to renew our leased manufacturing facilities in the People’s Republic of
China and Hong Kong.

We have two printed circuit board manufacturing plants in the People’s Republic of China that are leased from
separate Chinese companies under operating leases that do not contain lease renewal options. The facilities
include one of our major multi-layer plants and one of our smaller single-layer facilities in the People’s Republic
of China. While we lease these facilities from companies that have minority interests ranging from five percent to
fifteen percent in our majority-owned subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China, we cannot be assured that
these minority interest holders will renew our leases. Failure to maintain good relations with these investors
could materially adversely affect our ability to negotiate the renewal of our operating leases or continue to
operate one or more of the plants. Further, failure to successfully renew such leases could materially adversely
affect our ability to realize the anticipated benefits of the Asian acquisition.

Lower sales may cause gross margins and operating results to decrease because many of our operating costs

are fixed.

A significant portion of our operating expenses are relatively fixed in nature, and planned expenditures are based
in part on anticipated orders. If we do not receive orders as anticipated or if revenue is reduced by reductions in
the proportion of our quick-turn services and premium business, our operating results will be adversely affected.
Revenue shortfalls have historically resulted in an underutilization of our installed capacity and, together with
adverse pricing, have decreased our gross margins. Future decreases in demand or pricing will likely decrease
our gross margins and have a material adverse impact on our results of operations.

Competition in the printed circuit board market is intense and we could lose sales if we are unable to compete
effectively.

The market for printed circuit boards is intensely competitive, highly fragmented and rapidly changing. We
expect competition to persist, which could result in continued reductions in pricing and gross margins and loss of
market share. We believe our major competitors are United States, Asian and other imernational independent
manufacturers of multi-layer printed circuit boards, backplanes and other electronic assemblies, and companies
that offer quick-turn services. Those competitors include Daeduck Electronics Co., DIJi Corp., Kingboard
Chemical Holdings Ltd., LG Electronics, Multek Corporation (a division of Flextronics International Ltd.),
Sanmina-SCI Corporation, Topsearch International, TTM Technologies, Inc., WUS Printed Circuits Company
Ltd and ViaSystems, Inc.
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Many of our competitors and potential competitors may have a number of significant advantages over us,
including:

* significantly greater financial, technical, marketing and manufacturing resources;

+ preferred vendor status with some of our existing and potential customer; and

» larger customer bases.

In addition, these competitors may have the ability to respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies,
more successfully enter or adapt to existing or new end markets, may adapt more quickly to changes in customer
requirements and may devote greater resources to the development, promotion and sale of their products than we
can. Consolidation in the printed circuit board industry, which we expect to continue, could result in an
increasing number of larger printed circuit board companies with greater market power and resources. Such
consolidation could in turn increase price competition and result in other competitive pressures for us. We must
continually develop improved manufacturing processes to meet our customers’ needs for complex, high
technology products, and our basic interconnect technology is generally not subject to significant proprietary
protection. We may not be able to maintain or expand our sales if competition increases and we are unable to
respond effectively. During recessionary periods in the electronics industry, our competitive advantages in
providing an integrated manufacturing solution and responsive customer service may be less important to our
customers than when they are in more favorable economic climates.

If production capabilities increase in Asia, where production casts are lower, we may lose market share and
our gross margins may be materially adversely affected by increased pricing pressure.

Price competition from printed circuit board manufacturers in Asia and other locations with lower production
costs may play an increasing role in the printed circuit board markets in which we compete. While printed circuit
board manufacturers in these locations have historically competed primarily in markets for less technologically
advanced products, they are expanding their manufacturing capabilities to produce higher layer count, higher
technology printed circuit boards.

Success in Asia may adversely affect our U.S. operations.

To the extent Asian printed circuit board manufacturers, including Merix Asia, are able to compete effectively
with products historically manufactured in the United States, our facilities in the United States may not be able to
compete as effectively and parts of our U.S. operations may not remain viable.

The cyclical nature of automotive production and sales could adversely affect Merix’ business.

A significant portion of Merix Asia’s products are sold to customers in the automotive industry. As a result,
Merix Asia’s results of operations may be materially and adversely impacted by market conditions in the
automotive industry. Automotive production and sales are highly cyclical and depend on general economic
conditions and other factors, including consumer spending and preferences. In addition, automotive production
and sales can be affected by labor relations issues, regulatory requirements, trade agreements and other factors.
Any significant economic decline that results in a reduction in automotive production and sales by Merix Asia’s
customers could have a material adverse effect on Merix’ business, results of operations and financial condition.

Automotive customers have higher quality requirements and long qualification times.

For safety reasons, our automotive customers have strict quality standards that generally exceed the quality
requirements of our other customers. Because a significant portion of Merix Asia’s products are sold to
customers in the automotive industry, if our manufacturing facilities in Asia do not meet these quality standards,
our results of operations may be materially and adversely impacted. These automotive customers may require
long periods of time to evaluate whether our manufacturing processes and facilities meet their quality standards.
If we were to lose automotive customers due to quality control issues, we might not be able to regain those
customers, or gain new automotive customers, for long periods of time, which could significantly decrease our
consolidated net sales and profitability.
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A small number of customers accounts for a substantial portion of our consolidated net sales and our
consolidated net sales could decline significantly if we lose a major customer or if a major customer orders
fewer of our products or cancels or delays orders.

Historically, we have derived a significant portion of our consolidated net sales from a limited number of
customers. Our five largest OEM customers, which vary from year to year, comprised 39%, 59%, and 68% of our
consolidated net sales during the fiscal years ended May 27, 2006, May 28, 2005 and May 29, 2004, respectively.
While two OEM customers accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated net sales during the fiscal years
ended May 28, 2005 and May 29, 2004, only one OEM customer accounted for more than 10% of our
consolidated net sales during the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006. We expect to continue: to depend upon a small
number of customers for a significant portion of our consolidated net sales for the foreseeable future. The loss of,
or decline in, orders from one or more major customers could reduce our consolidated net sales and have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Some of our customers are relatively small companies, and our future business with them may be significantly
affected by their ability to continue to obtain financing. If they are unable to obtain adecuate financing, they will
not be able to purchase products, which, in the aggregate, would adversely affect our consolidated net sales.

Because we do not generally have long-term contracts with our customers, we are subject to uncertainties and
variability in demand by our customers, which could decrease consolidated net sales and negatively affect our
operating results.

We generally do not have long-term purchase commitments from our customers, and, consequently, our
consolidated net sales are subject to short-term variability in demand by our customers. Customers generally
have no obligation to order from us and may cancel, reduce or delay orders for a variety of reasons. The level and
timing of orders placed by our customers vary due to:

* fluctuation in demand for our customers’ products;

* changes in customers’ manufacturing strategies, such as a decision by a customer to either diversify or
consolidate the number of printed circuit board manufacturers used;

* customers’ inventory management; and

* changes in new product introductions.

We have experienced terminations, reductions and delays in our customers’ orders. Future terminations,
reductions or delays in our customers’ orders could lower our production asset utilization, which would lower our
gross margins, decrease our consolidated net sales and negatively affect our business and results of operations.

We rely on suppliers for the timely delivery of materials used in manufacturing our printed circuit boards, and
an increase in industry demand or a shortage of or in the price of raw materials may increase the price of the
raw materials we use and may limit our ability to manufacture certain products and adversely impact our
gross margins.

To manufacture our printed circuit boards, we use materials such as laminated layers of fiberglass, copper foil
and chemical solutions which we order from our suppliers. Suppliers of laminates and other raw materials that
we use may from time to time extend lead times, limit supplies or increase prices due to capacity constraints or
other factors, which could adversely affect our gross margins and our ability to deliver our products on a timely
basis. We have begun to experience, and expect that we will continue to experience, significant increases in the
cost of laminate materials, copper products and oil-based or oil-derivative raw materials. These cost increases
have had an adverse impact on our gross margins and the impact has been particularly significant on our Asian
operations which maintain fixed prices arrangements with a number of large automotive customers. Some of our
products use types of laminates that are only available from a single supplier that holds a patent on the material.
Although other manufacturers of advanced printed circuit boards also must use the singlz supplier and our OEM
customers generally determine the type of laminates used, a failure to obtain the material from the single supplier

13




for any reason may cause a disruption, and possible cancellation, of orders for printed circuit boards using that
type of laminate, which in turn would cause a decrease in our consolidated net sales.

If we do not effectively manage the expansion of our operations, our business may be harmed, and the
increased costs associated with the expansion may not be offset by increased consolidated net sales.

We recently acquired Merix Asia and believe that additional capital investment will be required to fully realize
the value of the assets we acquired. Any future capacity expansion with respect to our Asian facilities will expose
us to significant start-up risks including:

* delays in receiving and installing required manufacturing equipment;
» inability to retain management personnel and skilled employees, or labor shortages in general;
» difficulties scaling up production at our expanded facilities;

» challenges in coordinating management of operations and order fulfillment between our U.S. and Asian
facilities;

+ aneed to improve and expand our management information systems and financial controls to
accommodate our expanded operations;

+ additional unanticipated costs; and

» shortfalls in production volumes as a result of unanticipated start-up or expansion delays that could
prevent us from meeting our customers’ delivery schedules or production needs.

The success of our integration and anticipated expansion efforts will depend upon our ability to expand, train,
retain and manage our employee base. In connection with our expansion efforts in Asia, we expect to require
additional employees throughout the company. If we are unable to attract and train and retain new workers, or
manage our employee base effectively, our ability to fully utilize our Asian assets will likely be impaired. If we
are unable to effectively expand, train and manage our employee base, our business and results of operations
could be adversely affected.

In addition, if our consolidated net sales do not increase sufficiently to offset the additional fixed operating
expenses associated with our Asian operations, our results of operations may be adversely affected. If demand for
our products does not meet anticipated levels, the value of the expanded operations could be significantly
impaired, which would adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

We were unable to implement adequate internal controls and procedures at Merix Asia.

Our management was unable to complete an evaluation and review of Merix Asia’s internal control over
financial reporting for the year ended May 27, 2006, and accordingly, our management excluded Merix Asia
from its 2006 assessment of internal control over financial reporting. We are required to complete an evaluation
and review of Merix Asia’s internal control over financial reporting by the year ended May 26, 2007. We are in
the process of upgrading the accounting systems and strengthening our internal staffing and technical expertise in
financial and SEC accounting and reporting at our Asia operations and our management intends to include Merix
Asia in its 2007 assessment of internal control over financial reporting. However, if we are not able to attract and
retain qualified accounting personnel or successfully upgrade our accounting systems, our management may have
to exclude Merix Asia in its 2007 assessment of internal control over financial reporting, which may subject us to
adverse regulatory consequences and could result in a negative reaction in the financial markets due to a loss of
confidence in the reliability of our consolidated financial statements. If we fail to develop and maintain effective
controls and procedures at Merix Asia, we may be unable to provide required financial information in a timely
and reliable manner or otherwise comply with the standards applicable to us as a public company. Any failure by
us to timely provide required financial information could materially and adversely impact our financial condition
and the market value of our securities.
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QOur operations in the People’s Republic of China subject us to risks and uncertainties relating to the laws and
regulations of the People’s Republic of China.

Under its current leadership, the Chinese government has been pursuing economic reform policies, including the
encouragement of foreign trade and investment and greater economic decentralization. No assurance can be
given, however, that the government of the People’s Republic of China will continue to pursue such policies, that
such policies will be successful if pursued, or that such policies will not be significantly altered from time to
time. Despite progress in developing its legal system, the PRC does not have a compreheznsive and highly
developed system of laws, particularly with respect to foreign investment activities and foreign trade.
Enforcement of existing and future laws and contracts is uncertain, and implementation and interpretation thereof
may be inconsistent. As the Chinese legal system develops, the promulgation of new laws, changes to existing
laws and the preemption of local regulations by national laws may adversely affect foreign investors. Further,
any litigation in the PRC may be protracted and result in substantial costs and diversion of resources and
management attention. In addition, some government policies and rules are not timely published or
communicated in the local districts, if they are published at all. As a result, we may operate our business in
violation of new rules and policies without having any knowledge of their existence. These uncertainties could
limit the legal protections available to us. '

Our Chinese and Hong Kong manufacturing operations subject us to a number of risks we have not faced in
the past.

A substantial portion of our current manufacturing operations is located in the People’s Republic of China and
Hong Kong. The geographical distances between these facilities and our U.S. headquarters create a number of
logistical and communications challenges. We are also subject to a highly competitive raarket for labor in the
People’s Republic of China and Hong Kong, which may require us to increase employe: wages and benefits to
attract and retain employees and spend significant resources to train new employees due: to high employee
turnover, either of which could cause our labor costs to exceed our expectations. In addition, because of the
location of these facilities, we could be affected by economic and political instability in the People’s Republic of
China or Hong Kong, including:

+ lack of developed infrastructure;

* currency fluctuations;

+ overlapping taxes and multiple taxation issues;

* employment and severance taxes;

+ the burdens of cost and compliance with a variety of foreign laws;

» difficulty in attracting and training workers in foreign markets and problems cauvised by labor unrest; and

* less protection of our proprietary processes and know-how. '
Moreover, inadequate development or maintenance of infrastructure in the People’s Republic of China, including
inadequate power and water supplies, transportation or raw materials availability, or the: deterioration in the

general political, economic or social environment, could make it difficult and more expznsive, and possibly
prohibitive, to continue to operate our manufacturing facilities in the People’s Republic of China.

Products we manufacture may contain manufacturing defects, which could result in reduced demand for our
products and liability claims against us. '

We manufacture highly complex products to our customers’ specifications. These products may contain
manufacturing errors or failures despite our quality control and quality assurance efforts. Defects in the products
we manufacture, whether caused by a design, manufacturing or materials failure or errcr, may result in delayed
shipments, increased warranty costs, customer dissatisfaction, or a reduction in or cancellation of purchase
orders. If these defects occur either in large quantities or too frequently, our business reputation may be impaired.
Since our products are used in products that are integral to our customers’ businesses, errors, defects or other
performance problems could result in financial or other damages to our customers beyond the cost of the printed
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circuit board, for which we may be liable in some cases. Although we generally attempt to sell our products on
terms designed to limit our exposure to warranty, product liability and related claims, in certain cases, the terms
of our agreements allocate to Merix substantial exposure for product defects. In addition, even if we can
contractually limit our exposure, existing or future laws or unfavorable judicial decisions could negate these
limitations of liability provisions. Product liability litigation against us, even if it were unsuccessful, would be
time consuming and costly to defend. Although we maintain a warranty reserve, this reserve may not be
sufficient to cover our warranty or other expenses that could arise as a result of defects in our products.

Merix may incur material losses and costs as a result of product liability and warranty claims that may be
brought against us.

We face an inherent business risk of exposure to warranty and product liability claims in the event that our
products, particularly those supplied by Merix Asia to the automotive industry, fail to perform as expected or
such failure results, or is alleged to result, in bodily injury and/or property damage. In addition, if any of our
products are or are alleged to be defective; we may be required to participate in a recall of such products. As
suppliers become more integral to the vehicle design process and assume more of the vehicle assembly functions,
vehicle manufacturers are increasingly looking to their suppliers for contributions when faced with product
liability claims or recalls. In addition, vehicle manufacturers, who have traditionally borne the cost associated
with warranty programs offered on their vehicles, are increasingly requiring suppliers to guarantee or warrant
their products and may seek to hold us responsible for some or all of the costs related to the repair and
replacement of parts supplied by us to the vehicle manufacturer. A successful warranty or product liability claim
against us in excess of our available insurance coverage or established warranty and legal reserves or a
requirement that we participate in a product recall may have a material adverse effect on our business.

If we are unable to respond to rapid technological change and process development, we may not be able to
compete effectively.

The market for our products is characterized by rapidly changing technology and continual implementation of
new production processes. The future success of our business will depend in large part upon our ability to
maintain and enhance our technological capabilities, to manufacture products that meet changing customer
needs, and to successfully anticipate or respond to technological changes on a cost-effective and timely basis. In
addition, the printed circuit board industry could encounter competition from new or revised manufacturing and
production technologies that render existing manufacturing and production technology less competitive or
obsolete. We may not be able to respond effectively to the technological requirements of the changing market. If
we need new technologies and equipment to remain competitive, the development, acquisition and
implementation of those technologies and equipment may require us to make significant capital investments. We
may not be able to raise the necessary additional funds at all or as rapidly as necessary to respond to
technological changes as quickly as our competitors.

As we commence our work to implement a new enterprise resource planning system, unexpected problems and
delays could occur and could cause disruption to the management of our business and significantly increase costs.

In the fourth quarter of the fiscal year 2006, as part of a multi-phase process, the Company decided to implement a
new enterprise resource planning, or ERP, for our world wide operations. As of the end of fiscal 2006, the Company
selected an ERP Vendor and began the initial design and implementation during the first quarter of fiscal 2007. We
expect the new ERP system will become integral to our ability to accurately and efficiently maintain our books and
records, record our transactions, provide critical information to our management and prepare our financial
statements. Our work to plan, develop and implement this new ERP system will continue into the fiscal year 2008
as an active project. These systems are new to us and we have not had extensive experience with them. The new
ERP system could eventually become more costly, difficult and time-consuming to purchase and implement than
we currently anticipate. Implementation of the new ERP system may require us to change certain internal business
practices. We may encounter unexpected difficulties, delays; costs or other challenges, any of which may disrupt
our business. Corrections and improvements may be required as we continue the implementation of our new system,
procedures and controls, and could cause us to incur additional costs and require additional management attention,
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placing burdens on our internal resources. Any delay in the implementation of, or disruption in the transition to our
new or enhanced systems, procedures or controls, could harm our ability to accurately forecast sales demand,
manage our supply chain, achieve accuracy in the conversion of electronic data and records and to report financial
and management information on a timely and accurate basis. Failure to properly or adequately address these issues
could result in the diversion of management’s attention and resources and impact our ability to manage our business
and our results of operations. :

If we lose key management, operations, engineering and sales and marketing personnel, we could experience
reduced sales, delayed product development and diversion of management resources.

Our success depends largely on the continued contributions of our key management, opcrations, engineering and
sales and marketing personnel, many of whom would be difficult to replace. We generally do not have
employment or non-compete agreements with our key personnel. If one or more members of our senior
management or key professionals were to resign, the loss of personnel could result in loss of sales, delays in new
product development and diversion of management resources, which would have a negative effect on our
business. We do not maintain “key man” insurance policies on any of our personnel.

Successful execution of our day-to-day business operations, including our manufacturing process, depends on
the collective experience of our employees and we have experienced periods of high employee turnover. If
high employee turnover persists, our business may suffer and we may not be able to compete effectively.

We rely on the collective experience of our employees, particularly in the manufacturing process, to ensure we
continuously evaluate and adopt new technologies and remain competitive. Although we are not generally
dependent on any one employee or a small number of employees involved in our manufacturing process, we have
experienced periods of high employee turnover generally and continue to experience significantly high employee
turnover at our Asian facilities. If we are not able to replace these people with new employees with comparable
experience, our operations could suffer as we may be unable to keep up with innovations in the industry or the
demands of our customers. As a result, we may not be able to continue to compete effectively.

We are exposed to the credit risk of some of our customers and also as a result of a concentration of our
customer base.

Most of our sales are on an “open credit” basis, with standard industry payment terms. We monitor individual
customer payment capability in granting open credit arrangements, seek to limit open credit to amounts we
believe the customers can pay, and maintain reserves we believe are adequate to cover exposure for doubtful
accounts. During periods of economic downturn in the global economy and the electronics and automotive
industries, our exposure to credit risks from our customers increases. Although we have programs in place to
monitor and mitigate the associated risk, those programs may not be effective in reducing our credit risks.

In total, five entities represented approximately 39% of the consolidated net trade accounts receivable balance at
May 27, 2006, individually ranging from 5% to 15%. Comparatively, five entities represented approximately
67% of the consolidated net trade accounts receivable balance at May 28, 2005, individually ranging from 5% to
39%. Our OEM customers direct our sales to a relatively limited number of electronic manufacturing service
providers. Our contractual relationship is typically with the electronic manufacturing service providers, who are
obligated to pay us for our products. Because we expect our OEM customers to continue to direct our sales to
electronic manufacturing service providers, we expect to continue to be subject to the credit risk of a limited
number of customers. This concentration of customers exposes us to increased credit risks. If one or more of our
significant customers were to become insolvent or were otherwise unable to pay us, our financial condition
results of operations would be harmed.

Our failure to comply with environmental laws could adversely affect our business.

Our operations are regulated under a number of federal, state and municipal environmertal and safety laws and
regulations including laws in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China that govern, among other things,
the discharge of hazardous a}nd other materials into the air and water, as well as the hanclling, storage, labeling,
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and disposal of such materials. We have evaluated our environmental and safety practices to determine where
deficiencies exist and are working to improve our compliance with these laws. For example, we are working
cooperatively with the appropriate agencies in the People’s Republic of China to improve our compliance with
laws related to wastewater discharges at the Huiyang and Huizhou facilities. When violations of environmental
laws occur, we can be held liable for damages, penalties and costs of investigation and remedial actions.
Violations of environmental laws and regulations may occur in the future as a result of our failure to have
necessary permits, human error, equipment failure or other causes. Moreover, in connection with our acquisitions
in San Jose, California and in Asia, we may be liable for any violations of environmental and safety laws at those
facilities by prior owners. If we violate environmental laws, we may be held liable for damages and the costs of
investigations and remedial actions and may be subject to fines and penalties, and revocation of permits
necessary to conduct our business. Any permit revocations could require us to cease or limit production at one or
more of our facilities, and harm our business, results of operations and financial condition. Even if we ultimately
prevail, environmental lawsuits against us would be time consuming and costly to defend. Our failure to comply
with applicable environmental laws and regulations could limit our ability to expand facilities or could require us
to acquire costly equipment or to incur other significant expenses to comply with these laws and regulations. In
the future, environmental laws may become more stringent, imposing greater compliance costs and increasing
risks and penalties associated with violations. We operate in environmentally sensitive locations and we are
subject to potentially conflicting and changing regulatory agendas of political, business and environmental
groups. Changes or restrictions on discharge limits, emissions levels, permitting requirements and material
storage, handling or disposal might require a high level of unplanned capital investment, operating expenses or,
depending on the severity of the impact of the foregoing factors, costly plant relocation. It is possible that
environmental compliance costs and penalties from new or existing regulations may harm our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

We are potentially liable for contamination at our current and former facilities as well as at sites where we have
arranged for the disposal of hazardous wastes, if such sites become contaminated. These liabilities could include
investigation and remediation activities. It is possible that remediation of these sites could adversely affect our
business and operating results in the future.

Because we have significant foreign sales and presence, we are subject to political, economic and other risks
we do not face in the domestic market.

With the acquisition of our Asian operations, we expect sales in, and product shipments to, non-U.S. markets to
represent an increasingly significant portion of our total sales in future periods. Our exposure to the business
risks presented by foreign economies includes:

* logistical, communications and other operational difficulties in managing a global enterprise;
* potentially adverse tax consequences;

* restrictions on the transfer of funds into or out of a country;

* longer sales and collection cycles;

+ potential adverse changes in laws and regulatory practices, including export license requirements, trade
barriers, tariffs and tax laws;

» protectionist and trade laws and business practices that favor local companies;
* restrictive governmental actions; -

* burdens and costs of compliance with a variety of foreign laws;

» political and economic instability, including terrorist activities;

» natural disaster or outbreaks of infectious diseases affecting the regions in which we operate or sell
products; and

+ difficulties in collecting accounts receivable.
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We are subject to risks associated with currency fluctuations, which could have a material adverse effect on
our results of operations and financial condition.

A significant portion of our costs are denominated in foreign currencies, including the Flong Kong Dollar and the
Chinese Renminbi (RNB). Substantially all of our consolidated net sales are denominated in U.S. Dollars. As a
result, changes in the exchange rates of these foreign currencies to the U.S. Dollar will affect our cost of sales
and operating margins and could result in exchange losses. The exchange rate of the Chinese Renminbi to the
U.S. Dollar is fixed by the Chinese government. While there has been some pressure by the U.S. government to
allow the value of the Renminbi to fluctuate, it is uncertain to what extent, if any, this will occur. To the extent
that the value of the Renminbi relative to the U.S. Dollar increases, the costs of our Chinese opefations are likely
to increase. The impact of future exchange rate fluctuations on our results of operations cannot be accurately
predicted. We may enter into exchange rate hedging programs from time to time in an effort to mitigate the
impact of exchange rate fluctuations. However, hedging transactions may not be effective and may result in
foreign exchange hedging losses.

Pending or future litigation could have a material adverse impact on our operating results and financial
condition.

We are currently subject to legal proceedings and claims, including a securities class action lawsuit and a
shareholder derivative lawsuit. In each complaint, the plaintiffs seek unspecified damages. These lawsuits are
described in Item 3. Legal Proceedings above. More lawsuits could be filed against us.

Where we can make a reasonable estimate of any probable liability relating to pending litigation, we record a
liability. Although we have created a reserve for some of the potential legal fees associated with litigation
currently pending against us, we have not created any reserve for potential liability for settlements or judgments

- because the potential liability is neither probable nor estimable. Even when we record a liability, the amount of
our estimates of costs or liabilities could be wrong. Accordingly, our operating results &nd financial condition
could be adversely affected. In addition to the direct costs of litigation, pending or future litigation could divert
management’s attention and resources from the operation of our business. Accordingly. our operating results and
financial condition could be adversely affected.

We did not have a Chief Financial Officer from January 13, 2006 through the filing date of this report.

We did not have a Chief Financial Officer from January 13, 2006, the date on which our former Chief Financial
Officer retired, through the filing date of this report. After we file this report, the appointment of our new Chief
Financial Officer will be effective. Although our Chief Executive Officer acted as our principal accounting and
financial officer, we did not have an officer dedicated to the tasks generally performed by a Chief Financial
Officer, such as overseeing the financial management of the Company; directing our financial goals, objectives
and budgets; directing and overseeing the preparation of our consolidated financial statements; overseeing
investment of funds and managing associated risks; supervising our cash management activities; and overseeing
our disclosure controls and procedures and our internal control over financial reporting. In addition, we
integrated a significant foreign acquisition without a senior financial officer. Moreover, the added responsibilities
may have diverted our Chief Executive Officer’s focus from his other responsibilities cluring that period of time.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR CORPORATE STRUCTURE AND STOCK

Our stock price has fluctuated significantly, and we expect the trading price of our common stock to remain
highly volatile.

The closing trading price of our common stock has fluctuated significantly and declined from an all-time high of
$73.50 per share on August 25, 2000 to a low of $2.56 per share on October 8, 1998.

The market price of our common stock may fluctuate as a result of a number of factors including:

* actual and anticipated variations in our operating results;
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* general economic and market conditions, including changes in demand in the printed circuit board
industry and the end markets which we serve;

* interest rates;
* geopolitical conditions throughout the world;

 perceptions of the strengths and weaknesses of the printed circuit board industry and the end markets
which it serves;

* our ability to pay principal and interest on our debt when due;
» developments in our relationships with our lenders, customers, and/or suppliers;

» announcements of alliances, mergers or other relationships by or between our competitors and/or our
suppliers and customers;

» announcements of plant closings, layoffs, restructurings or bankruptcies by our competitors; and

* developments related to regulations, including environmental and wastewater regulations.

We expect this volatility to continue in the future. In recent years, the stock market in general has experienced
extreme price and volume fluctuations that have affected the printed circuit board industry and that may be
unrelated to the operating performance of the companies within these industries. These broad market fluctuations
may adversely affect the market price of our common stock and limit our ability to raise capital or finance
transactions using equity instruments.

A large number of our outstanding shares and shares to be issued upon exercise of our outstanding options
may be sold into the market in the future, which could cause the market price of our common stock to drop
significantly, even if our business is doing well.

We may, in the future, sell additional shares of our common stock, or securities convertible into or exercisable
for shares of our common stock, to raise capital. We may also issue additional shares of our common stock, or
securities convertible into or exercisable for shares of our common stock, to finance future acquisitions. Further,
a substantial number of shares of our common stock are reserved for issuance pursuant to stock options. As of
May 27, 2006, we had 3,502,839 outstanding options, each to purchase one share of our common stock, issued to
key employees, officers and directors under our equity incentive plans. The options have exercise prices ranging
from $2.04 per share to $67.06 per share. These outstanding options could have a significant adverse effect on
the trading price of our common stock, especially if a significant volume of the options was exercised and the
stock issued was immediately sold into the public market. Further, the exercise of these options could have a
dilutive impact on other shareholders by decreasing their ownership percentage of our outstanding common
stock. If we attempt to raise additional capital through the issuance of equity or convertible debt securities, the
terms upon which we will be able to obtain additional equity capital, if at all, may be negatively affected since
the holders of outstanding options can be expected to exercise them, to the extent they are able, at a time when
we would, in all likelihood, be able to obtain any needed capital on terms more favorable than those provided in
such options.

Our shareholder rights plan and some provisions contained in our articles of incorporation and bylaws, as
well as provisions of Oregon law, could inhibit a takeover attempt.

Some of the provisions of our articles of incorporation and bylaws, such as the authorization of blank check
preferred stock, our shareholder rights plan and Oregon’s anti-takeover laws could delay or prevent a merger or
acquisition between us and a third party, or make a merger or acquisition with us less desirable to a potential
acquirer, even in circumstances in which our shareholders may consider the merger or acquisition favorable. Our
shareholders rights plan was adopted to discourage a potential acquisition of us that our board of directors
believes is undesirable to us and our shareholders. Any of these provisions that have the effect of delaying or
deterring a merger or acquisition between us and a third party could limit the opportunity for our shareholders to
receive a premium for their shares of our common stock, and could also affect the price that some investors are
willing to pay for our common stock.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

We have approximately 450,500 square feet of manufacturing, warehouse and administration facility space in
Oregon and California, and approximately 869,000 square feet of manufacturing and administration space in
Hong Kong and in the People’s Republic of China, with our major facilities as follows:

Segment by which Approx.
the Facility is Size
Location Utilized Type of Facility (8q. Ft.) Owned/Leased
Forest Grove, Oregon Merix — Oregon Global headquarters: Owned
Manufacturing and warehouse 248,000
Administration 62,500
Wood Village, Oregon | Merix — Oregon Manufacturing 90,000 Leased
San Jose, California Merix — San Jose Manufacturing and warehouse 40,000 Leased
Administration
Hong Kong Merix — Asia Manufacturing, warehouse 384,000 Owned*
and administration
Huiyang, China Merix — Asia Manufacturing, warehouse 250,000 Owned**
and administration
Huizhou, China Merix — Asia Manufacturing, warchouse 135,000 Leased
and administration

*  We own the facility, however, we lease the land from Science Park.
**  We own the facility, however, we lease the land from the People’s Republic of China.

Merix Asia also has two smaller facilities that produce single-sided products, one of which is owned by a
majority-owned subsidiary and one of which is leased. The total square footage of thes= facilities is 100,000
square feet.

In May 2006, we made a decision to sell certain of our long-lived assets. We are attempting to sell (1) a building
located near our Forest Grove, Oregon campus bundled with a parcel of land on which the building is located,
and (2) two additional parcels of land adjacent to the facility in Forest Grove, Oregon. [n accordance with SFAS
No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS 144”), we have recorded
such long-lived assets as current assets held for sale.

All facilities are certified under the ISO 9001:2000 quality assurance model. This certification requires that we
meet standards related to management, production and quality control, among others. We use total quality
management systems to meet the highest industry standards for product quality. Our San Jose facility is Military
Specification 55110 certified for participation in government defense programs.

Our four printed circuit board manufacturing plants in the People’s Republic of China are each owned by a
separate Chinese company. While we are the majority interest holder in all of these companies, there are minority
interest holders in each of them. The aggregate minority interest in these companies ranges from five percent to
fifteen percent. These minority holders are local investors with close ties to local economic development and
other government agencies. In some cases, the investors lease to the Chinese operating companies the land on
which the plants are located. In connection with the negotiation of their investments upon the acquisition of
Merix Asia during September 2005, the local investors secured certain rights to be consulted and consent to
certain operating and investment matters concerning the plants and to board representztion.

21




ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

Four proposed class action complaints were filed against us and certain of our executive officers and directors in
the first quarter of fiscal 2005 by plaintiffs who purchased securities in our January 2004 public offering. The
complaints were consolidated in the second quarter of fiscal 2005 in a single action entitled In re Merix
Corporation Securities Litigation, Lead Case No. CV 04-826-MO, in the U.S. District Court for the District of
Oregon. On March 3, 2005, we filed a motion to dismiss the amended and consolidated complaint for failure to
identify with sufficient specificity the statements that plaintiffs allege to have been false and why the statements
were either false when made or material. On September 15, 2005, the court granted that motion without prejudice
and gave plaintiffs leave to amend their complaint. On November 18, 2005, the lead plaintiff filed an amended
complaint. The complaint, as amended, alleges that the defendants violated the federal securities laws by making
certain alleged inaccurate and misleading statements in the prospectus used in connection with our January 2004
public offering. The initial purchaser was one of the underwriters of our January 2004 public offering and is one
of the defendants in this case. We have moved to dismiss the amended complaint and we intend to continue to
vigorously defend the action and the officer and director defendants.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2005, two derivative lawsuits were filed by plaintiffs who purchased securities in our
January 2004 public offering against certain of our directors and officers based on the same allegations made in
the class action lawsuit. Merix is named as a nominal defendant in these derivative lawsuits, which have now
been consolidated under the common caption In re Merix Corporation Derivative Litigation, Lead Case

No. 0407-06807, in the Circuit Court for the State of Oregon, Multnomah County. On August 31, 2005, the
federal court hearing the class action lawsuit described above granted a motion to stay discovery in this state-
court derivative action. On September 13, 2005, the state court stayed all proceedings in the derivative lawsuit
pending further developments in the federal class action lawsuit, including all proceedings on a motion that
defendants filed on July 7, 2005 to dismiss the consolidated shareholder derivative complaint.

In each complaint, the plaintiffs seek unspecified damages from the defendants. A potential loss or range of loss
that could arise from these complaints is not estimable or probable at this time. We have recorded charges for
estimated probable costs associated with defending these claims, as it is our policy to accrue legal fees when it is
probable that we will have to defend the company against known claims or allegations and it can reasonably
estimate the amount of anticipated expense. :

We are from time to time made subject to employment-related claims and other commercial claims in the
ordinary course of our business. We have recorded charges for the estimated probable costs associated with
defending these claims. We believe that our legal accruals are adequate and that the outcomes should not have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated results of operations, financial condition or liquidity.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.

We did not submit any matters to a vote of our stockholders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our executive officers:

Executive Officers Age Position

Mark R. Hollinger ......... 48  Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President

Daniel T.Olson ........... 51  Senior Vice President and Chief Executive Officer of Asian Operations
R. Steven Robinson . ....... 50 Senior Vice President of North American Operations

Stephen M. Going ......... 43 Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Thomas R. Ingham ........ 51  Vice President of Sales and Marketing
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Mark R. Hollinger was elected to our Board of Directors in May 1999 and has been the Chairman since
September 2001. Mr. Hollinger has served as Chief Executive Officer of Merix since September 1999 and as
President since May 1999, He joined Merix in September 1997 as Senior Vice President, Operations and served
as Chief Operating Officer from August 1998 to September 1999. Prior to joining Merix, he spent three years as
Vice President of Operations at Continental Circuits Corporation. His experience also includes more than a
decade at IBM where he served in a variety of manufacturing positions.

Daniel T. Olson has served as Senior Vice President and Chief Executive Officer of Asian Operations since
August 2005. Mr. Olson served as Vice President, Sales and Marketing from October 1999 until July 2003 when
he was promoted to Senior Vice President, Sales and Marketing. From 1992 to April 1999, Mr. Olson held
various positions, including Director of Strategic Business for the Electronics Business Group of MacDermid,
Inc. From 1982 to 1991, Mr. Olson served in a number of sales roles, including Nationa! Sales Manager for Olin
Corporation.

R. Steven Robinson has served as Senior Vice President of North American Operations since May 2005 and
previously as President of Merix San Jose since December 2004 upon its acquisition by Merix. Prior to the
acquisition, Mr. Robinson had served as President of Data Circuits since June 2000. From 1996 until June 2000,
Mr. Robinson served as Manufacturing Manager of Data Circuits. Data Circuits became a wholly owned
subsidiary of Merix upon the closing of Merix’ acquisition of Data Circuits in December 2004.

Stephen M. Going has served as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of Merix since September 2005.
From March 2002 to June 2004, Mr. Going served as Vice President and General Counsel of Merant plc. Prior to
joining Merant, Mr. Going was a Partner in the Portland, Oregon office of Perkins Coie LLP, serving emerging
growth companies.

Thomas R. Ingham has served as Vice President of Sales and Marketing of Merix since August 2005.

Mr. Ingham joined Merix in February 2005 as Director of Quick-Turn Sales. He has over 25 years of experience
in the industry and prior to joining Merix, he worked for Dynamic Details, Inc. for more than eight years. On
August 20, 2003, Dynamic Details, Inc. filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection. At such time, Mr. Ingham
was an executive officer of Dynamic Details, Inc.

NEW EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Kelly E. Lang has served as Vice President of Finance since July 31, 2006 and will serve as Chief Financial
Officer subsequent to the filing of the Merix Corporation 2006 Form 10-K. Prior to joining Merix, Mr. Lang
spent 7 years at Schnitzer Steel Industries holding such positions as Vice President for (Capital Investment and
Business Integration and Vice President and Corporate Controller. From 1990-1999 Mr. Lang served in a number
of senior finance roles in high technology and wood products companies. Mr. Lang began his career with Price
Waterhouse from 1986 to 1990. .

FORMER EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Janie S. Brown served as Senior Vice President since January 2001, Chief Financial Officer since August 1998
and Treasurer since September 1997 until she retired in January 2006. Ms. Brown served as Secretary from
September 1999 to October 2005, as Vice President from April 1996 to January 2001 and as Corporate
Controller from June 1995 until August 1998. From September 1982 until joining Merix in 1995, Ms. Brown
held various positions, including audit partner, with Deloitte & Touche LLP.
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PARTII

ITEM S. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED SHAREHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol “MERX.” The following table sets
forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices per share of our common stock as reported on the
Nasdaq Global Market.

High Low

Fiscal year 2006:

QUATTET 4 . .o $1425 $ 9.25

QUaAET 3 Lo e e 9.43 6.33

QUAITET 2 Lottt e e 6.48 5.07

Quarter 1 .................. B 7.46 5.56
Fiscal year 2005:

QUATTET 4 $11.80 $ 6.31

QUAITET 3 .o e e 12.85 8.80

QUATTET 2 ottt e e 11.12 9.47

QUarET b L. e e 12.00 8.65
Fiscal year 2004:

QUATET & . o $25.15 $ 9.30

QUANET 3 L. e 28.54 16.35

QUATTET 2 o ottt e e 21.35 12.01

Quarter I ... . e e 12.48 5.46

On August 22, 2006, the last reported sale price of our common stock on the Nasdaq Global Market was $11.99
per share. As of August 18, 2006, there were approximately 153 shareholders of record. As of August 18, 2006,
there were approximately 5,533 beneficial shareholders of our common stock.

Dividends Policy

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. Our Domestic Term Loan agreement
contains covenants that limit our ability to pay dividends, and accordingly, we currently intend to retain any
earnings for use in our business. We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

On May 16, 2006, we completed the sale of $60 million 4% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2013
and on May 24, 2006, the initial purchaser of these notes exercised its option to purchase an additional $10
million principal amount, bringing the total gross proceeds to $70 million (collectively referred to as the “Notes
due 2013”). The principal underwriters were Thomas Weisel Partners LLC. We used the net proceeds from the
sale of the Notes due 2013 to prepay our Asian Revolving Loans in the amount of $5 million, Asian Term Loans
in the amount of $25 million, to reduce approximately $10.4 million of the outstanding borrowings under our
Domestic Revolving Loans and to redeem our $25 million 6.5% Convertible Debenture due May 2007. The
Asian Revolving Loans and the Asian Term Loans were permitted to be prepaid without penalty. We paid $563
thousand to the note holders of the $25 million 6.5% Convertible Notes as an inducement to the note holders to
accept the early redemption of this debenture. Upon payment of the outstanding obligations under our Asian
Revolving Loans, Asian Term Loans, and $25 million 6.5% Convertible Debenture due May 2007, the
underlying agreements were terminated. See Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The Notes due 2013 mature on May 15, 2013 and bear interest at a rate of 4% per year. [nterest is payable in
arrears on May 15 and November 15 of each year, beginning on November 15, 2006. The Notes due 2013 are
convertible at the option of the holder into shares of our common stock at any time prior to maturity, unless the
Notes due 2013 are earlier redeemed or repurchased. The Notes due 2013 are convertibl at an initial conversion
rate of 65.8328 shares per $1,000 principle amount, subject to certain adjustments. This is the equivalent to a
conversion price of $15.19 per share. The Notes due 2013 are general unsecured obligat.ons and are subordinate
in right of payment to all of our existing and future senior debt, equal with any future unsecured debt that is not
senior debt. We expect to save up to $2.0 million in annual interest expense as a result of this refinancing
transaction and we will also benefit from a simplified capital structure, elimination of debt covenants and
extension of debt maturity to seven years.

The offer and sale of the Notes due 2013 were made in reliance on Rule 144 A under the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended. The underwriter represented that it was a qualified institutional buyer.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with “Item 7 — Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Item 8 — Consolidated Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data”.

For the 52-or 53-Week Fiscal Year Ended: .
May 27,2006 May 28, 20052  May 29,2004 May 31,2003  May 25, 2002
(In thousands, except per shar: data)

Statement of Operations Data:

Netsales ...........cccviiunon.. $308,982 $186,994 $156,400 $ 94,573 $ 86,500
Gross profit (108s) .. ......vvvnn.... $ 54,118 $ 23,789 $.19,975 $ (2399 $ (580)
Net income (1088) ..........coovn... $ 1,432 $ (2,610) $ 28 $(30,083)® $ (9,580)
Basic net income (loss) per share . ... .. $ 007 $ (0.14 $ — $ Q207H® § (0.68)
Diluted net income (loss) per share .... $ 0.07 $ (014 $ — $ 207N § (0.68)
Weighted average common shares

outstanding ..................... 19,519 19,224 16,194 14,519 14,081
Weighted average diluted shares

outstanding ..................... 19,715 19,224 16,830 14,519 14,081

As of:
May 27,20060) May 28,2005@ May 29,2004 May 31,2003  May 25, 2002
(In thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash ....... ... i $ 12,616 $ 9,130 $ 7,355 $ 4,001 $ 12,636
Short-term investments . ............. $ 18,525 $ 68,555 $117,175 $ 39,964 $ 9,294
Accounts receivable,net . ............ $ 75,379 $ 37,338 $ 30,051 $ 13,253 $ 10,808
Working capital ................... $ 59,544 $ 99,461®  $138,847® § 51,856@.® § 59,645
Totalassets ............cccovvennn.. $378,930 $253,941 $250,181 $141,560®  $161,202
Long-termdebt .................... $ 98,732 $ 27,000 $ 25,000 $ 25,000 $ 16,000
Shareholders’ equity .. ..... T, $202,125 $198,011 $198,415 $104,442  $132,799

(1) Amounts reflect the $120.3 million acquisition of Merix Asia. Consolidated statem:=nt of operations data
reflects consolidation of Merix Asia results effective September 29, 2005. See Note: 2 to the consolidated
financial statements included in this report.

(2) Amounts reflect the $44.0 million acquisition of Merix San Jose. Consolidated statement of operations data
reflects consolidation of Merix San Jose results effective December 10, 2004. See Note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements included in this report.
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(3) Amounts reflect a $16.6 million charge to establish a valuation allowance on deferred tax assets recorded
during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003. See Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements included in this report.

(4) Amounts reflect a $270 thousand reclassification of deferred financing costs from current to long-term.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

OVERVIEW

We are a leading global manufacturer of technologically advanced printed circuit boards for use in electronic
equipment. Our principal products are complex multi-layer rigid printed circuit boards, which are the platforms
used to interconnect microprocessors, integrated circuits and other components that are essential to the operation
of electronic products and systems.

During the past year, we expanded our global presence by acquiring Eastern Pacific Circuits Holdings Limited
and certain of its subsidiaries (“Merix Asia”), a Hong Kong based supplier of printed circuit boards. As part of
the acquisition, we acquired five printed circuit board manufacturing facilities in Asia, including four plants in
The People’s Republic of China and one plant in Hong Kong. Our global presence allows us to provide complete,
end-to-end solutions of complex, multi-layer PCBs — from quick-turn services prototype, pre-production to
volume production.

Merix’ global manufacturing strategy creates unique cross selling opportunities. Merix San Jose offers ultra-
quick turns across a spectrum of technological capability, which generates new volume opportunities in Asia and
Oregon. Merix Oregon focuses on the highest technology and delivers quick-turn services and lower-volume
pre-production runs and advanced technology volume business. Merix Asia provides moderate to advanced
technology, and lower-cost manufacturing solutions for volume customers. Our goal is to migrate production
between our facilities to match our capabilities. This strengthens our position with customers as a single,
seamless PCB provider, increases the ease of doing business with Merix, and allows us to maximize capacity in
all of our locations.

Our acquisitions (Merix Asia in September 2005 and Merix San Jose in December 2004) have significantly
expanded our sales representative network and diversified our customer base. We have added over 750 new
customers and expanded services into new vertical market segments.

If our acquisitions of Merix Asia and Merix San Jose had occurred on June 1, 2003, our pro forma consolidated
net sales and net loss for the fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004 would have been as follows:

(unaudited, in thousands, except per share data)

For the Year Ended:
May 27, May 28, May 29,
2006 2005 2004

Netsales ...t i e e $366,209 $337,161 $314,352
Netloss ..o v e $ (1,458) $(13,152) $ (4,852)
Net loss per share: ‘

Basic ... e $ (0.07) $ (0.68) $§ (0.30)

Diluted ......... ... $ (0.07) $ (0.68) $ (0.30)

Please read Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements for more detailed information. Pro forma financial
information is presented for illustrative purposes only and, as a result of the assumptions, estimates and
uncertainties, the pro forma financial information does not purport to describe the actual financial results that
would have been achieved had the acquisition in fact occurred at the beginning of the periods for which pro
forma financial information is given.
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RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Jobs Act”) was enected in the United States.
In December 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position SFAS No. 109-1, “Application of FASB Statement
No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, to the Tax Deduction on Qualified Production Activities Provided by the
American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (“FSP 109-1”). FSP 109-1 provides that the tax dzduction for income with
respect to qualified domestic production activities will be treated as a special deduction as described in

SFAS No. 109. As a result, this deduction has no effect on the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities
existing at the date of enactment. Rather, the impact of this deduction, if any, which was; effective January 1,
2005, will be reported in the period in which the deduction is claimed on the Company’s income tax returns.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs — An Amendment of ARB No. 43,
Chapter 4” (“SFAS 151”). SFAS 151 amends the guidance in ARB No. 43, Chapter 4, “Inventory Pricing,” to
clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted material
(spoilage) and requires that those items be recognized as current-period charges. Additionally, SFAS 151 requires
that the allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of conversion be based on the normal capacity of the
production facilities. SFAS 151 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005 and is required to be
adopted by the Company in its first quarter of the fiscal year 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the effect
that the adoption of SFAS 151 will have on its consolidated results of operations and finaacial condition.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R”),
which replaces SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” (“SFAS 123”), and supersedes
APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” SFAS 123R requires all share-based
payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the consolidated
financial statements based on their fair values. The effective date for the Company is fiscal 2007, beginning
May 28, 2006. On March 29, 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 107 (“SAB 107”), which provides the Staff’s views regarding interactions between SFAS 123R and certain
SEC rules and regulations, and provides interpretations of the valuation of share-based payments for public
companies. SAB 107 covers key topics related to the implementation of SFAS 123R, which include the valuation
models, expected volatility, expected option term, income tax effects of SFAS 123R, classification of stock-
based compensation cost, capitalization of compensation costs, and disclosure requirements. We are currently
evaluating the requirements of SFAS 123R and SAB 107. We estimate that the adoption of these
pronouncements will result in approximately $500 thousand of stock option expense being recorded under SFAS
No. 123(R) during the first quarter of the fiscal year 2007.

In June 2003, the FASB issued Statement No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections” (“SFAS 1547), a
replacement of APB Opinion No. 20, “Accounting Changes”, and Statement No. 3, “Reporting Accounting
Changes in Interim Financial Statements.” SFAS 154 changes the requirements for the accounting for and the
reporting of a change in accounting principle. Previously, most voluntary changes in accounting principles required
recognition by recording a cumulative effect adjustment within net income in the period of change. SFAS 154
requires retrospective application to prior periods’ consolidated financial statements, unless it is impracticable to
determine either the specific period effects or the cumulative effect of the change. SFAS 154 is effective for
accounting changes made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. The Company does not believe

SFAS 154 will have a material effect on its consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flow.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”
(“FIN 48). This interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an
enterprise’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with FASB No. 109, “Accounting for Income
Taxes” (“SFAS 109”). This interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold and measiurement attribute for the
financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
FIN 48 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2006. The Compeny will adopt FIN 48
during the first quarter of the fiscal year 2008 and will continue to evaluate the impact of FIN 48 on its
consolidated results of operations and financial condition.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations discusses the
Company’s consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements
requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect: (i) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities;

(it} the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements; (iii) and
the reported amounts of sales and expenses during the reporting period. On an on-going basis, we evaluate and
update our estimates and judgments, including those related to the collectibility of accounts receivable,
realizability of inventories, estimated costs of warranty obligations, impairment of long-lived assets, estimated
obligation associated with the retirement of assets, estimated legal expenses, valuation of goodwill, valuation of
identifiable intangible assets and valuation of deferred income tax assets. We base our estimates and judgments
on historical experience and on various other factors that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis for our judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
conditions. We believe the following critical accounting policies, among other policies, affect our more
significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue upon the shipment of our products to the customer provided that we have received a
purchase order, the price is fixed, title has transferred to the customer, collection of the resulting receivable is
reasonably assured, product returns are reasonably estimable, there are no further customer acceptance
requirements and there are no remaining significant obligations. Provisions for estimated sales returns and
adjustments are made at the point of revenue recognition based on historical experience. Sales adjustments are
charged against consolidated net sales, disputed freight charges are charged against cost of sales, and other
customer accommodations are typically charged against operating expenses. Other customer accommodations
represent additional costs incurred beyond the sale of the product to uphold the quality of the products sold and
to maintain customer satisfaction.

Consignment sales are recognized at the time that all criteria of revenue recognition described above have been
satisfied by the consignee.

Accounts Receivable

We make ongoing estimates relating to the collectibility of the accounts receivable balance and we maintain a
reserve for estimated losses resulting from the inability of the customers to make required payments. In
determining the amount of the reserve, we consider our historical bad debt experience, ongoing credit evaluations
of customers and changes in our customers’ businesses. Considerable management judgment and assumptions
are necessary to identify uncollectible receivables, and accordingly, actual results could vary significantly from
such estimates. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in their inability to make
payments, a larger reserve might be required.

Segment Reporting

We have three reportable business segments defined by geographic locations in accordance with SFAS No. 131
“Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” (“SFAS 131”): (1) Merix Oregon,

(2) Merix San Jose and (3) Merix Asia. Our operating segments are evidence of the internal structure of our
organization. Each segment operates predominately in the same industry with production facilities that produce
similar, customized products for our customers. Our production facilities, sales management and chief decision-
makers for all processes are managed by the same executive team.

Foreign Currency Translation and Foreign Currency Transactions

We translate the consolidated financial statements of our foreign subsidiaries in accordance with SFAS No. 52
“Foreign Currency Translation” (“SFAS 527), which requires that assets, liabilities and operations of a foreign
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entity be measured using the functional currency of that entity. The functional currency of our foreign
subsidiaries is the U.S. Dollar, with the exception of the foreign sales offices, which use their respective local
currencies as the functional currency, and certain subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China, which use the
Hong Kong Dollar as the functional currency.

Our reporting currency is the U.S. Dollar. For those foreign subsidiaries whose books of record are not
maintained in their respective functional currency, remeasurement into the functional currency is required before
translation into the reporting currency. Assets and liabilities are translated into U.S. Dollars at exchange rates in
effect at the balance sheet date and revenues and expenses are translated into the U.S. Dollar at weighted average
exchange rates during the period. Foreign currency translation adjustments resulting from the translation of
foreign functional currency financial statements into U.S. Dollars are included as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive income within shareholders’ equity.

Transactions involving a currency other than the functional currency generate a gain or loss from the fluctuation
of the currency relative to the functional currency and are recorded in the statement of cperations during the
respective period in which they occur. We currently do not utilize any derivative instrurnents to mitigate these
foreign transaction gains and losses. Net foreign currency transaction losses were $720 thousand during the fiscal
year ended May 27, 2006. Net foreign currency transaction gains and losses were insigrificant for the fiscal years
ended May 28, 2005 and May 29, 2004.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Our cash and cash equivalents represent cash and short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less at the date of purchase. The carrying amounts reflected in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets for cash and cash equivalents approximate fair value due to the short maturities.

Short-Term Investments

In accordance with SFAS No. 115 “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities” (“SFAS
115”), investments in auction rate securities are classified as available-for-sale short-term investments.
Available-for-sale securities are recorded at fair value, as determined by quoted market prices, with unrealized
holding gains and losses, net of tax, classified as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. Upon sale of the
investments, any previously unrealized holding gains or losses are recognized in the statement of operations. The
specific identification method is used to determine the cost of securities sold. We review short-term investments
on a periodic basis to evaluate whether such securities have experienced an other-than-femporary decline in fair
value. If an other-than-temporary decline in value exists, an impairment charge is recorded within the statement
of operations as the difference between the carrying value of the impaired investments and the net realizable
value of the impaired investments.
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On February 26, 2005, we reclassified our investments in auction rate securities from cash and cash equivalents
to short-term investments for the fiscal year 2005 and all prior periods. Corresponding adjustments to the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the fiscal year 2004 were made to reflect the gross purchases and sales
of these securities as investing activities, rather than as a component of cash and cash equivalents. The change in
classification does not affect cash flows from operations or from financing activities for any period previously
reported in the consolidated statements of cash flows, nor does it affect net income or loss for any period
previously reported in the consolidated statements of operations.

(in thousands) (in thousands)
As Reported As Reclassified
Cash and Cash and
Cash Short-Term Cash Short-Term
Equivalents Investments Total Equivalents Investments Total
May 29,2004 .................... $124,530 $ — $124,530 $ 7,355 $117,175 $124,530
May 31,2003 .......... ... ... $ 42,451 $1,514 $ 43965 $ 4,001 $ 39964 $ 43,965
(in thousands) (in thousands)
As Reported As Reclassified
Net cash Net cqsh
Investments i::jggtil:g Investments inuj:gﬁl:: g

Purchases Maturities activities Purchases Maturities activities

For the Yedr Ended:
May 29,2004 .................... $ — $1,514 % 12,170 $168,575 $ 91,364 $ 90,895

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market and include materials, labor and manufacturing overhead.
Cost is determined by standard cost, which approximates the first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis.

Provisions for inventories are made to reduce excess inventories to their estimated net realizable values, as
necessary. A change in customer demand for inventory is the primary indicator for reductions in inventory
carrying values. We record inventory provisions based on historical experiences with customers, the ability to
utilize inventory in other programs, the ability to redistribute inventory back to the suppliers, and current and
forecasted demand for the inventory.

We sell inventory on a consignment basis in the United States and in Asia. Consignment inventory is recorded as
inventory until the product is pulled from the consignment inventories held by our consignment customers and all
rights and rewards of ownership of the consignment inventory have transferred.

Property, Plant and Equipment, net

With the exception of property, plant and equipment acquired through a business acquisition, property, plant and
equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Property, plant and equipment acquired through a
business acquisition are accounted for as a purchase initially recorded at fair value based upon the allocated
purchase prices at the date of acquisition. Costs of improvements, including related interest and qualifying
internal costs, are capitalized. Costs of improvements include major improvements to existing property, plant and
equipment and major improvements in management information systems. Maintenance and repair costs are
charged to expense as incurred, while improvements that extend the useful life of the assets are capitalized. As
property and equipment is sold or retired, the applicable cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from
the asset accounts and any gain or loss thereon is recorded. Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets, which approximate up to 40 years for
buildings, and 3 to 10 years for machinery and equipment.
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For Merix Cregon and Merix San Jose, leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the assets
economic life or the contractual term of the lease. Optional renewal periods are included in the contractual term
of the lease if renewal is reasonably assured at the time the asset is placed in service.

For Merix Asia, leasehold improvements are amortized over the economic useful life of ten years. The
contractual terms of some of Merix Asia’s leases are two years with no stated options to renew the leases.
However, as it is reasonably assured that the leases will be renewed and we have intentions to operate the leased
manufacturing facilities indefinitely, the tenant improvements within the leased facilities are amortized over a
pertod longer than our current underlying contractual lease obligations.

Asset Retirement Obligations

In accordance with SFAS No. 143 *Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (“SFAS 143”), we recognize
the fair value of an asset retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair
value can be made. The present value of the estimated asset retirement obligation is capitalized as part of the
carrying amount of the long-lived asset and allocated to expense over the useful life of the asset. The liability is
accreted at the end of each period through charges to operating expenses. If the asset retirement obligation is
settled for other than the carrying amount of the liability, we will recognize a gain or loss upon settlement.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”
(“SFAS 144”), our long-lived assets to be held and used in the business are reviewed for impairment when
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. We consider a trend of unsatisfactory
operating results that are not in line with management’s expectations to be its primary indicator of potential
impairment. When an indicator of impairment is noted, assets are evaluated for impairment at the lowest level for
which there are identifiable cash flows. If the sum of expected undiscounted future cash flows is less than the
carrying amount of the asset, a loss is recognized based on the amount by which the canrying value exceeds the
fair value of the asset. Fair value is determined primarily using the anticipated cash flows discounted at a rate
commensurate with the risk involved. Losses on assets to be disposed of are determined in a similar manner,
except that the fair values are reduced for disposal costs. Considerable management judzment and assumptions
are necessary to identify indicators of impairment and to estimate discounted future cash flows. Accordingly,
actual results could vary significantly from such estimates.

During 2006, we evaluated long-lived assets for impairment and determined that certain long-lived assets were
impaired. As a result, we recorded a $477 thousand non-cash charge to operating expense relating to the
impairment of long-lived assets. The $477 thousand impairment charge included (1) a $146 thousand non-cash
charge relating to the impairment of long-lived assets held for sale (See Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements) and (2) a $331 thousand impairment charge relating to manufacturing equipment that was considered
impaired. The $146 thousand non-cash impairment charge was determined based upon « third party firm
commitment to purchase the underlying facility at a price lower than our cost basis. The $331 thousand non-cash
impairment charge is representative of the impairment of an asset that is no longer being utilized by us. There
were no impairment charges recorded during the fiscal year 2005.

In May 2006, we made a decision to sell certain long-lived assets of the Company. In accordance with

SFAS 144, we recorded such long-lived assets as current assets held for sale. We are currently attempting to sell
(1) a building located near our Forest Grove, Oregon campus bundled with a parcel of land on which the building
is located, and (2) two additional parcels of land adjacent to the facility in Forest Grove, Oregon. In August 2005,
we recorded an impairment charge of $146 thousand on the building in Forest Grove, Oregon, as discussed
above. In management’s opinion, the building and land for sale have net realizable valuss that approximate their
carrying value at May 27, 2006.
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Leasehold Land Use Rights, Net

Leasehold land use rights, net represents amounts paid to lease land in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China. Amounts are paid at the beginning of the lease term and are amortized on the straight-line method over
the remaining period of the initial SO-year lease term.

Identifiable Intangible Assets and Goodwill

In accordance with SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142”), goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized, rather they are measured for impairment at least annually
in the fourth quarter, or when events indicate that an impairment exists. As required by SFAS 142, in our
impairment test of goodwill, we compare the fair value of the applicable reporting unit to its carrying value. If
the carrying value of the reporting entity exceeds the estimate of fair value, we calculate the impairment as the
excess of the carrying value of the goodwill over its implied fair value. In the impairment tests for indefinite-
lived intangible assets, we compare the estimated fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible assets to the
carrying value. If the carrying value exceeds the estimate of fair value, we calculate impairment as the excess of
the carrying value over the estimate of fair value.

Intangible assets that are determined to have definite lives are amortized over their useful lives and are measured
for impairment only when events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired in
accordance with SFAS 144, as discussed above,

Warranty

We generally warrant our products for a period of up to twelve months from the point at which the rights and
rewards of ownership of the product is transferred to the customer. However, our Merix Asia facility generally
honors warranty claims for a period of up to three years from the point at which the product is sold. We record a
liability for the estimated cost of the warranty upon transfer of ownership of our products to the customer. The
warranty liability is calculated based on our historical experience of expenses resulting from the warranty
program for the twelve preceding months for Merix Oregon and Merix San Jose and for the preceding three year
period for Merix Asia. '

Legal Contingencies Reserve

In accordance with SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies” (“SFAS 57), all legal contingencies, which are
Judged to be both probable and estimable, are recorded as liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets based on
our best estimates of the costs of resolving or disposing of the underlying claims. We regularly monitor our
estimates in light of current developments and changes in circumstances and we adjust our legal reserves
accordingly. If no particular amount is determined to constitute our best estimate of a particular legal
contingency, we will disclose a range of estimates of the costs of resolving or disposing of the underlying claim
and accrue for the low end of the range of costs, unless otherwise disclosed. Legal reserves are expensed in the
period in which they occur. Considerable management judgment and assumptions are necessary to estimate legal
contingency reserves. Accordingly, actual results could vary significantly from such estimates.

It is our policy to accrue legal fees when it is probable that we will have to defend ourself against known claims
or allegations and we can reasonably estimate the amount of anticipated expense.

Engineering Expense

Expenditures for engineering of products and manufacturing processes are expensed as incurred.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

In accordance with SFAS No. 130 “Reporting Comprehensive Income” (“SFAS 130”), we record foreign
currency translation adjustments resulting from the translation of foreign functional currency financial statements
into U.S. Dollars as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income within shareholders’ equity.
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Income Taxes

We account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This approach requires the recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences
between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to be applicable to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Valuation allowances
are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts expected to be realized.

Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic net income (loss) per common share is calculated by dividing net income by the vieighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted net income (loss) per common share is calculated by
dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average outstanding shares, assuming conversion of all dilutive stock
options and awards.

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for stock-based employee compensation arrangements in accordance with provisions of Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB No. 25”) and we comply
with the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compernisation” (“SFAS 123”)
and SFAS No. 148 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure” (“SFAS 148™). In
accordance with APB No. 25, no compensation expense is recorded if stock options are granted with an exercise
price equal to the market value of the underlying stock as of the date of grant. Income tax benefits, if any, related
to stock option exercises are added to the recorded value of common stock. Adjustments for forfeitures are made
as they occur.

On December 16, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) finalized SFAS No. 123R “Share-
Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R”), which, after the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) amended the
compliance dates on April 15, 2005, will be effective for our fiscal year beginning on May 28, 2006. The new
standard will require us to record compensation expense for stock options using a fair value method. On

March 29, 2005, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 (“SAB 107”), which provides the Staff’s
views regarding interactions between SFAS 123R and certain SEC rules and regulations and provides
interpretations of the valuation of share-based payments for public companies. We are currently evaluating
SFAS 123R and SAB 107. We estimate that the adoption of these pronouncements will result in approximately
$500 thousand of stock option expense being recorded during the first quarter of the fiscal year 2007.

On May 25, 2005, our Board of Directors accelerated vesting of outstanding “‘underwaier” employee stock
options with exercise prices greater than $8.00 per share. Approximately 1.3 million options, or approximately
39% of our total outstanding options as of May 25, 2005, with varying remaining vesting schedules, were subject
to this acceleration and became immediately exercisable. As a result of this acceleration, we expect to reduce the
amount of compensation expense recorded due to the effects of SFAS 123R. We currently estimate a reduction in
stock-based compensation expense associated with this acceleration of approximately $329 thousand for the
fiscal year 2007 and an additional $300 thousand in total for subsequent years. This acceleration only relates to
specific underwater options, and accordingly, is not representative of the overall impact that SFAS 123R will
have on the results of our operations, our cash flows or our liquidity upon implementation of SFAS 123R.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Results of operations information in thousands of dollars and as a percentage of consolidated net sales are as
follows:

For the Year Ended: (amounts in thousands) Percentage of Consolidated Net Sales
May 27,2006 May 28,2005 May 29,2004 May 27,2006 May 28,2005 May 29,2004
Netsales ................. $308,982 $186,994 $156,400 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of sales ....... P 254,864 163,205 136,425 82.5 87.3 87.2
Gross profit .............. 54,118 23,789 19,975 17.5 12.7 12.8
Operating expenses:
Engineering .......... 6,655 6,774 6,047 2.1 3.6 39
Selling, general and '
administrative .. .. ... 33,333 18,278 12,773 10.8 98 82
Amortization of
identifiable
intangibles ......... 3,106 1,374 — 1.0 0.7 —
Severance and
impairment charges .. 1,135 —_ — 0.4 — —_
Total operating
expenses ....... 44,249 26,426 18,820 14.3 14.1 12.1
Operating income (loss) . . . .. 9,869 (2,637) 1,155 . 32 (1.4) 0.7
Debt extinguishment
charge ................. (1,820) — — 0.6) — —
Interestincome ............ 1,834 2,013 728 0.6 1.1 0.5
Interest expense ........... (6,059) (1,681) (1,636) 2.0) 0.9) (1.0)
Other expense, net ......... (1,560) (297) (219) 0.5) 0.2) 0.2)
Income (loss) before taxes
and minority interests . . . .. 2,264 (2,602) 28 0.7 1.4) —
Income tax expense ........ 460 8 — 0.1 — —_—

Income (loss) before minority ‘

interests ............... 1,804 (2,610) 28 0.6 (1.4) —
Minority interests in net

income of consolidated

subsidiaries, net of tax .. .. 372 — —_ 0.1 — —

Net income (10ss) .......... $ 1,432 $ (26100 $ 28 0.5% 1.9)% — %

Note 1 — Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements for disaggregated financial information
relating to our operating segments. :

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEARS 2006 AND 2005
Net Sales

Consolidated net sales were $309.0 million during the fiscal year 2006, an increase of 65.2% over consolidated
net sales of $187.0 million during the fiscal year 2005. The increase was due primarily to (1) the inclusion of
Merix Asia sales of $83.5 million during the fiscal year 2006 and (2) incremental sales of approximately $19.0
million resulting from Merix San Jose being included in the results of operations for a full year during the fiscal
year 2006 as compared to approximately six months during the fiscal year 2005. The remaining increase in sales
is a result of increased demand for both volume and quick-turn services business at Merix Oregon. Unit
shipments at Merix Oregon were 23% higher during the fiscal year 2006 as compared to the fiscal year 2005.
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Unit shipments are defined as the number of panel layers included within a circuit board. The increase in unit
shipments is due to the addition of new customers, increased business from existing customers as an overall
market demand increase during the fiscal year 2006, and increased layer count resulting from higher technology.
Average pricing at Merix Oregon decreased by approximately 9% during the fiscal year 2006 as compared to the
fiscal year 2005. The decrease in average pricing during the fiscal year 2006 as compared to the fiscal year 2005
was due to decreased average pricing for full lead time, volume and quick-turn services orders.

Sales attributed to our five largest OEM customers, which vary from year to year, comprised 39%, 59%, and
68% of the Company’s consolidated net sales during the fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 20104, respectively. Net
consolidated sales to one OEM customer individually represented 20% of consolidated net sales during the fiscal
year 2006. Comparatively, net consolidated sales to two OEM customers individually represented 29% and 16%
of consolidated net sales during the fiscal year 2005 and 35% and 15% of consolidated net sales during the fiscal
year 2004. We expect to continue to depend upon a small number of customers for a significant portion of our
consolidated net sales for the foreseeable future. The loss of or decrease in orders from one or more major
customers could materially reduce our sales. See discussion surrounding our significant customers within Item 1.
BUSINESS - Markets and Customers.

Sales attributed to OEMs include sales made through their electronic manufacturing service providers. The
percentage of our consolidated net sales made through electronic manufacturing service: providers was
approximately 59% and 65% during the fiscal years 2006 and 2005, respectively, and we expect these sales to
continue to represent a significant portion of our consolidated net sales. Although our contractual relationship is
with the electronic manufacturing service provider, most of our shipments to electronic manufacturing service
providers are directed by OEMs that negotiate product pricing and volumes directly with us. In addition, we are
on the approved vendor list of several electronic manufacturing service providers and are awarded discretionary
orders directly from some of them.

At the request of a number of significant customers, we have implemented consigned inventory programs. In
these programs, we produce and ship products to the customer, but retain ownership until the customer elects to
take delivery. Generally, the customer commits to accept delivery within a specified period of time, typically 8 to
13 weeks, but is not committed to take delivery at any particular time within that period. We record a sale only
after the customer accepts delivery. These programs have reduced our ability to accurately forecast sales on a
period to period basis and have also had a negative impact on our compressed lead time volume sales.
Additionally, the programs have increased our levels of finished goods inventory.

Gross Profit

Gross profit as a percentage of consolidated net sales was 17.5% and 12.7% for the fiscal years 2006 and 2003,
respectively. The increase in gross profit is primarily due to increased sales volume due to stronger market
demand during the fiscal year 2006, which resulted in increased utilization of production capacity. Higher
utilization of capacity increases gross margin because it results in a lower cost per unit produced. The increase in
gross profit was offset by purchase accounting adjustments of $3.9 million at Merix Asia, employee incentive
compensation of $3.2 million and the effect of the 9% decrease in average pricing at Merix Oregon.

Engineering

Engineering expenses were $6.7 million, or 2.2% of consolidated net sales, for the fiscal year ended May 27,
2006, as compared to $6.8 million, or 3.6% of consolidated net sales, for the fiscal year ended May 28, 2005. The
slight decrease in engineering expense in absolute dollars is due to the following: (1) a reduction in headcount
causing a decrease of approximately $803 thousand in related labor expenses, (2) a $95& thousand increase in-
engineering expenses as a result of acquiring Merix Asia in fiscal 2006, and (3) a $324 thousand increase in
engineering expenses due to the acquisition of Merix San Jose in December 2005.
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Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses were $33.4 million, or 10.8% of consolidated net sales, for the fiscal
year ended May 27, 2006, as compared to $18.3 million, or 9.8% of consolidated net sales, during the fiscal year
ended May 28, 2005. The increase in the amount of expense is largely attributed to the addition of $9.8 million of
expenses from as a result of acquiring Merix Asia during the fiscal year 2006, as well as incremental expenses of
approximately $3.0 million due to the inclusion of a full fiscal year of expense included in the results of Merix
San Jose during the fiscal year 2006. In addition, labor expenses increased in Merix Oregon by approximately
$1.8 million and sales commissions paid by Merix Oregon increased by $1.1 million during the fiscal year 2006
due to increased sales levels. The fiscal year 2006 also included restructuring charges of $1.1 million as a result
of actions taken during the first fiscal quarter. These charges were offset by $768 thousand of expenses related to
the abandonment of a business opportunity in Asia in fiscal 2005.

Amortization of Identifiable Intangibles

Amortization of identifiable intangibles was $3.1 million, or 1.0% of consolidated net sales, for the fiscal year
ended May 27, 2006, as compared to $1.4 million, or 0.7% of consolidated net sales during the fiscal year ended
May 28, 2005. The increase is due primarily to the inclusion of a full fiscal year of amortization relating to the
Merix San Jose intangibles in fiscal 2006 compared to a half year during the fiscal year 2005, which resulted in
increased amortization of $1.3 million. The increase is also due to $419 thousand in amortization included in
Merix Asia’s results for fiscal 2006.

Severance and Impairment Charges

Severance and impairment charges were $1.1 million, or 0.4% of consolidated net sales, for the fiscal year ended
May 27, 2006. During the first quarter of the fiscal year 2006, we executed cost reduction actions that included a
reduction in approximately 130 employee positions across our manufacturing and support organizations,
predominantly in Oregon. We recorded a charge of $658 thousand related to severance costs and $477 thousand
related to the impairment of certain fixed assets.

Debt Extinguishment Charge

We recorded a debt extinguishment charge of $1.8 million, or 0.6% of consolidated net sales, during the fiscal
year ended May 27, 2006 related to the early redemption of our $25 million 6.5% Convertible Debenture due

May 2007 and the prepayment of our $25 million Asia Term Loan and the prepayment of our $5 million Asia
Revolving Loan.

Interest Income

Interest income decreased to $1.8 million, or 0.6% of consolidated net sales, for the fiscal year ended May 27,
2006 from to $2.0 million, or 1.1% of consolidated net sales, for the fiscal year ended May 28, 2005 due to the
reduction in available cash for investing used to fund the Merix Asia acquisition, largely offset by higher yields
on invested balances due to higher interest rates.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased significantly to $6.1 million, or 2.0% of consolidated net sales, for the fiscal year
ended May 27, 2006 from to $1.7 million, or 0.9% of consolidated net sales, for the fiscal year ended May 28,
2005 due to additional debt entered into to finance the Merix Asia acquisition.

Other Expense, Net

Other expense, net increased to $1.6 million, or 0.5% of consolidated net sales, for the fiscal year ended May 27,
2006 from to $297 thousand, or 0.2% of consolidated net sales, for the fiscal year ended May 28, 2005 due
primarily to net foreign currency transaction losses of $720 thousand incurred by Merix Asia.

Income Taxes _

The provision for income taxes was $460 thousand during the fiscal year 2006 and $8 thousand during the fiscal
year 2005. During the fiscal year 2006, our book income before income taxes of $2.3 million consisted of $9.0
million of pre-tax income in the United States and $6.7 million of foreign pre-tax loss. The income tax expense
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of $460 thousand during the fiscal year 2006 was primarily the result of our mix of profits (losses) earned in
various tax jurisdictions with a broad range of income tax rates, largely offset by a release of a valuation
allowance reserved against deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets consist primarily of riet operating loss
carryforwards in several tax jurisdictions, credit carryovers and cumulative timing differences between book and
tax income. A valuation allowance is recorded against deferred tax assets when evidence suggests that some
portion, or all, of the deferred tax assets may not be realized. We have recorded a full veluation allowance against
our net deferred tax assets based on our assessment of all evidence, including the existence of cumulative losses.

The provision for income taxes for 2006 is equivalent to a 20% effective tax rate and differs from tax computed
at the federal statutory rate primarily due to the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards, Federal alternative
minimum tax and minimum taxes in certain tax jurisdictions.

We will provide for United States income taxes on the earnings of foreign subsidiaries if foreign subsidiaries
have positive taxable earnings and they are not considered indefinitely reinvested outside of the United States.
We indefinitely reinvests the cumulative undistributed earnings of its foreign subsidiaries. At May 27, 2006, the
cumulative earnings and profits of foreign subsidiaries was a taxable deficit. There were no dividends from
foreign subsidiaries during 2006. Therefore, no US income tax on earnings of foreign subsidiaries was provided.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEARS 2005 AND 2604
Net Sales

Consolidated net sales were $187.0 million in fiscal 2005, an increase of 20% over consolidated net sales of
$156.4 million in fiscal 2004. The increase was due to an increase in unit shipments partially offset by a decrease
in average pricing. Fiscal year 2005 included $13.3 million of revenue generated by Merix San Jose from the
date of the Merix San Jose acquisition through May 28, 2005. Unit shipments were 25% higher during the fiscal
year 2005 than the fiscal year 2004. The increase in unit shipments is due to the addition of new customers,
increased business from existing customers and the acquisition of Merix San Jose. Average pricing decreased by
approximately 4% during the fiscal 2005 as compared to the fiscal year 2004. The decrease in average pricing
during the fiscal year 2005 as compared to the fiscal year 2004 was due to pricing pressures within the industry
as well as a reduction in quick-turn services and premium revenues as a percent of consolidated net sales.
Consolidated net sales of quick-turn services and premium revenues (products that typically command a higher
average sales price than standard volume orders as a result of rapid prototype manufacturing or compressed lead-
time volume orders), comprised approximately 34% of consolidated net sales during the fiscal year 2005 as
compared to approximately 40% during the fiscal year 2004. While consolidated net salzs of quick-turn services
and premium revenues consisted principally of compressed lead-time volume orders in fiscal 2004, consolidated
net sales of these services in fiscal 2005 consisted of a relatively higher mix of quick-turn services prototype
orders. The increase in the level of quick-turn services prototype orders is primarily the result of our focus to
grow this business and the acquisition of Merix San Jose.

Sales attributed to our five largest original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) customers comprised 59% and
68% of consolidated net sales during the fiscal years 2005 and 2004, respectively. Two {DEM customers
individually represented 29% and 16% of consolidated net sales during the fiscal year ended May 28, 2005 and
35% and 15% of consolidated net sales during the fiscal year ended May 29, 2004. We expect to continue to
depend upon a small number of customers for a significant portion of our consolidated ret sales for the
foreseeable future.

Sales attributed to OEMs include sales made through their electronic manufacturing service providers. The
percentage of our consolidated net sales made through electronic manufacturing service providers was
approximately 65% and 68% during the fiscal years 2005 and 2004, respectively, and w:z expect these sales to
continue to represent a significant portion of our consolidated net sales.
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Gross Margin

Gross margin as a percentage of consolidated net sales was 13% during both the fiscal year 2005 and the fiscal
year 2004. During the fiscal year 20085, a decrease in gross margin from lower capacity utilization as a result of
capacity expansion activities was primarily offset by a higher margin sales mix from sales by Merix San Jose.
Cost of goods sold in fiscal 2005 reflects a full year of incremental direct and indirect cost of expanded capacity,
due largely to the commencement of production at our Wood Village facility during the fourth quarter of the
fiscal year 2004, and the additional fixed overhead resulting from the Merix San Jose acquisition. While capacity
expansion is critical for future growth and has facilitated our increase in unit production, it has increased our cost
structure and caused a decline in the overall utilization of our installed capacity during the fiscal year 2005 as
compared to the fiscal year 2004. Lower capacity utilization reduces gross margin because it results in a higher
cost per unit produced. In addition, we have experienced increases in supplier pricing on certain materials that we
have not been able to pass through to customers. Merit increases were reinstated during the fourth quarter of the
fiscal year 2004, which increased salary expense. The negative effects on gross margin from lower capacity
utilization, increased materials pricing and merit increases were largely offset by higher margins in the sales mix
provided by Merix San Jose.

Engineering

Engineering expenses were $6.8 million, or 4% of consolidated net sales, during the fiscal year 2005 as
compared to $6.0 million, or 4% of consolidated net sales, during the fiscal year 2004. The increase in
engineering expense in absolute dollars is primarily due to the capitalization of $336 thousand of qualified
internal engineering costs related to our capacity expansion project during the fiscal year 2004 that did not occur
during the fiscal year 2005, as well as the addition of $203 thousand of expenses from Merix San Jose.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses were $18.3 million, or 10% of consolidated net sales, and $12.8
million, or 8% of consolidated net sales, during the fiscal years 2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase in the
amount of expense is largely attributed to the addition of $2.3 million of expenses from Merix San Jose, as well
as $768 thouand of expenses related to the abandonment of a business opportunity in Asia. The fiscal year 2005
also included incremental legal fees of $375 thousand from the prior year related to the defense of securities
litigation and increased expenses of $980 thousand for audit and consulting fees related to compliance with the
internal control provisions of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. In addition, merit increases were reinstated
during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year 2004 which increased salary expense.

Interest Income

Interest income increased to $2.0 million during the fiscal year 2005 from $728 thousand during the fiscal year
2004 due to higher yield on investment balances as a result of higher interest rates during the fiscal year 2005.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased slightly to $1.7 million during the fiscal year 2005 from $1.6 million during the fiscal
year 2004. Interest primarily consists of interest on the $25.0 million convertible debenture.

Other Expense, Net

Other expense, net, increased slightly to $297 thousand during the fiscal year 2005, compared to $219 thousand
during the fiscal year 2004.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes for the fiscal years 2005 and 2004 represent our minimum state income tax and
foreign tax obligations. Our effective income tax rate was zero for the fiscal years 2005 and 2004 due to
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adjustments to a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets that was established as a result of an
accumulation of net operating loss carryforwards. We incurred additional net operating tax losses during the
fiscal years 2005 and 2004, and accordingly, we increased our gross deferred tax asset and the corresponding
valuation allowance, which resulted in no income tax benefit for these periods.

LIQUIDITY

On May 27, 2006, the end of the fiscal year 2006, we had $12.6 million in cash and cash equivalents and $18.5
million in short term investments. The principal sources of liquidity during the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006
were the proceeds from new borrowings (as discussed below) and the maturity of short term investments. During
the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006, we used cash principally to finance the acquisition of Merix Asia and for
capital expenditures.

Cash provided by operating activities for the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006 was $16.0 million, which primarily
reflects net income of $1.4 million, adjusted for $21.7 million of depreciation and amortization, $3.9 million of
inventory purchase adjustments, $1.9 million of interest added to long-term borrowings and $1.3 million of
non-cash debt extinguishment charges (net of $563 thousand of debt prepayment penaliies), offset by a net
increase in working capital accounts of $16.4 million, excluding cash and cash equivalents and short-term
investments. The increase in working capital, excluding cash and investments, is primarily the result of increased
sales and production capacity resulting from the acquisition of Merix Asia.

Cash used in investing activities for the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006 was $61.1 million. Cash used in
investing activities during the fiscal year 2006 comprised primarily of the $103.9 million net expenditure
resulting from the acquisition of Merix Asia. Additionally, we invested in $7.3 million of capital expenditures for
manufacturing equipment and we sold a net $50.0 million of our short-term investments to fund the acquisition
of Merix Asia.

Cash provided by financing activities for the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006 was $48.6 million as compared to
$513 thousand for the fiscal year ended May 28, 2005. Cash flows from financing activities for the fiscal year
2006 primarily consists of $143.2 million of proceeds from long-term borrowings, offsct by $20.7 million of
principal payments on long-term borrowings, $67 million of early retirement or redemgtion of long-term
borrowings and $8.1 million of deferred financing costs. In September 2005, we entered into Asian Term Loans
totaling $25 million, Asian Revolving Loans totaling $5 million, a Domestic Term Loan of $16.5 million, a
Domestic Revolving Line of Credit of up to $38.5 million and a Subordinated Note Payable in the amount of $11
million to fund the acquisition of Merix Asia. In May 2006, we completed the sale of $70 million 4%
Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2013. We used the net proceeds from the sale to prepay our Asian
Revolving Loans in the amount of $5 million, Asian Term Loans in the amount of $25 million, to reduce
approximately $10.4 million of outstanding borrowings under the Domestic. Revolving Loans and to redeem our
$25 million 6.5% Convertible Debenture due May 2007.

CAPITAL RESOURCES

On April 14, 2005, we entered into a Master Sale and Purchase Agreement (the “Agreeiment’) with Eastern
Pacific Circuits Holdings Limited (“EPCH”). Pursuant to the Agreement, we acquired the operations of Eastern
Pacific Circuits, Ltd. and certain of its subsidiaries (now referred to as “Merix Asia”), a Hong Kong based
supplier of printed circuit boards, for a total purchase price of $120.3 million, (1) subject to adjustment based on
changes in working capital, (2) subject to an additional earn out payment of up to $13 million if the business
meets certain adjusted EBITDA targets in calendar 2005, and (3) subject to revised purchase price negotiations
based on a revised Merix Asia business valuation. We are continuing to work with EPCH to finalize the purchase
price; however, we are currently unable to estimate the date on which the purchase price will be finalized. The
acquisition was financed with a combination of approximately $33.3 million of available cash, term loans,
including the assumption of certain EPCH debt, and revolving credit borrowings under two new credit facilities
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totaling approximately $71.2 million, and the issuance of an $11.0 million subordinated promissory note to
EPCH. The purchase price included $5.3 million of direct acquisition costs, which were funded with available
cash. The term loans and revolving credit borrowings were refinanced in May 2006 (See Note 10 to consolidated
financial statements). Refer to Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements for further discussion of the
acquisition.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following summarizes our significant contractual obligations at May 27, 2006 and the effect of such on its
liquidity and cash flows in future periods.

(in thousands)
Payments due by period
Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
Total 1 year years years § years
Contractual Obligations
Asset retirement obligations - expected cash payments,
adjusted for inflation® . ........ ... ... ..., $ 368 $ — $§ — $ — § 3,689
Long-Term Debt:@
Convertible debenture . .............. ... 70,000 — - —_ 70,000
Domestictermloan .....................vvn... 15,125 2,750 5,500 6,875 —
Notespayable ........ ... .. ... oo, 12,000 3,750 8,250 —_ —
Expected interestondebt ........... ... ... ..., 21,497 3,661 6,624 5,604 5,608
Capital lease obligations® ......................... 1,839 1,311 528 — —
Operating lease obligations® ....................... 5,176 1,700 2,040 1,383 53
Capital purchase obligations® ...................... 8,216 8,216 — — —
Total ........... e $137,542 $21,388 $22,942 $13,862 $79,350

(1) For further discussion surrounding asset retirement obligations, refer to Note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(2) For further discussion surrounding debt obligations, refer to Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(3) For further discussion surrounding lease obligations, refer to Note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(4) For further discussion surrounding commitments, refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

On April 14, 2005, we entered an Agreement with EPCH whereby we acquired the operations of Eastern Pacific
Circuits, Ltd. and certain of its subsidiaries, a Hong Kong based supplier of printed circuit boards, for a total
purchase price of $120.3 million, (1) subject to adjustment based on changes in working capital, (2) subject to an
additional earn out payment of up to $13 million if the business meets certain adjusted EBITDA targets in
calendar 2005, and (3) subject to revised purchase price negotiations based on a revised Merix Asia business
valuation. We are continuing to work with EPCH to finalize the purchase price; however, we are currently unable
to estimate the date on which the purchase price will be finalized.

During the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006, a $1.6 million distribution was paid to minority shareholders in the
People’s Republic of China relating to earnings generated from the following four Merix Asia facilities prior to
the Company’s acquisition of Merix Asia: Huizhou facility, Huiyang facility, Dongguan facility and Lomber
facility (each located in the People’s Republic of China). The Company will continue to be obligated to pay its
minority shareholders based on the profits of each of these facilities.
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

In August 2000, we entered into a noncancelable operating lease agreement to lease a manufacturing facility
located in Wood Village, Oregon. Under the terms of the lease agreement, lease payments began in July 2001
and lease payments escalate at specific points over the minimum ten year term of the lecase. Rent expense is
recognized on the straight line basis. We have the option to extend the term of the lease for three consecutive
five-year periods beyond the initial lease term.

Merix San Jose leases office space and production facilities under noncancelable operzting lease agreements with
various initial terms ending through the fiscal year 2010 and options to extend the leas: terms beyond the initial
lease terms through the fiscal year 2019. Lease payments escalate at specific points over the minimum five year
lease terms. Rent expense is recognized on the straight line basis.

Merix Asia leases office space, apartment space and production facilities under noncaricelable operating lease
agreements with various initial terms ending through the fiscal year 2008. Rent expense is recognized on the
straight line basis. These lease agreements do not contain options to extend the lease terms and the lease
payments do not escalate.

Consolidated future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases that have lease terms in
excess of 12 months as of May 27, 2006 are as follows:

(in thousands)

Minimuim Payments Under

Fiscal Year Ending Operating Lease Obligations
May 26,2007 . .ot $1,700
May 31,2008 ... .o 1,241
May 30,2009 ...t 799
May 29,2010 . ..ottt e 751
May 28, 2011 .« oot e 632
Thereafter .. ... . v e 53
$5,176

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the increase or decrease in the
amount of interest income we can earn on our funds available for investment and interzst expense on our debt
obligations. We seek to mitigate to limit default risk, market risk and reinvestment risk on our investment
portfolio. We mitigate default risk by investing in high-credit quality securities. We do not believe that changes
in interest rates would have a material effect on our liquidity, financial condition or results of operations.

We are exposed to interest rate risk relating to our Domestic Term Loan, which bears interest at (a) either the
prime rate or LIBOR, plus (b) an additional margin, which is 50 basis points higher for the term loan than for the
revolving loan, based on certain performance criteria. A 1.0% fluctuation in the interest rate would result in a
$151 thousand increase in interest expense per annum. ‘

We are exposed to foreign currency fluctuation as a result of our international operaticns. Our primary foreign
currency exposure stems from operating costs relating to manufacturing operations in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China. Substantially all of our consolidated net sales are denominated in U.S. Dollars. We
do not currently engage in derivative activities to hedge against foreign currency risk. However, we are
evaluating our risk management options. Net foreign currency transaction losses were $720 thousand during the
fiscal year ended May 27, 2006. Net foreign currency transaction gains and losses were insignificant for the
fiscal years ended May 28, 2005 and May 29, 2004.
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ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control} over financial reporting
and for the assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
May 27, 2006. As defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”), internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

The Company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Management conducted, with the participation and supervision of our Chief Executive Officer (CEO) (who also
serves as our Chief Financial Officer), an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting as of May 27, 2006. Management’s assessment of internal control over financial reporting was
conducted using the criteria set forth in the report entitled Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”). .

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a
remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim consolidated financial statements will not
be prevented or detected. In connection with management’s assessment of our internal control over financial
reporting, we identified the following material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting as of
May 27, 2006:

1. The Company did not maintain a sufficient complement of personnel to maintain an appropriate
accounting and financial reporting organizational structure to support the activities of the Company.
Specifically, the Company did not maintain personnel with an appropriate level of accounting knowledge,
experience and training in the selection, application and implementation of generally accepted accounting
principles with respect to: (i) stock-based compensation, (ii) external financial reporting, including income

. tax disclosures (iii) accrued liabilities, and (iv) classification of assets held-for-sale. This material weakness
resulted in audit adjustments to the Company’s 2006 annual consolidated financial statements and
contributed to the material weakness discussed in 2 below. Additionally, this control deficiency could result
in a misstatement of the above mentioned accounts and disclosures that would result in a material
misstatement to the interim or annual consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or
detected. Accordingly, management has determined that this control deficiency constitutes a material
weakness.

2. The Company did not maintain effective controls over the completeness, accuracy and disclosure of
segment information. Specifically, controls over segment reporting were not effective to ensure that
disclosures were determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. This control
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deficiency resulted in an audit adjustment to the required disclosure included in the notes to the Company’s
2006 annual consolidated financial statements. Additionally, this control deficiency could result in a
misstatement of segment information that would result in a material misstatement to the interim or annual
consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or detected. Accordingly, management has
determined that this control deficiency constitutes a material weakness.

Based on our assessment and as a result of the material weaknesses described above, management has concluded
that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of May 27, 2006 based on the
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the COSO.

Management excluded Eastern Pacific Circuits Holding Limited (renamed Merix Asia, Inc. and referred to as
Merix Asia) from its assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of May 2.7, 2006 because it was
acquired by the Company in a purchase business combination during fiscal 2006. Merix Asia is a majority-owned
subsidiary for which total assets and total revenues represent 44% and 27%, respectively, of the related
consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended May 27, 2006.

- Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
May 27, 2006 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an 1ndependent registered public accounting
firm, as stated in their report which is included herein.

REMEDIATION STEPS TO ADDRESS MATERIAL WEAKNIESSES

Because of the material weaknesses identified in our evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, we
performed additional procedures to ensure that our consolidated financial statements for all accounting periods
beginning with the fiscal year ended May 29, 2004 and through the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006, including
quarterly periods, are presented in accordance with GAAP and to enhance our internal control over financial
reporting. Our procedures included, but were not limited to, the following:

i)  We completed a comprehensive review of the requirements of SFAS No. 131 “Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” (“SFAS 1317);

ii) We performed a comprehensive evaluation of the identification of our operating segments, as defined
by SFAS 131;

iii) We reconstructed segment reporting information for Merix Oregon, Merix San Jose and Merix Asia for
the fiscal years ended May 27, 2006, May 28, 2005 and May 29, 2004;

iv) We performed detailed business analyses on disaggregated financial and other information for each of
our identified segments;

v) We performed additional closing procedures, including detailed reviews of journal entries, additional
review of account reconciliations and analyses of balance sheet and income statement accounts;

vi) We appointed a Chief Financial Officer, the appointment of which will be effctive subsequent to the
filing of this 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K; and

vii) We committed additional resources (employees and outside accounting professionals and consultants)
to our accounting and finance departments. We have identified the required competencies and we
continue to staff the accounting and finance functions in accordance with those competencies.

These procedures delayed the filing of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year erded May 27, 2006.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Merix Corporation:

We have completed integrated audits of Merix Corporation’s 2006 and 2005 consolidated financial statements
and of its internal control over financial reporting as of May 27, 2006, and an audit of its 2004 consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(1) present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Merix Corporation and its subsidiaries at May 27, 2006
and May 28, 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended May 27, 2006 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Item
15(a)(2) presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with
the related consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, we have audited management’s assessment, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting appearing under Item 8, that Merix Corporation did not maintain effective internal control
over financial reporting as of May 27, 2006, because (1) the Company did not maintain a sufficient complement
of personnel to maintain an appropriate accounting and financial reporting organizational structure to support the
activities of the Company; and (2) the Company did not maintain effective controls over the completeness,
accuracy and disclosure of segment information, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The
Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we
consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
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includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, thar results in a more than
remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented
or detected. The following material weaknesses have been identified and included in management’s assessment
as of May 27, 2006:

1. The Company did not maintain a sufficient complement of personnel to maintain an appropriate
accounting and financial reporting organizational structure to support the activities of the Company.
Specifically, the Company did not maintain personnel with an appropriate level of accounting knowledge,
experience and training in the selection, application and implementation of generally accepted accounting
principles with respect to: (i) stock-based compensation, (ii) external financial reporting including income
tax disclosures, (iii) accrued liabilities, and (iv) classification of assets held-for-salz. This material weakness
resulted in audit adjustments to the Company’s 2006 annual consolidated financial statements and
contributed to the following material weakness discussed in (2) below. Additionally, this control deficiency
could result in a misstatement of substantially all accounts and disclosures that would result in a material
misstatement to the interim or annual consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or
detected. Accordingly, management has determined that this control deficiency constitutes a material
weakness.

2. The Company did not maintain effective controls over the completeness, accuracy and disclosure of
segment information. Specifically, controls over segment reporting were not effective to ensure that
disclosures were determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. This control
deficiency resulted in an audit adjustment to the required disclosure included in the notes to the Company’s
2006 annual consolidated financial statements. Additionally, this control deficiency could result in a
misstatement of segment disclosures that would result in a material misstatement to the annual or interim
consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or detected. Additionally, this control
deficiency could result in a misstatement of segment information that would result in a material
misstatement to the interim or annual consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or
detected. Accordingly, management has determined that this control deficiency constitutes a material
weakness.

These material weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in
our audit of the 2006 consolidated financial statements, and our opinion regarding the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting does not affect our opinion on those consolidated financial
statements.

As described in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management has excluded
Eastern Pacific Circuits Holding Limited (renamed Merix Asia, Inc. and referred to as Merix Asia) from its
assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of May 27, 2006 because it was acquired by the
Company in a purchase business combination during fiscal 2006. We have also excluded Merix Asia from our
audit of internal control over financial reporting. Merix Asia is a majority-owned subsidiary whose total assets
and total revenues represent 44% and 27%, respectively, of the related consolidated financial statement amounts
as of and for the year ended May 27, 2006.
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In our opinion, management’s assessment that Merix Corporation did not maintain effective internal control over
financial reporting as of May 27, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. Also, in our opinion, because of the effect of the
material weaknesses described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, Merix
Corporation has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of May 27, 2006, based on
criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the COSO.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

August 23, 2006
Portland, Oregon
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MERIX CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands) :

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ... ........ ..o ittt
Short-term INVEStMENS . . ... ..ttt ittt i et et
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $2,683 and $932, respectively ..........
Inventories, Met . .. ... i
Assetsheld forsale ... ... i e
Other CUITENE 858618 . . .. oottt e e et e e e e

Total CUTENt ASSeLS . . ...ttt et e et e e
Property, plant and equipment, net ........ ...ttt e e
GoodWIll . .. e
Definite-lived intangible assets, net .. ..... ... ...ttt
Leaschold land userights, net .. ... ... ittt i e
Deferred financing COStS, NE . . . . ..ot it it e
O e @888 . . oottt ettt e e e e e e

Total @SS . ittt e e e

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Accounts payable . ... e
Accrued COmpensation .. ... it
ACCIUEA WAITANLY . . oot ettt et e e e e e e
Other accrued liabilities ................. FS
Income taxes payable ...... ... . .
Current portion of long-termdebt .. ........ ... .. .. .

Total current liabilities . .......... ... . . . e
Long-termdebt ....... ... oo e
Other long-term liability . ... ... .. e

Total Habilities ... ..ottt e

Minority interest obligations, netoftax ........ ... .. ... .. . il
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 11and21) ....... ... ... ... .. o ...,

Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, no par value; authorized 10,000 shares; noneissued .............
Common stock, no par value; authorized 50,000 shares; issued and outstanding
May 27, 2006: 19,806 shares; May 28, 2005: 19,341 shares ..................
Unearned Stock COMPenSation . ... ... vven ettt
Accumulated deficit ... . .. e
Accumulated other comprehensive inCOMe ... .. oo v n i,

Total shareholders’ equity . ........... . i

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ............ ... ... ... ionn..

See the accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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May 27, May 28,
2006 2005

$ 12,616 $ 9,130
18,525 68,555
75,379 37,338
24,384 11,227

1,987 —
7,155 2,181

140,046 128,431
122,862 88,132
89,889 25,551
13,916 9,754

6,433 —
5,653 551
131 1,522

$378,930 $253,941

$ 47,260 $ 16,957
12,114 4,721
2,319 1,519
11,020 4,767
134 6
7,655 1,000

80,502 28,970
91,077 26,000

1,108 960
172,687 55,930
4,118 —

204,831 201,458
(1,096) (392)
(1,623)  (3,055)

13 —

202,125 198,011
$378,930 $253,941




MERIX CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
. (In thousands, except per share data)

For the 52-week period ended

May 27, May 28, May 29,
2006 2005 2004
Nt SAleS . oottt e e $308,982 $186,994 $156,400
CoSt OF SALES . oo e e e 254,864 163,205 136,425
Gross Profit . ... .o 54,118 23,789 19,975
Operating expenses: ‘
Engineering . .........cioiiuiiii e 6,655 6,774 6,047
Selling, general and administrative ........... ... i, 33,353 18,266 12,773
Amortization of identifiable intangible assets . ............. ... ..., 3,106 1,386 —
Severance and impairment charges (Note 14) .................. wen 1,135 — —
Total Operating EXPEeNSES .. ... eien et 44,249 26,426 18,820
Operating Income (10SS) . ...t 9,869 (2,637) 1,155
Debt extinguishment COStS . ...ttt (1,820) —_— —
INEErESE IICOMIE - . . v\ vttt ettt ae 1,834 2,013 728
INEETESE EXPETISE . . v vt s e e e e e et et e e s (6,059) (1,681) (1,636)
Other eXPEnSe, TIEL .. ..\t vv s ettt i e et it (1,560) 297) (219)
Income (loss) before taxes and minority interests ....................... 2,264 (2,602) 28
INCOME taX BXPENSE . . .o v vt vt oottt et 460 8 —
Income (loss) before minority interests ...............cooiiiii., 1,804 (2,610) 28
Minority interests in net income of consolidated subsidiaries, net of tax ... .. 372 — —
Net iNCOME (10SS) . v v vttt ettt ittt ettt e $ 1432 $ (2,610) $ 28
Net income (loss) per share:
BaSiC o ottt e e e $ 007 $ (014 $ —
Diluted ..ot e $ 007 $ (014 3 —
Shares used in per share calculations:
BaSIC « vttt e e e e 19,519 19,224 16,194
Diluted . ... e e 19,715 19,224 16,830

See the accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BALANCE AT May 31, 2003
Netincome ......................
Exercise of stock options ...........
Issuance of stock under defined
contributionplan ................
Issuance of stock options to
non-employees .................
Issuance of restricted stock to
employees
Amortization of unearned stock
compensation ..................
Shares repurchased, surrendered or
canceled .......................
Sale of common stock, net

BALANCE AT May 29, 2004
Netloss ...,
Exercise of stock options ...........
Issuance of stock under defined
contributionplan ................
Issuance of restricted stock to
employees
Amortization of unearned stock
compensation ..................
Shares repurchased, surrendered or
canceled

BALANCE AT May 28, 2005
Netincome ......................
Foreign currency translation
adjustment .....................
Exercise of stock options ...........
Issuance of stock under defined
contributionplan ................
Issuance of restricted stock to
employees
Issuance of stock to employee .......
Performance stock option grants
Amortization of unearned stock
compensation ..................
Shares repurchased, surrendered or
canceled

BALANCE AT May 27, 2006

MERIX CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(In thousands)
Common Stock Acch:;]l;l;ated
Number of Unearned Stock Accumulatec Comprehensive
Shares Amount  Compensation Deficit Income Total
14,650 $104,917 $ (2) $ (473) $— $104,442
— — — 28 — 28
593 4,627 — — — 4,627
97 1,426 — — — 1,426
— 7 ) — — —
29 305 (305) — —
— — 195 — — 195
(1) (35) — — — (35)
3,700 87,732 — — 87,732
19,068 $198,979 $ (119) $ (445) $— $198,415
— — — (2,610) — (2,610)
71 513 — — — 513
162 1,577 — — — 1,577
46 439 (439) — — —
— — 116 — — 116
(6) (50) 50 — — _
19,341 $201,458 $ (392) $(3,055) $— $198,011
_ — — 1,432 — 1,432
—_— — —_ — 13 13
212 1,363 — — — 1,363
151 1,070 — — — 1,070
112 873 (873) — — —
10 51 — — — 51
— 232 (232) — _ —
— — 185 — — 185
20) (216) 216 — — —
19,806 $204,831 $(1,096) $(1,623) $ 13 $202,125

See the accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MERIX CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)
For the 52-week period ended
May 27, May 28, May 29,
2006 2005 2004
CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (I0SS) .« . vt v vt it et e et ettt e e e e e $ 1432 $ (2,610) $ 28
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization ............ ..ot 21,791 15,300 10,598
Contribution of common stock to defined contributionplan .............. 1,070 1,577 1,426
Stock based compensation €Xpense . .. ......... ..o 236 116 195
Minority interest in net income of consolidated subsidiaries .............. 372 — —
Loss on impairment and disposal of fixed assets ....................... 549 131 472
Inventory purchase adjustments .................... i, 3,885 — —
Debt extinguishment charges ......... ... i - 1,257 — —
UL vttt — 20 41
Changes in assets and liabilities, excluding effects of busmess combinations:
Accounts receivable, NEL .. .ot v it e e e 9,111) (4,417) (16,798)
INVENLOTIES .« . . oo ittt et ettt e e e e e (3,100) (578) (3,395)
OthEr ASSEES .\ vttt et et s 207 (2,075) (518)
Accounts payable . ...... .. 5,111 (345) 7,503
Accrued COmMPENnSation . .............iiouiiiineritiii s 7,393 565 1,119
Accrued WaTTANLY . ... .ottt s (2,206) 458 169
Incometaxespayable ............. .. ...l (124) 6 —_
Other accrued liabilities ........ ... (2,563) 1,632 1,085
Net cash provided by operating activities .................. ... ...l 15,977 9,780 1,925
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment . ............. ... il (7,246)  (15,813)  (13,684)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment ..................... 40 — —
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired and debt assumed ............... (103,928) (41,325) —
Investments
PUICRASES . .ttt e (32,000) (100,830) (168,575)
Sales and MELUMIHES . . ..o vttt ettt e 82,030 149,450 91,364
Net cash used in investing activities . ............. .. ....o.u.. P (61,104) (8,518) (90,895)
CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from long-term borrowings .. ..ottt 143,200 — —
Principal payments on long-term borrowings . ..................... ... (87,742) — —
Deferred financing Costs ... ......vuuriii ittt (7,048) — —
Payments on lease obligation ............ ... i i (761) — —
Exercise of StOCK OpHONS . . ... ..o 1,363 513 4,627
Proceeds from sale of common stock, net . ......... .o — 87,732
Reacquisition of common Stock ... ©) — (35)
Due from affiliate ... .......cc it e 1,214 — —
Distribution to minority shareholders ........... ... ... .. i (1,607) — —
Net cash provided by financing activities . ..............oiiiiiiireiiiaii.ns 48,613 513 92,324
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents . .............. ... it i 3,486 1,775 3,354
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ................ ... ... .. 9,130 7,355 4,001
Cash and cash equivalents atend of period . . .......... .. i $ 12,616 9,130 $ 7,355
Supplemental non-cash activity:
Issuance of promissory notes in acquisitions .............. ..o $ 11,000 2,000 $ —
Assumption of debt and capital lease obligations in acquisition ............... 6,035 — —
Issuance of stock toemployees . ... 924 439 305
Increase to the asset retirement obligation ............. ... .. i i 7 366 303
Supplemental disclosures:
Cash paid fOr INETESt . . .\ v\t e ettt ettt $ 4,59 1,650 $ 1,629
Cashpald fortaxes ..........ciiiiniiiinir i 584 2 —

See the accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MERIX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business

Merix Corporation (the “Company”), an Oregon corporation, was formed in March 1994. The Company is a
leading global manufacturer of technologically advanced electronic interconnect soluticns for use in electronic
equipment. The Company’s principal products comprise of complex multilayer printed circuit boards, which are
the platforms used to interconnect microprocessors, integrated circuits and other components that are essential to
the operation of electronic products and systems. The Company provides its products tc original equipment
manufacturers (“OEM”s) and their electronic manufacturing service providers that use the Company’s products
primarily in high-end commercial equipment in the communications, automotive, high-end computing and
storage, test and measurement, and aerospace and defense markets. The Company provides its customers with a
broad range of products and services, including design and engineering assistance, quick-turn seérvices and
premium revenues, volume production, RF/Microwave application products, thermal management solutions and
backplanes. '

Subsidiaries

On December 9, 2004, Merix Corporation purchased all of the outstanding capital stock of Data Circuit
Holdings, Inc., the parent company of Data Circuit Systems, Inc. Data Circuit Systems. Inc. was renamed Merix
San Jose, Inc. (referred to as “Merix San Jose”) and became a wholly-owned subsidiarv of Merix Corporation.
Located in San Jose, California, Merix San Jose is a quick-turn services manufacturer of complex, multilayer

printed circuit boards. The results of Merix San Jose have been included in the consolidated financial statements
since the date of acquisition.

On September 29, 2005, Merix Corporation acquired the business operations of Eastern Pacific Circuits Holding
Limited, which was renamed Merix Asia, Inc. (referred to as “Merix Asia”). Located in Hong Kong, Merix Asia
is a supplier of printed circuit boards. The results of Merix Asia have been included in the consolidated financial
statements since the date of acquisition.

Merix Corporation further has a direct sales force in the United States, Canada, the United Kingdom, the
Netherlands, the People’s Republic of China, Hong Kong and Singapore.

Merix Corporation and its wholly and majority-owned subsidiaries are collectively referred to as “the Company”
or “Merix.”

Fiscal Year

The Company’s fiscal year consists of d 52-or 53-week period that ends on the last Saurday in May. Fiscal years
2006, 2005, and 2004 each comprised of 52-weeks and ended on May 27, 2006, May 28, 2005 and May 29,
2004, respectively.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Merix Corporation and its wholly-owned and
majority owned subsidiaries. To facilitate in the consolidation and public reporting process, the Company’s
recently acquired subsidiary, Merix Asia, is included in the consolidated results on a one-month lag. As such, the
consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto for the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006 include results
from Merix Asia for the period from September 29, 2005, the date of acquisition, through April 22, 2006. Inter-
company balances resulting from transactions with Merix Asia during the one-month lag period have been netted
and presented as a current liability on the consolidated balance sheet. All other inter-company accounts,
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transactions and profits have been eliminated in consolidation. As of May 27, 2006, the net inter-company
liability of $1.2 million included in other accrued liabilities was the result of inter-company transactions between
Merix Asia and the Company’s U.S. operations from April 22, 2006 through May 27, 2006.

Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to current period presentation. These changes had
no impact on shareholders’ equity previously reported net income (loss), or the net change in cash or cash
equivalents.

Segment Reporting

The Company has three reportable business segments defined by geographic locations in accordance with SFAS
No. 131 “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information™ (“SFAS 1317): (1) Merix
Oregon, (2) Merix San Jose and (3) Merix Asia. The Company’s operating segments are evidence of the internal
structure of the Company’s organization. Each segment operates predominately in the same industry with
production facilities that produce similar, customized products for its customers. The production facilities, sales
management and chief decision-makers for all processes are managed by the same executive team.

Management’s Estimates and Uncertainties

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements
and the reported amounts of sales and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could materially differ
from those estimates. Significant estimates and judgments made by management of the Company relate to the
collectibility of accounts receivable, provisions for inventories, valuation of goodwill, valuation of identifiable
intangible assets, impairment of long-lived assets, estimated obligations associated with the retirement of assets,
estimated costs of warranty obligations, estimated legal expenses, potential environmental liabilities, and the
valuation of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities.

Financial Instruments: Fair Values

The carrying amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets for short-term investments, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of
these financial instruments. The carrying amount of variable rate long-term debt approximates its fair value
because the related interest rates are comparable to rates currently available to the Company for debt with similar
terms and maturities.

Foreign Currency Translation and Foreign Currency Transactions

The consolidated financial statements of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries have been translated in accordance
with SFAS No. 52 “Foreign Currency Translation” (“SFAS 52), which requires that assets, liabilities and
operations of a foreign entity be measured using the functional currency of that entity. The functional currency of
the foreign subsidiaries is the U.S. Dollar, with the exception of the foreign sales offices, which use their
respective local currencies as the functional currency, and certain subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China,
which use the Hong Kong Dollar as the functional currency.

The reporting currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is the U.S. Dollar. For those foreign subsidiaries
whose books of record are not maintained in their respective functional currency, remeasurement into the
functional currency is required before translation into the reporting currency. Assets and liabilities are translated
into U.S. Dollars at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date and revenues and expenses are translated
into the U.S. Dollar at weighted average exchange rates during the period. Foreign currency translation
adjustments resulting from the translation of foreign functional currency financial statements into U.S. Dollars
are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income within shareholders’ equity.
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ISRy

Transactions involving a currency other than the functional currency generate a gain or loss from the fluctuation
of the currency relative to the functional currency and are recorded in the consolidated statements of operations
during the respective period in which they occur. The Company currently does not utilize any derivative
instruments to mitigate potential foreign currency transaction losses. Net foreign currency transaction losses were
$720 thousand during the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006. Net foreign currency transaction gains and losses were
insignificant for the fiscal years ended May 28, 2005 and May 29, 2004.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less at the date of purchase. The carrying amounts reflected in the consolidated balance sheets
for cash and cash equivalents approximate fair value due to the short maturities.

Short-Term Investments

In accordance with SFAS No. 115 “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities” (“SFAS
115”), investments in auction rate securities are classified as available-for-sale short-term investments.
Available-for-sale securities are recorded at fair value, as determined by quoted market prices, with unrealized
holding gains and losses, net of tax, classified as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. Upon sale of the
investments, any previously unrealized holding gains or losses are recognized in the ccnsolidated statements of
operations. The specific identification method is used to determine the cost of securities sold. The Company
reviews short-term investments on a periodic basis to evaluate whether such securities have experienced an
other-than-temporary decline in fair value. If an other-than-temporary decline in value exists, an impairment
charge is recorded within the consolidated statements of operations as the difference between the carrying value
of the impaired investments and the net realizable value of the impaired investments.

Reclassification of Short-Term Investments

On February 26, 2005, the Company reclassified its investments in auction rate securities from cash and cash
equivalents to short-term investments for the fiscal year 2005 and all prior periods. Corresponding adjustments to
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended May 29, 2004 were made to reflect the gross
purchases and sales of these securities as investing activities, rather than as a component of cash and cash
equivalents. The change in classification does not affect cash flows from operations or from financing activities
for any period previously reported in the consolidated statements of cash flows, nor does it affect net income or
loss for any period previously reported in the consolidated statements of operations.

(in thousands) (in thousands)
As Reported As Reclassified
Cash and Cash and
Cash Short-Term Cash Short-Term
Equivalents Investments Total Equivalents Investments Total
May 29,2004 ........... ... . ..., $124,530 $ — $124,530 $7,355 $117,175 $124,530
May 31,2003 .................... $ 42,451 $1,514  $ 43,965  $4,001 $ 39,964 $ 43,965
(in thousands) (in thousands)
As Reported As Reclassified
Net cash Net cash
Investments used in Investments used in

investing investing
Purchases Maturities activities Purchases Maturities activities

For the Year Ended:
May 29,2004 . ... ... .. $ — $1,514  $12,170 $168,575 $91,364 $90,895
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Accounts Receivable, net

The Company makes ongoing estimates relating to the collectibility of the accounts receivable balance and the
Company maintains a reserve for estimated losses resulting from the inability of the customers to make required
payments. In determining the amount of the reserve, the Company considers its historical bad debt experience,
ongoing credit evaluations of customers and changes in the customers’ businesses. Considerable management
judgment and assumptions are necessary to identify uncollectible receivables, and accordingly, actual results
could vary significantly from such estimates. If the financial condition of the Company’s customers were to
deteriorate, resulting in their inability to make payments, a larger reserve might be required.

Inventories, net

Inventories, net are valued at the lower of cost or market and include materials, labor and manufacturing
overhead. Cost is determined by standard cost, which approximates the first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis.

Provisions for inventories are made to reduce excess inventories to their estimated net realizable values, as
necessary. A change in customer demand for inventory is the primary indicator for reductions in inventory
carrying values. The Company records inventory provisions based on historical experiences with customers, the
ability to utilize inventory in other programs, the ability to redistribute inventory back to the suppliers, and
current and forecasted demand for the inventory.

The Company sells inventory on a consignment basis. Consignment inventory is recorded as inventory until the
product is sold by the Company’s consignment customers and all rights and rewards of ownership of the
consignment inventory have transferred to the end customer. '

Property, Plant and Equipment, net

With the exception of property, plant and equipment acquired through a business acquisition, property, plant and
equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Property, plant and equipment acquired through a
business acquisition are accounted for as a purchase initially recorded at fair value based upon the allocated
purchase prices at the date of acquisition. Costs of improvements, including related interest and qualifying
internal costs, are capitalized. Costs of improvements include major improvements to existing property, plant and
equipment and major improvements in management information systems. Maintenance and repair costs are
charged to expense as incurred, while improvements that extend the useful life of the assets are capitalized. As
property and equipment is sold or retired, the applicable cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from
the asset accounts and any gain or loss thereon is recorded. Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets, which approximate up to 40 years for
buildings and 3 to 10 years for machinery and equipment.

For Merix Oregon and Merix San Jose, leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the economic
life of the asset or the contractual term of the lease. Optional renewal periods are included in the contractual term
of the lease if renewal is reasonably assured at the time the asset is placed in service.

For Merix Asia, leasehold improvements are amortized over the economic useful life of ten years. Merix Asia
has noncancelable operating lease agreements with lease terms ending through the fiscal year 2008 with no stated
lease renewal options. However, as it is reasonably assured that these lease agreements will be renewed and
management has intentions to operate the leased manufacturing facilities indefinitely, the tenant improvements
within the leased facilities are amortlzed over a period longer than the current underlymg contractual lease
obligations of the Company. .

Asset Retirement Obligations

In accordance with SFAS No. 143 “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (“SFAS 143”), the Company
recognizes the fair value of an asset retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable
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estimate of fair value can be made. The present value of the estimated asset retirement obligation is capitalized as
part of the carrying amount of the long-lived asset and allocated to expense over the useful life of the asset. The
liability is accreted at the end of each period through charges to operating expenses. If the asset retirement
obligation is settled for other than the carrying amount of the liability, the Company will recognize a gain or loss
upon settlement.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS
144”), the Company’s long-lived assets to be held and used in the business are reviewec! for impairment when
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The Company considers a trend of
unsatisfactory operating results that are not in line with management’s expectations to be its primary indicator of
potential impairment. When an indicator of impairment is noted, assets are evaluated for impairment at the
lowest level for which there are identifiable cash flows. If the sum of expected undiscounted future cash flows is
less than the carrying amount of the asset, a loss is recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value
exceeds the fair value of the asset. Fair value is determined primarily using the anticipated cash flows discounted
at a rate commensurate with the risk involved. Losses on assets to be disposed of are determined in a similar
manner, except that the fair values are reduced for disposal costs. Considerable management judgment and
assumptions are necessary to identify indicators of impairment and to estimate discounted future cash flows.
Accordingly, actual results could vary significantly from such estimates.

Leasehold Land Use Rights, Net

Leasehold land use rights, net represents amounts paid to lease land in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China. Amounts are paid at the beginning of the lease term and are amortized on a straizht-line basis over the
remaining period of the initial 50-year lease term.

Identifiable Intangible Assets and Goodwill

In accordance with SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 1427), goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized, rather they are measured for imipairment at least annually
in the fourth quarter, or when events indicate that an impairment exists. As required by SFAS 142, in the
Company’s impairment test of goodwill, the Company compares the fair value of the applicable reporting unit to
its carrying value. If the carrying value of the reporting entity exceeds the estimate of fair value, the Company
calculates the impairment as the excess of the carrying value of the goodwill over its implied fair value. In the
impairment tests for indefinite-lived intangible assets, the Company compares the estimated fair value of the
indefinite-lived intangible assets to the carrying value. If the carrying value exceeds the: estimate of fair value the
Company calculates impairment as the excess of the carrying value over the estimate of fair value.

Intangible assets that are determined to have definite lives are amortized over their useful lives and are measured
for impairment only when events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be 1mpa1red in
accordance with SFAS 144, as discussed above.

Warranty

The Company generally warrants its products for a period of up to twelve months from the point at which the
rights and rewards of ownership of the product are transferred to the customer. However, Merix Asia generally
honors warranty claims for a period of up to three years from the point at which the product is sold. The
Company records a liability for the estimated cost of the warranty upon transfer of owrership of the products to
the customer. The warranty liability is calculated based on historical experience of expenses resulting from the
warranty program for the twelve preceding months for Merix Oregon and Merix San Jose and for the preceding
three year period for Merix Asia.
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Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue upon the shipment of its products to the customer provided that the Company
has received a purchase order, the price is fixed, title has transferred to the customer, collection of the resulting
receivable is reasonably assured, product returns are reasonably estimable, there are no further customer
acceptance requirements and there are no remaining significant obligations. Provisions for estimated sales returns
and adjustments are made at the point of revenue recognition based on historical experience. Sales adjustments
are charged against consolidated net sales, disputed freight charges are charged against cost of sales, and other
customer accommodations are typically charged against operating expenses. Other customer accommodations
represent additional costs incurred beyond the sale of the product to uphold the quality of the products sold and
to maintain customer satisfaction.

Consignment sales are recognized at the time the consignee sells and delivers consignment goods to end
customers and all criteria of revenue recognition described above have been satisfied.

Legal Contingencies Reserve

In accordance with SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies” (“SFAS 57), all legal contingencies, which are
judged to be both probable and estimable, are recorded as liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets based on
the Company’s best estimates of the costs of resolving or disposing of the underlying claims. The Company
regularly monitors its estimates in light of current developments and changes in circumstances and the Company
adjusts its legal reserves accordingly. If no particular amount is determined to constitute the Company’s best
estimate of a particular legal contingency, a range of the Company’s estimate of the costs of resolving or
disposing of the underlying claim is disclosed and the Company will accrue for the low end of the range of costs,
unless otherwise disclosed. Legal reserves are expensed in the period in which they occur. Considerable
management judgment and assumptions are necessary to estimate legal contingency reserves. Accordingly, actual
results could vary significantly from such estimates.

It is the Company’s policy to accrue legal fees when it is probable that the Company will have to defend itself
against known claims or allegations and it can reasonably estimate the amount of anticipated expense.

Engineering Expense
Expenditures for engineering of products and manufacturing processes are expensed as incurred.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

In accordance with SFAS No. 130 “Reporting Comprehensive Income” (“SFAS 130”), the Company records
foreign currency translation adjustments resulting from the translation of foreign functional currency financial
statements into U.S. Dollars as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income within shareholders’
equity.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This approach requires the
recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences attributable to temporary
differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to be applicable to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities
of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Valuation allowances
are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts expected to be realized.

Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic net income (loss) per common share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted net income (loss) per common share is calculated by
dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average outstanding shares, assuming conversion of all potentially
dilutive stock options and awards.
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Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based employee compensation arrangements in accorcdance with provisions of
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB No. 25”) and
complies with the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS
123”) and SFAS No. 148 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure” (“SFAS
148”). In accordance with APB No. 25, no compensation expense is recorded if stock options are granted with an
exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying stock as of the date of grant. Income tax benefits, if
any, related to stock option exercises are added to the recorded value of common stock.

If the Company had accounted for these stock options in accordance with SFAS 123, the Company’s pro forma
net income (loss) and pro forma net income (loss) per share would have been reported zs follows:

(in thousands, cxcept per share amounts)

For the Year Ended:
May 27, May 28, May 29,
2006 2005 2004
Net income (loss), asreported ..............oooiviinan. .. $ 1,432 $ (26100 $§ 28
Add: stock-based compensation expense included in reported net
income,netoftaxA........................{ ........... 188 116 188
Deduct: stock-based employee compensation expense under the
fair value based method for all awards, netof tax ....... S (1,261) (8,436) (6,040)
Pro formanetincome (10S8) . ..........viuiiirinnnn... $ 359  $(10,930) $(5,824)
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic-asreported ............. . . .0 ... 0.07 014 $ —

Basic-proforma ........... ... . . 0t 0.02 (0.57) $ (0.36)

$

$
007 $ (014 § —
002 $ (0.57) $ (0.36)

Diluted-asreported . ....... ... ... ... ...
Diluted -proforma ......... ... ... .. ... L

L2 AR R e

The following weighted average assumptions were used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model for valuing all
stock options granted during the fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004:

For the Year Ended:

May 27, May 28, May 29,
2006 2005 2004
Risk-free interestrate ... ...t 4.21% 3.08% 2.09%
Expecteddividend yield . .......... ... .. ... ... .. ... 0% 0% 0%
Expectedlives .......... ... . i 320 years 3.28 years  3.59 years
Expected volatility . .......... ... . i i, 67% 79% 98%

Adjustments for forfeitures are made as they occur. Using the Black-Scholes methodology, the total value of stock
options granted during the fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $3.9 million, $4.3 million, and $3.1 million,
respectively. If the fair value based methodology of accounting were in use, the Company would expense this value
over the vesting period of the options (typically four years). The weighted average fair value per share of options
granted during the fiscal years 2006, 2005, and 2004 was $3.29, $5.38 and $10.04, respectively.

The pro forma effects of applying SFAS 123 may not be representative of the effects on reported net income
(loss) and net income (loss) per share for future years since options vest over several years and additional awards
are made each year.

On December 16, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) finalized SFAS No. 123R “Share-
Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R”), which, after the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) amended the
compliance dates on April 15, 2005, will be effective for the Company’s fiscal year beginning on May 28, 2006.
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The new standard will require the Company to record compensation expense for stock options using a fair value
method. On March 29, 2005, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Builetin No. 107 (“SAB 107”), which provides the
Staff’s views regarding interactions between SFAS 123R and certain SEC rules and regulations and provides
interpretations of the valuation of share-based payments for public companies.

The Company is currently evaluating SFAS 123R and SAB 107 to determine the fair value method to measure
compensation expense, the appropriate assumptions to include in the fair value model and the transition method
to use upon adoption. We estimate that the adoption of these pronouncements will result in approximately $500
thousand of stock option expense being recorded during the first quarter of the fiscal year 2007. The effect on the
Company’s consolidated results of operations of expensing stock options using the Black-Scholes model is
presented in the table above.

On May 25, 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors accelerated vesting of outstanding “underwater” employee
stock options with exercise prices greater than $8.00 per share. Approximately 1.3 million options, or
approximately 39% of the Company’s total outstanding options as of May 25, 2005, with varying remaining
vesting schedules, were subject to this acceleration and became immediately exercisable. As a result of this
acceleration, the Company expects to reduce the amount of compensation expense recorded due to the effects of
SFAS 123R. The Company currently estimates a reduction in stock-based compensation expense associated with
this acceleration of approximately $329 thousand for fiscal year 2007 and an additional $300 thousand in total
for subsequent years. This acceleration only relates to specific underwater options, and accordingly, is not
representative of the overall impact that SFAS 123R will have on the consolidated results of the Company’s
operations, cash flows or liquidity upon implementation of SFAS 123R.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Jobs Act”) was enacted in the United States.
In December 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position SFAS No. 109-1, “Application of FASB Statement
No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, to the Tax Deduction on Qualified Production Activities Provided by the
American Jobs Creation Act of 2004” (“FSP 109-17). FSP 109-1 provides that the tax deduction for income with
respect to qualified domestic production activities will be treated as a special deduction as described in

SFAS No. 109. As a result, this deduction has no effect on the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities
existing at the date of enactment. Rather, the impact of this deduction, if any, which was effective January 1,
2005, will be reported in the period in which the deduction is claimed on the Company’s income tax returns.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs — An Amendment of ARB No. 43,
Chapter 4” (“SFAS 151”). SFAS 151 amends the guidance in ARB No. 43, Chapter 4, “Inventory Pricing,” to
clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted material
(spoilage) and requires that those items be recognized as current-period charges. Additionally, SFAS 151
requires that the allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of conversion be based on the normal
capacity of the production facilities. SFAS 151 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005 and is
required to be adopted by the Company during the first quarter of the fiscal year 2007.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R”),
which replaces SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” (“SFAS 123”), and supersedes
APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” SFAS 123R requires all share-based
payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the consolidated
financial statements based on their fair values. The effective date for the Company is fiscal 2007, beginning
May 28, 2006. On March 29, 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 107 (“SAB 107”), which provides the Staff’s views regarding interactions between SFAS 123R and certain
SEC rules and regulations, and provides interpretations of the valuation of share-based payments for public
companies. SAB 107 covers key topics related to the implementation of SFAS 123R, which include the valuation
models, expected volatility, expected option term, income tax effects of SFAS 123R, classification of stock-
based compensation cost, capitalization of compensation costs, and disclosure requirements. The Company is
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evaluating the requirements of SFAS 123R and SAB 107. The Company estimates that the adoption of these
pronouncements will result in approximately $500 thousand of stock option expense being recorded during the
first quarter of the fiscal year 2007.

In June 2005, the FASB issued Statement No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections” (“SFAS 154”),
a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20, “Accounting Changes”, and Statement No. 3, “Reporting Accounting
Changes in Interim Financial Statements.” SFAS 154 changes the requirements for the accounting for and the
reporting of a change in accounting principle. Previously, most voluntary changes in accounting principles
required recognition by recording a cumulative effect adjustment within net income in the period of change.
SFAS 154 requires retrospective application to prior periods’ consolidated financial statements, unless it is
impracticable to determine either the specific period effects or the cumulative effect of the change. SFAS 154 is
effective for accounting changes made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. The Company does not
believe SFAS 154 will have a material effect on its consolidated financial position, restlts of operations or cash
flows.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”
(“FIN 48”). This interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an
enterprise’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with FASB No. 109, “Accounting for Income
Taxes” (“SFAS 109”). This interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the
financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
FIN 48 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company will adopt FIN 48
during the first quarter of the fiscal year 2008 and will continue to evaluate the impact of FIN 48 on its
consolidated operating results and financial condition.

Note 2. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS
a) Data Circuit Holdings, Inc.

On December 9, 2004, Merix Corporation purchased all of the outstanding capital stock of Data Circuit
Holdings, Inc., the parent company of Data Circuit Systems, Inc., renamed Merix San Jose, Inc. (collectively
referred to as “Merix San Jose™). Located in San Jose, California, Merix San Jose is a quick-turn services
manufacturer of complex, multilayer printed circuit boards. The results of Merix San Jose have been included in
the consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition. The aggregate purchase price of $44.0 million
was settled with available cash of $41.6 million (including cash acquired of $339 thousand), a $2 million
promissory note, and $366 thousand of direct acquisition costs.

b) Eastern Pacific Circuits Holdings Limited

On September 29, 2005, Merix Corporation completed the acquisition of the business operations of Eastern Pacific
Circuits Limited and certain of its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Merix Asia”), a Hong Kong based
supplier of printed circuit boards from Eastern Pacific Circuits Holdings Limited (“EPCH”). Existing minority
interest owners retained, subsequent to completion of the acquisition, their ownership perzentage in the four entities
that hold facilities and conduct business operations in the People’s Republic of China. The individual ownership
percentages of these minority interest owners range from 5% to 15%. The acquisition of the business operations of
Merix Asia was completed for an estimated purchase price of $120.3 million. The acquisition was financed with a
combination of approximately $33.3 million of available cash, term loans, including the assumption of certain
EPCH debt, revolving credit borrowings under two new credit facilities totaling approximately $71.2 million, and
the issuance of an $11.0 million subordinated promissory note to EPCH. The purchase price included $5.3 million
of direct acquisition costs, which were funded with available cash. The term loans and revolving credit borrowings
were refinanced during May 2006 (See Note 10). The estimated purchase price does not reflect potential additional ,
consideration based on changes in working capital, cash and an additional earnout payment of up to $13 million if
the business meets certain adjusted EBITDA targets during the calendar year 2005. The Company is currently
working with EPCH to determine the amount, if any, of this additional consideration. The additional purchase
consideration, if paid, will increase recorded goodwill.
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Accounting for Acquisitions

In accordance with SFAS No. 141 “Business Combinations,” the Company recorded these acquisitions using the
purchase method of accounting. The purchase price has been allocated to tangible and identifiable intangible
assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their respective fair values. The excess purchase price over the
fair value of tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed was recorded as goodwill. For Merix
Asia, the fair values were based upon a valuation of tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired, including
useful lives, as estimated by management of the Company with the assistance of an independent appraiser. The
fair values assigned to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed are subject to change pending the outcome of
contingent purchase price adjustments that are discussed in Note 21. The final purchase price may differ
materially from the preliminary estimates.

The following summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the respective
acquisition dates:

(in thousands)

Merix Merix
San Jose Asia
CUITENT ASSEES . oot vttt ettt it et $ 4757 % 48,328
Property and equipment . ............ ... i 4,397 46,270
Leasehold land userights ........... .. ... ... ... — 6,547
Definite-lived intangible assets . ........ ...t 11,140 7,268
Goodwill ..ot 25,551 64,338
Liabilities assumed . ........coviitiiiii i (1,833) (52,490)
Netassets acquired . .........vuirereiiinneninneeannnann, $44,012  $120,261

The acquisition of Merix San Jose enhanced the Company’s presence in the marketplace by adding scale to its
quick-turn services manufacturing capacity, diversifying its end markets, and enabling the Company to gain
incremental quick-turn services processing capabilities. These factors contributed to establishing the purchase
price, which resulted in the recognition of a significant amount of goodwill.

The acquisition of Merix Asia enabled the Company to better position itself to support its existing customer base,
introduce its technology to new customers in Asia, offer a diverse range of products and reduce its overall cost
structure. The acquisition also provided the Company with a strategic combination of well-located manufacturing
operations, a seasoned management team and an expanded customer base that diversifies its end markets,
resulting in the recognition of a significant amount of goodwill.

Identifiable Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Goodwill is accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”
Accordingly, goodwill is not amortized. Instead, goodwill is reviewed and tested for impairment on an annual
basis, or more frequently, if impairment indicators arise. None of the goodwill is considered deductible for
income tax purposes, except to the extent that it reduces the earnings and profits of foreign subsidiaries.
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The following presents the details of definite-lived intangible assets acquired and the unamortized value as of
May 27, 2006:

(in thousands)

May 27, 2006 May 28, 2005
Accumulated Intangibles, Accumulated Intangibles,
Cost Amortization net Cost Amortization net
Amortizable intangible assets:
Merix San Jose:
Customer relationships . .. .. $ 9,900  $(3,185) $ 6715 $ 9900  $(1,106) $8,794
Non-compete agreement . . . . 1,200 877) 323 1,209 277 923
Manufacturing sales
representatives network . . 40 (11 29 49 3) 37
Merix Asia:
Customer relationships . . ... 7,268 419) 6,849 — — —
Total intangibles purchased ......... $18,408  $(4,492) $13,916 $11,140  $(1,386) $9,754

The Company’s purchased intangible assets have remaining lives ranging from 1 to 9 years. The Company
performs reviews for impairment of all its purchased intangible assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. As of May 27, 2006,
management concluded there was no indication of events or changes in circumstances indicating that the carrying
amount of purchased intangible assets may not be recoverable. Amortization expense i‘or intangible assets
acquired was $3.1 million, $1.4 miltion, and $0 for the fiscal years ended May 27, 2006, May 28, 2005 and

May 29, 2004, respectively, and has been disclosed as a separate line item in the consolidated statements of
operations. The estimated amortization expense of purchased intangible assets for fiscal years succeeding the
fiscal year ended May 27, 2006 is as follows:

(in thousands)

Amortization

Fiscal Year __Expense
2007 o e e $ 2,745
2008 e e 2,277
2000 e e e 1,982
2000 e e 1,766
1 1,552
Thereatter . .. e 3,594
$13,916

The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents the consolidated results of operations as if
these acquisitions had occurred at the beginning of the fiscal year ended May 29, 2004:

(in thousands, except per share data)
For the Fiscal Year Ended:

May 27, May 28, May 29,
2006 2005 2004
Netsales ...t e $366,209  $337,161  $314,352
Netloss . ....coovi i, AP $ (1.458) $(13,152) $ (4,852)
Net loss per share:
BasiC ... e $ ©07) $ (068 $ (0.30)
Diluted . ... .o $ 07 $ (©68 $ (0.30)

The pro forma information is not necessarily indicative of the results that would have nccurred had the
acquisition been completed at the beginning of the fiscal years ended May 27, 2006, May 28, 2005 or May 29,
2004, nor is it necessarily indicative of future results.
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Note 3. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

As of May 27, 2006 and May 28, 2005, there was no difference between the aggregate fair value and cost basis
of short-term investments. The values of the Company’s investments by major security type are as follows:

(in thousands)

May 27, 2006
Unrealized Unrealized Aggregate
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Auction Rate Securities . ..........ccoouruenn... $18,525 $— $— $18,525
May 28, 2005
Unrealized  Unrealized Aggregate
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Auction Rate Securities .. ....... ..., $68,555 $— $— $68,555

All income generated from short-term investments is recorded in interest income. There were no realized gains or
losses on short-term investments during the fiscal years ended May 27, 2006, May 28, 2005 and May 27, 2004.
Although the underlying instruments have contractual maturities of up to 40 years, the Company believes it has
the ability to readily liquidate these securities.

Note 4. INVENTORIES, NET
Inventories, net by major classifications are as follows:

(in thousands)

May 27, May 28,

2006 2005
Raw materials . .. .ovt ettt e $ 5002 $ 2,768
WOrK i PrOCeSS . o oottt et e e e e e 10,447 4,260
Finished goods . .. ... ... 8,935 4,199
Total ... $24,384  $11,227

At May 27, 2006 and May 28, 2005, the Company’s inventory balance included consigned inventories of $4.3
million and $2.3 million, respectively. Provisions for inventories are made to reduce excess inventories to their
estimated net realizable values, as necessary. As of May 27, 2006 and May 28, 2005, the Company had inventory
provisions of $2.6 million and $1.3 million, respectively.

Note 5.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment include the following:

(in thousands)
May 27, May 28,
2006 2005

Land . ... $ 1,036 $ 2,190
Buildingsand grounds .............. ... ..... e 61,158 34,404
Leasehold improvements .................... e 18,138 17,985
Machinery andequipment . ............. ... ... .. ... ... ... 142,628 115,195
Construction in PrOZIESS ... vvvvveveiie et 2,879 5,948

Total ... e $ 225,839  $175,722
Accumulated depreciation and amortization .................. (102,977) (87,590)

Property, plant and equipment, net ..................... $122,862 $ 88,132




The Company recognized depreciation and amortization expense relating to property, plant and equipment of
$17.8 million, $13.7 million, and $10.3 million during the fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Accumulated depreciation and amortization, as presented above, includes accumulated amortization of assets
under capital leases of $634 thousand and $0 at May 27, 2006 and May 28, 2005, respectively.

The Company reviews for impairment of long-lived assets to be held and used in the business whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The Company
deems long-lived assets to be impaired if a forecast of undiscounted future operating cash flows directly related
to the long-lived asset, including estimated disposal value, is less than the asset carryinz amount. During 2006,
the Company evaluated long-lived assets for impairment and determined that certain long-lived assets were
impaired. As a result, the Company recorded a $477 thousand non-cash charge to operating expense relating to
the impairment of long-lived assets. The $477 thousand impairment charge included (1) a $146 thousand
non-cash charge relating to the impairment of long-lived assets held for sale (See Note 6) and (2) a $331
thousand impairment charge relating to manufacturing equipment that was considered impaired. The $146
thousand non-cash impairment charge was determined based upon a third-party firm commitment to purchase the
underlying facility at a price lower than the Company’s cost basis. The $331 thousand non-cash impairment
charge is representative of the impairment of an asset that is no longer being utilized by the Company. There
were no impairment charges recorded during the fiscal year 2005.

Note 6. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

In May 2006, management of the Company made a decision to sell certain long-lived assets of the Company. In
accordance with SFAS 144, the Company has recorded such long-lived assets as current assets held for sale. The
Company is attempting to sell (1) a building located near its Forest Grove, Oregon campus bundled with a parcel
of land on which the building is located and (2) two additional parcels of land adjacent to the facility in Forest
Grove, Oregon. In August 2005, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $146 thousand on the building
held for sale near its Forest Grove, Oregon campus (See Note 5). Based on a firm cominitment to sell, the
building and land for sale have net realizable values that approximate their carrying value at May 27, 2006.

Note 7.  ACCRUED WARRANTY
Warranty activity for the years ended May 27, 2006 and May 28, 2005 consisted of the following:

(in thousands)

For the Fiscal Year Ended:
May 27, May 28,
2006 2005
Balance at the beginning of the period ...................... $1,519 $ 1,061
Warranty accrual acquired . ........... .. ... .. oL 3,006 —
Accruals for warranties issued during the period .......... 3,439 2,879
Accruals or changes in estimates related to pre-existing
WaITANIIES . . .ttt i i e e e e (2,120) 175
Settlements made during the period .................... (3,575 (2,596)
Balance at the end of the period ........................... $ 22319 $1,519
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Note 8. OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Other accrued liabilities at May 27, 2006 consisted of the following:

(in thousands)
May 27, May 28,

2006 2005
Accrued professional and legal services ......................... $ 1,596 $1,603
Accrued sales COMIMISSIONS + v v v vt vttt e 1,538 521
Accrued othertaxes ... ...t 1,559 —
Net intercompany payable to Merix Asia ........................ 1,214 206
ACCTUEd INETESt . . . oottt e 1,054 280
Accrued capital expenditures .......... .. i 594 —
Accrued stamp duty assessment (see Note 23) .................... 495 —
Accrued repair and MaiNteNANCe . ... ..ottt 340 —
Accrued utilities . ...... ... e 274 —
ACCTUEd INSULANICE . . .. vttt e et 194 859
Environmental lability ...... ... ... ... .. ... o 67 51
Other ..o 2,095 1,247

$11,020  $4,767

Note 9. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

In accordance with SFAS No. 143, the Company has recorded asset retirement obligations related to the
restoration of the Merix Wood Village and Merix San Jose facilities to shell condition upon termination of the
leases in place at those facilities. Refer to Note 11 for a discussion of the related lease terms. Activity related to
asset retirement obligations for the years ended May 27, 2006 and May 28, 2005 consist of the following:

(in thousands)
For the Fiscal Year Ended:

May 27, May 28,
2006 2005
Asset retirement obligations at the beginning of the period ...... $ 960 $368
Liabilities incurred during the period . . .. ................ — 29
Liabilities assumed upon acquisition of Data Circuit
SYSteIMS .ot — 179
Liabilities assumed upon acquisition of the operations of
Eastern Pacific Circuits Limited ..................... 72 —
Liabilities settled during the period ..................... — —
Revisions in estimated cash flows ...................... 7 337
ACCIetion EXPENSE . ..o ovvi it 69 47
Asset retirement obligations at the end of the period . . ... .... ... $1,108 $960
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Note 10. DEBT AND FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

Debt and financing arrangements include the following:

(in thousands)
Mazy 27, May 28,

2006 2005

4% Convertible debenture .. ........ ..o i $70,000 $ —
5% Notepayable ......... ..ot 1,000 2,000
Subordinated note payable ........... ... ... o il 11,000 —
Domestictermloan . ..... ... . 15,125 —
6.5% Convertibledebenture . ............. ..., — 25,000
Capital lease obligations . .......... . ..., 1,607 —

Total ... $986,732  $27,000
Less current maturities ... ...ttt e 7,655 1,000
Total long-term obligations, net of current portion . . .............. $91,077  $26,000

4% Convertible Debenture

On May 16, 2006, the Company completed the sale of $60 million 4% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes
due 2013 and on May 24, 2006, the initial purchaser of the these notes exercised its option to purchase an
additional $10 million principal amount, bringing the total gross proceeds to $70 million (collectively referred to
as the “Notes due 2013”). The Company used the net proceeds from the sale to prepay the Company’s Asian
Revolving Loans in the amount of $5 million, Asian Term Loans in the amount of $25 million, to reduce
approximately $10.4 million of outstanding borrowings under the Domestic Revolving Loans and to redeem the
$25 million 6.5% Convertible Debenture due May 2007. The Asian Revolving Loans and Asian Term Loans
were permitted to be prepaid without penalty. The Company incurred a $563 thousand prepayment penalty as a
result of the redemption of the $25 million 6.5% Convertible Debenture due May 2007. Upon payment of the
outstanding obligations under the Company’s Asian Revolving Loans, Asian Term Loans, and $25 million 6.5%
Convertible Debenture due May 2007, the underlying agreements were terminated.

The Notes due 2013 mature on May 15, 2013 and bear interest at a rate of 4% per year. Interest is payable in
arrears on May 15 and November 15 of each year, beginning on November 15, 2006. The Notes due 2013 are
convertible at the option of the holder into shares of the Company’s common stock at any time prior to maturity,
unless the notes are earlier redeemed or repurchased. The Notes due 2013 are convertitle at an initial conversion
rate of 65.8328 shares per $1,000 principle amount, subject to certain adjustments. This is the equivalent to a
conversion price of $15.19 per share. The Notes due 2013 are general unsecured obligations of the Company and
are subordinate in right of payment to all of the Company’s existing and future senior debt, equal with any future
unsecured debt that is not senior debt.

5% Note Payable

On December 9, 2004, Merix Corporation issued a $2 million, 5% promissory note (the: “5% Notes”) in
connection with the acquisition of Data Circuits Holdings, Inc. The 5% Notes bear interest at a rate of 5% per
year and interest is payable quarterly. The remaining principal balance of $1 million matures in the third quarter
of the fiscal year 2007.

Subordinated Note Payable

On September 29, 2005, Merix Caymans Trading Company Limited (“Merix Caymans”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, issued a subordinated Promissory Note (“the Note”) to EPCH for a total of (a) $11
million, plus (b) the amount of the earn out consideration determined under the Master Sale and Purchase
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Agreement in connection with the acquisition of Merix Asia (see Note 2). The principal is to be paid in four
equal installments on March 1, 2007, December 1, 2007, December 1, 2008 and March 15, 2009. The
outstanding principal balance earns interest at 7% through December 1, 2006, 8% through December 1, 2007 and
9% thereafter, payable quarterly. Merix Caymans may offset its payment obligations under the Note by the
amount of warranty claims arising under the Master Sale and Purchase Agreement. The holder of the Note has a
limited right to accelerate payment upon Merix Caymans’ failure to make payments due under the Note, Merix
Caymans, Merix Caymans Holding Company Limited (“Merix Holdings™) or their subsidiaries raising debt and/
or equity financing proceeds in excess of $50 million or certain insolvency or bankruptcy events. The Note is
unsecured and subordinated to the Company’s obligations to its senior secured lender. The Note is subject to
various restricted covenants. Merix Caymans and Merix Holdings were in compliance with all applicable
covenants at May 27, 2006.

The Company has not accrued additional amounts relating to the earnout consideration component of the Note, as
the Company is unable to estimate additional earnout amounts to which it may be subject under the Master Sale
and Purchase Agreement. See Note 2.

Domestic Term Loan

On September 28, 2005, Merix Corporation entered into a Loan and Security Agreement with a bank group (the
“Loan Agreement”). Under the Loan Agreement, the lenders provided a term loan of $16.5 million and a
revolving line of credit of up to $38.5 million based on a borrowing base consisting primarily of the Company’s
accounts receivable. The maturity date of the Loan Agreement is September 28, 2010, with the principal of the
term loan to be repaid in 19 equal quarterly payments of $687 thousand each and a final payment on the maturity
date of $3.4 million. All revolving loans must be repaid in full on the maturity date. The initial loan proceeds
were used to fund the acquisition of Merix Asia. The obligations under the Loan Agreement are secured by
substantially all of the U.S. assets of the Company. The loans bear interest at (a) either the prime rate or LIBOR,
plus (b) an additional margin, which is 50 basis points higher for the term loan than for the revolving loan, based
on certain performance criteria. The Loan Agreement contains a number of restrictive covenants, all of which the
Company was in compliance with as of May 27, 2006. Specifically, the Company’s ability to down stream funds
to Merix Asia is limited, subject to certain conditions, to $10 million in the aggregate at any time. The Loan
Agreement is guaranteed by the following wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company: Merix Nevada, Inc.,
Merix Asia, Inc., a United States holding company, and Data Circuit Holdings, Inc. The weighted average
borrowing rate at May 27, 2006 on these instruments was 7.4%.

6.5 % Convertible Debenture

During the first quarter of the fiscal year 2003, the Company privately sold a $25 million 6.5% convertible
debenture due in May 2007. In May 2006, the Company used the proceeds from the sale of the 4% Convertible
Senior Subordinated Notes due 2013 to redeem the $25 million 6.5% convertible debenture. The debenture was
unsecured, convertible into shares of common stock at a fixed conversion price of $19.41, and became callable in
August 2004. Under the terms of the agreement, interest was payable quarterly, and the debenture contained a put
option that entitled the holder to require the Company to redeem the debenture at a price equal to 110% of the
principal balance upon a change in control of the Company. The put option was marked-to-market quarterly and
the change in fair value was recorded in the consolidated statements of operations. The debenture contained a
debt ratio incurrence restrictive covenant. ‘

Asian Revolving Loans and Asian Term Loan

On September 29, 2005, Merix Caymans, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a Credit
Agreement (“Credit Agreement”) with a bank group. Under the Credit Agreement, the lenders provided an initial
term loan of $21.3 million, a second term loan of $3.7 million and a revolving line of credit of $5.0 million, all of
which the Company prepaid on May 26, 2006 using the net proceeds from the 4% Convertible Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2013. The original maturity date of the Credit Agreement was March 15, 2009, with the
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principal of the term loans to be repaid in equal payments of $7.5 million on each of December 1, 2006, 2007 and
2008 and the balance payable, along with the outstanding balance of the revolving loan, on March 15, 2009. The
initial loan proceeds were used to fund the acquisition of Merix Asia. The obligations under the Credit
Agreement were collateralized by substantially all the assets of Merix Asia. The loans bore interest at (a) LIBOR,
plus (b) an additional margin i) of 250 basis points for the first year, and ii) an amount to be determined based on
certain performance criteria each year thereafter.

The Credit Agreement contained a number of restrictive covenants. For the period from January 12, 2006
through January 20, 2006 and again for the period from February 11, 2006 through February 24, 2006, the
Company was in technical default with the lender related to the perfection of a security pledge on collateral
located in the People’s Republic of China. The Company obtained a waiver of each technical default from the
lenders.

Capital Lease Obligations

Capital lease obligations represent financing obligations for machinery and equipment &t the Company’s Asian
facilities. The capital lease obligations are payable in monthly installments of principal and interest and are
collateralized by the related assets financed (See Note 11).

Deferred Financing Costs, net

Deferred financing costs, net at May 27, 2006 include $4.3 million of financing costs relating to the Notes due
2013 and $1.4 million of financing costs relating to the Domestic Term Loan. The finarcing costs are deferred
and amortized over the life of the outstanding debt to which it relates through the contractual maturity date, as
defined in the debt agreement.

Principal Payments of Long-Term Debt

Principal payments of long-term debt, including capital lease obligations, as of May 27, 2006, are as follows:

(in thousands)

Principal Payments of
For the Fiscal Year Ending: iLong-Term Debt
May 26,2007 ...ttt e $ 7,655
May 31, 2008 ... e 5,940
May 30, 2000 . ... e 8,262
May 29, 2010 ... .. e 2,750
May 30, 2011 ..o e 4,125
Thereafter ......... .. i, e 70,000
Total principal payments . . .. ...ttt enniie e $98,732

Note 11. LEASE AGREEMENTS
Capital Leases

In connection with the acquisition of Merix Asia (see Note 2), the Company assumed obligations for existing
leases classified as capital under the requirements of SFAS 13, “Accounting for Leases” (“SFAS 13”). All of the
acquired leases are for machinery and equipment for use in the manufacturing facilities located in Asia, with
original lease terms ranging from 8 to 48 months.
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The following is an analysis of the leased property under capital leases:

(in thousands)
Included in Assets Included in Assets

Class of Property at May 27, 2006 at May 28, 2005

Machinery & equipment . .............ooiea.... $2,090 $—

Less: Accumulated amortization . ................. (634) —
$1,456 $—

Consolidated future minimum lease payments under noncancelable capital leases as of May 27, 2006 are as
follows:

(in thousands)

Minimum Payments Under

For the Fiscal Year Ending: Capital Lease Obligations
May 26, 2007 ... e $1,311

May 31,2008 . ... 515

May 30,2000 .. ... 13

May 29,2000 ..t —

May 28, 2010 .. e —
Thereafter .. ... ... i e —

Total minimum lease payments ............... ..., $1,839

Less: Amount representing interest ..................... (232)
Present value of net minimum lease payments ................ $1,607
Operating Leases

In August 2000, the Company entered into a noncancelable operating lease agreement to lease a manufacturing
facility located in Wood Village, Oregon. Under the terms of the lease agreement, lease payments began in July
2001 and lease payments escalate at specific points over the minimum ten year term of the lease. Rent expense is
recognized on the straight line basis. The Company has the option to extend the term of the lease for three
consecutive five-year periods beyond the initial lease term.

Merix San Jose leases office space and production facilities under noncancelable operating lease agreements with
various initial terms ending through the fiscal year 2010 and options to extend the lease terms beyond the initial
lease terms through the fiscal year 2019. Lease payments escalate at specific points over the minimum five year
lease terms. Rent expense is recognized on the straight line basis.

Merix Asia leases office, apartment space and production facilities under noncancelable operating lease
agreements with various initial terms ending through the fiscal year 2008. Rent expense is recognized on the
straight line basis. These lease agreements do not contain options to extend the lease terms and the lease
payments do not escalate.

Rental expense under significant operating leases was $1.7 million, $886 thousand, and $614 thousand during the
fiscal years 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.
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Consolidated future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases that have lease terms in
excess of 12 months as of May 27, 2006 are as follows:

(in thousands)

Minimum Payments Under

For the Fiscal Year Ending: Operating; Lease Obligations
May 26, 2007 ...t $1,700
May 31,2008 . ..o e 1,241
May 30,2009 ... ... e 799
May 29,2010 ...ttt 751
May 28,2011 ...t 632
Thereafter . ... i e 53
$5,176

In 2003, the Company leased manufacturing equipment under an operating lease that was entered into as part of a
sales-leaseback transaction. The lease included a buy-out provision whereby the Company had the option to
purchase the equipment at the end of the fourth year. In the second quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company exercised
the buy-out option and paid $1.5 million for the purchase of the equipment, releasing the Company from further
obligation under this lease.

Note 12. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Company has a 1994 Stock Incentive Plan (“the 1994 Plan”) for employees, consulrants and directors of the
Company that was approved by the Company’s shareholders. The 1994 Plan, as amended, permits the grant of up
to 3,575,000 shares of authorized common stock in the form of incentive stock options, non-qualified stock
options, stock bonus rights, restricted stock awards and performance based awards to eniployees, independent
contractors and consultants. The 1994 Plan provides for automatic option grants of 20,000 shares to directors that
are not affiliated with Merix at the time the director is first elected to the board and 5,000 shares annually
thereafter.

The Company also has a Merix Corporation 2000 Nonqualified Stock Option Plan (“the 2000 Plan”) that was
adopted by the Company and did not require approval by the Company’s shareholders. The 2000 Plan, as
amended, permits the grant of up to 4,000,000 shares of authorized common stock in the form of nonqualified
stock options and stock awards to employees, directors and to non-employee consultants, agents and independent
contractors and advisors who provide services to the Company. The number of shares subject to stock options
and stock awards granted to officers and directors in any given year cannot exceed 25% of the total number of
shares subject to awards granted in that year.

In both plans, a committee of the Board of Directors has the authority to determine opticn prices. To date, all
options have been granted at or above the fair market value of the stock at the date of grant. The options vest as
determined by the Human Resources Compensation Committee (HRCC) of the Board of Directors and generally
become exercisable ratably over a four-year period, beginning one year after the date of grant. The options may
in no event have a term exceeding ten years from the date of grant.

On May 25, 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors accelerated vesting of outstanding ‘“‘underwater” employee
stock options with exercise prices greater that $8.00 per share. Approximately 1.3 million options, or
approximately 39% of the Company’s total outstanding options as of May 25, 2005, with varying remaining
vesting schedules, were subject to this acceleration and became immediately exercisable. As a result of this
acceleration, the Company expects to reduce its exposure to the effects of SFAS 123R. The Company currently
estimates a reduction in stock-based compensation expense associated with this acceleration of approximately
$329 thousand for fiscal year 2007 and an additional $300 thousand in total for subsequent years. This
acceleration only relates to specific underwater options, and accordingly, is not representative of the overall
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impact that SFAS 123R will have on the consolidated results of the Company’s operations, cash flows or
liquidity upon implementation of SFAS 123R. We estimate that the adoption of SFAS 123R will result in
approximately $500 thousand of stock option expense being recorded during the first quarter of the fiscal year
2007. '

A summary of stock option activity under both plané is as follows:

Number of Weighted Average

Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at May 31, 2003 . ... .. i 3,315,322 $12.49
Granted . . ... e 311,525 15.30
Exercised .......... i A (592,869) 7.80
Cancelled . ... e (112,774) 14.53
Outstanding at May 29,2004 .. .. .. ... i e 2,921,204 $13.67.
Granted . . . ... 803,687 - 9.86
BXercised . ... e (71,063) 7.22
Cancelled ... ... e (282,290) 12.94
Outstanding at May 28,2005 . ... .. ..\ttt e 3,371,538 $12.96
Granted . . ... .. S SR TP 1,181,400 6.94
Exercised ......... T e (212,339) 8.11
Cancelled ............... e P (837,760) 16.53
Outstanding at May 27,2006 . ... ... ot e 3,502,839 $10.37

The following table summarizes total stock options exercisable as of May 27, 2006, May 28, 2005 and
May 29, 2004:

Number of Weighted Average

Stock Options Exercisable as of: Shares Exercise Price
May 29,2004 ....... P 1,302,025 $15.05
May 28, 2005 ... e 3,253,336 12.99
May 27,2006 . .o 2,686,131 11.22

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding for both plans at May 27,
2006:

Options Outstanding Options Vested and Exercisable
Weighted Average
Number Remaining Weighted Average = Number of Shares Weighted Average
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Contractual Life (Years) Exercise Price Outstanding Exercise Price
$204-% 5.84 364,921 5.84 $ 5.00 58,671 $ 297
$ 585-8% 6.60 378,900 1.83 . $ 6.25 299,450 $ 6.19
$ 663-% 8.15 294,029 4.87 $ 7.56 140,253 $ 7.09
$ 8.19-% 834 384,627 347 $ 833 360,561 $ 834
§ 840-3% 857 386,033 3.06 $ 8.57 385,967 $ 857
$ 858-§% 9.22 366,924 5.17 $9.18 363,174 $ 018
$ 9.25-%$10.85 418,275 5.67 ' $ 9.96 213,925 $10.50
$11.12-$14.37 442,215 349 $12.73 408,465 $12.75
$15.28 - $21.51 368,965 348 $18.20 360,215 $18.22
$21.75 - $67.06 97,950 3.48 $35.84 95,450 $36.13
$ 2.04-$67.06 3,502,839 4.06 $10.37 2,686,131 $11.22
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The Company issues stock awards to certain employees of the Company. These awarcls include restricted stock
awards, performance stock awards and stock grants. Stock awards are subject to vesting and other terms, as
specified at the time of issuance by the HRCC Committee of the Board of Directors. Generally, restricted stock
awards vest ratably over a four-year period, beginning on the first anniversary of their issuance, and may contain
accelerated vesting provisions. Stock grants vest immediately and performance awards vest upon the satisfaction
of certain performance criteria. Unearned compensation expense is recognized ratably over the vesting period or
upon the satisfaction of certain performance criteria. The Company awarded 121,740, 46,000 and 30,500 of
shares of stock awards during the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006, May 28, 2005 and May 29, 2004, respectively,
of which 30,493 shares vested during the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006, none vested during the fiscal year
ended May 28, 2005 and 15,250 vested during the fiscal year ended May 29, 2004. Compensation expense of
$236 thousand, $116 thousand and $195 thousand related to the vesting of these shares was recorded during the
fiscal year ended May 27, 2006, May 28, 2005 and May 29, 2004, respectively. .

Note 13. EQUITY

On March 25, 1997, the Board of Directors adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan (the “Shareholder Rights Plan”)
designed to preserve and enhance shareholder value and the Company’s ability to carr/ out its long-term business
strategy. Under the Shareholder Rights Plan, the Company reserved 500,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock.
In connection with the adoption of the Plan, the Board of Directors declared a dividend distribution of one Right
per share of common stock, payable to the shareholders of record on April 25, 1997. One Right enables the
holder, under certain circumstances, to purchase one share of either Series A Preferred Stock or Common Stock
of the Company. The Company may redeem the Rights for $0.001 per Right under certain circamstances.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2004 the Company completed an underwritten public offering of 3,700,000 shares of
common stock at a price of $25.21 per share, less offering costs and underwriting discounts of $5.5 million,
providing net proceeds of $87.7 million.

Note 14. SEVERANCE AND IMPAIRMENT CHARGES

During the first quarter of fiscal 2006, the Company executed cost reduction actions that included a reduction in
approximately 130 employee positions across the Company’s manufacturing and support organizations,
predominantly in Oregon. The Company recorded a charge of $6358 thousand related to severance costs and $477
thousand for the impairment of certain fixed assets. As of May 27, 2006, the Company had no accrued liability
remaining.
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Note 15. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes was $460 thousand in 2006 and $8 thousand during the fiscal year 2005. During
" the fiscal year 2006, the Company’s book income before income tax and minority interests of $2.3 million
consisted of $9.0 million of pre-tax income in the United States and $6.7 million of foreign pre-tax loss. Income
tax expense consists of federal, state and foreign income taxes. Deferred income taxes are determined based on
differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities, using currently enacted tax
rates expected to be in effect during the year in which the basis differences reverse. The provision for income
taxes consisted of the following:
(in thousands)
For the Year Ended:
May 27, May28, May 29,

2006 2005 2004
Current:
Federal . .. oo $ 199 $ -~ $—
) 71 < 63 2 —
FOTEIgn ..ot e 198 —
Total CUTTENT . .. e e e $ 460 $ 8 $—
Deferred:
Federal . .. o $ 2,666 $(487) $ (46)
Sl L ottt e e e 3 A17H 96
Boreign .. (998) — —
Total deferred . ...t e s $ 1,605 $604) $ 50
Valuation allowance: -
Federal .. ... $(2,666) $487 $ 46
SHALE - v v e e e e e 63 117  (96)
Boreign ... e 998 — —
Total valuation alloWanCe . .. .............oouvevnn.. DU $(1,605) $604 $ (50)
TNCOME TAX EXPEIISE « « v v e v te e et te e ettt et e e et e et e e e $ 460 $§ 8 S$—

The principal differences between taxes on income computed at the federal statutory rate of 34% during the fiscal
years 2006, 2005 and 2004 and recorded income tax expense were as follows:

(in thousands)
For the Year Ended:

May 27, May28, May 29,
2006 2005 2004

Tax computed at SLAULOTY FATE . .. ..o ettt ettt et e e e $ 770 $(885) % 9
State income taxes, net of federalbenefit . ........... ... ... ... .. . 295 (86) 1
Effect of foreign income tax rates . ...... Y (263) — —
Federal qualified research expenditures credit ............................... (157) (342) —_
State tax credits, net of federal benefits .. ......... .. .. .. i 295) (11D
Non-deductible items:
Intercompany charges not deductible in certain foreign jurisdictions ......... 444 — —
Interest expense not deductible in certain foreign jurisdictions .............. 506 — —
Amortization of intangibles . ........ .. ... 521 — —
Other .. e 454 133 28
Change in valuation allowance . ......... ... i, (1,605) 604 (38)

Other,net. ... ... ... .. ... . P (210) 695 -—

$ 460 $§ 8 §$—




Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

(in thousands)
May 27, May 28,

2006 2005
Deferred tax assets - current:
INVENIOTIES . .ottt e e e $ 1,589 § 1,135
Vacation acCrual .. ... uu vt i e e e 614 377
Sales AllOWaNCeS .. ..o e e 355 344
Other . e 953 721
Deferred tax assets - CUTTENE . . .. v vttt vttt e et et et e $ 3,511 $ 2,577
Deferred tax assets - long-term:
Alternative minimum tax cTedIt .. .. ..ottt $ 749 § 549
Net operating loss carryforward .. ....... ... it 17,827 19,333
Qualified research expenditures and other credits .......................... ... 3,399 2,887
Deferred tax assets - long-term ... ...c..vit i i e $21,975 § 22,769
Deferred tax liabilities - long-term: '
Intangible basis difference ........ ... ... . . $ (1,767) $ (2,708)
Fixed asset basis difference .......... ... i 6,716)  (6,671)
BT . oot e (485) (363)
Deferred tax liabilities - long-term .. ............. ... ... i, $ (8,968) $ (9,742)
Net deferred tax asset before effect of valuation allowance .. ..................... ... 16,518 15,604
Valuation alloWance .. ..ottt e e (16,518) (15,604)
Net deferred tax @SSET . ..ottt et e et et $§f — $ —

At May 27, 2006, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $42.4 million, $59.1
million and $11.7 million for US federal, US state and foreign income tax purposes, respectively. As of May 27,
2006, the Company had unused federal and state credit carryforwards of approximately $2.4 million and $1.1
million, respectively. Net operating losses and research expenditures credits will expire between the fiscal years
2007 and 2026 and certain state credits may be carried forward indefinitely until exhausted. In addition, the
Company had alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards of approximately $749 thousand, which are
available to reduce future federal regular income taxes, if any, over an indefinite period. The ultimate realization
of these deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income hefore these carryforwards
expire. Net operating losses in Hong Kong can be carried forward indefinitely and net operating losses in the
People’s Republic of China expire between fiscal 2007 and 2011.

SFAS 109 requires that historical operating losses must weigh heavily in assessing the realizability of deferred
tax assets. Accordingly, a full valuation allowance against the net deferred tax asset wes recorded due to losses
generated during the three prior years and the lack of positive evidence to support the utilization of net operating
losses and other tax attributes against future income.

The cumulative increase in the valuation allowance for the years ended May 27, 2006, May 28, 2005 and
May 29, 2004 was an increase of approximately $914 thousand, a decrease of approxiraately $3.9 million and an
increase of approximately $2.9 million, respectively. The cumulative increase in the vzluation allowance during
the fiscal year 2006 is a result of an increase of approximately $2.2 million due to purchase accounting

- adjustments related to the purchase of Merix Asia, a decrease due to ordinary operations of $1.6 million and an
increase of $321 thousand due to stock option activity. Deferred tax assets and related valuation allowances of
approximately $3.2 million relate to certain US federal and state NOL carryforwards resulting from the exercise
of employee stock options, the tax benefit of which, when recognized, will be accounted for as an increase to
additional paid-in capital rather than a reduction of the income tax provision. When realization of the deferred tax
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asset is more-likely-than-not to occur, the benefit related to the deductible temporary differences attributable to
ordinary operations will be recognized as a reduction of income tax expense. The benefit related to deductible
temporary differences attributable to purchase accounting may result in a reduction to goodwill.

A subsidiary in the People’s Republic of China is in a tax holiday effective through December 2009, whereby the
applicable statutory rate is zero through December 2006 and subject to a reduced rate of 12% through December
2009. The impact of the China tax holiday was to increase net income by $381 thousand ($0.02 per diluted share)
during the fiscal year 2006.

The Company will provide for United States income taxes on the earnings of foreign subsidiaries if foreign
subsidiaries have positive taxable earnings and they are not considered indefinitely reinvested outside of the
United States. The Company indefinitely reinvests the cuamulative undistributed earnings of its foreign
subsidiaries. At May 27, 2006, the cumulative earnings and profits of foreign subsidiaries was a taxable deficit.

Note 16. NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic income (loss) per share is computed using the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding for the period. Diluted net income per share is computed using the weighted average number of
shares of common stock and potentially dilutive common shares related to stock options and the convertible
debenture outstanding during the period. Dilutive potential common shares related to outstanding stock options
of 195,855 and 636,698 were included in the calculation of diluted net income per share for the fiscal years ended
May 27, 2006 and May 29, 2004, respectively. No incremental shares were included in the calculations of net
loss per share for the year ended May 28, 2005, because including these shares would have been anti-dilutive.

The following table represents reconciliation from basic net income (loss) per share to diluted net income (loss)
per share. Options to purchase 2,819,706, 1,702,278 and 751,833 shares of common stock were outstanding at
May 27, 2006, May 28, 2005 and May 29, 2004, respectively, however, were not included in the computation of
diluted net income (loss) per share, because the options’ exercise prices were greater than the average market
price of the common shares, and therefore, the effect would be anti-dilutive.

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

May 27, May 28, May 29,
2006 2005 2004

Determination of Net Income (Loss) Per Share - Basic:
Netincome (JOSS) ..o ivi ittt i e e e e $ 1,432 $(2,610) $ 28
Divided by: weighted average number of basic shares ................. 19,519 19,224 16,194
Net income (loss) per share - basic .......... e $ 007 $ (014 $ 0.00
Determination of Net Income (Loss) Per Share - Diluted:
Net income (JOSS) . ..o vttt e e $ 1,432 $@2,6100 $ 28
Divided by: weighted average number of diluted shares ................ 19,715 19,224 16,830
Net income (loss) per share -diluted ............................... $ 0.07 $ (0.14) $ 0.00

The following incremental shares were excluded from the calculation of diluted net income (loss), because
including these shares would have been anti-dilutive:

For the Year Ended:
May 27, May 28, May 27,
2006 2005 2004
Incremental weighted average shares related to:
Outstanding StoCK OPtions .. ........ovueiiiii it 2,819,706 1,702,278 751,833
Convertible debentures . .........c it 1,382,988 1,287,996 1,287,996
Total . e 4,202,694 2,990,274 2,039,829




Note 17. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Comprehensive income (loss) is as follows:

(in thousands)

For the Year Ended:
May 27, May28, May29,
2006 2005 2004
Net inCome (I0SS) . ..o vttt et e e e $1,432 3(2,610) $ 28
Other comprehensive income
Change in cumulative translation adjustment ... ..................... 13 — —
Total other comprehensiveincome ............ ... ..., 13 — —
Total comprehensive income (10SS) ... . .vvrn ittt $1,445 $(2,610) $ 28

The compenents of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are as follows:

(in thousands)
For the Year Ended:

;. May 27, May28, May?29,
2006 2005 2004

Cumulative translation adjustment . . .. .... .o oottt e $13 $—  $—

Note 18. OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Company has three reportable business segments defined by geographic location in accordance with SFAS
131: (1) Merix Oregon, (2) Merix San Jose and (3) Merix Asia. Operating segments are: defined as components
of an enterprise for which separate financial information is available and regularly revicwed by senior
management. The Company’s operating segments are evidence of the internal structure of the Company’s
organization. Each segment operates predominately in the same industry with production facilities that produce
similar customized products for its customers. The production facilities, sales management and chief decision-
makers for all processes are managed by the same executive team. The Company’s chief operating decision
maker (CODM) is the Company’s Chief Executive Officer.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies in Note 1. Net sales by geographic operating segment are defined as net sales consummated
within the region where the sale originated. The Company defines the sales origination to be the region where the
product is manufactured. Prior to the acquisition of Merix Asia on September 29, 2005, the Company reported
geographic consolidated net sales based on the domicile of the OEM customer. Subsequent to the acquisition of
Merix Asia, the Company changed its reporting definition of geographic net sales origination from the domicile
of the OEM customer to net sales by manufacturing location.

All corporate-type expenses have been included in the Merix Oregon segment.
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Net sales, depreciation expense, amortization expense of identifiable intangible assets, operating income, a
reconciliation of operating income to net income, capital expenditures, accounts receivables, net, inventories,
property, plant and equipment, net, goodwill and total assets for each operating segment are regularly reviewed

by management and are therefore provided below:

(in thousands)

Merix Merix Merix
Oregon San Jose Asia Consolidated
For the Fiscal Year Ended May 27, 2006:
Netsales ..ot e $193,258 $32,256 $83,468 $308,982
Depreciation eXpense . ........ ...ttt (12,485) (1,461) (3,845) (17,791)
Amortization expense - identifiable intangible assets ........... — (2,687) 419) (3,106)
Operating income (10S8) .. ... ..o i 10,254 321 (706) 9,869
Debt extinguishment costs ...............c.oovvunn.... (864) — (956) (1,820)
Interestincome ...t 1,799 5 30 1,834
Interest €Xpense . ...t (4,094) — (1,965) (6,059)
Other income (expense), net ... .........cveuiuvreeenn... (15) 10 (1,555) (1,560)
Income (loss) before taxes and minority interests .............. 7,080 336 (5,152) 2,264
INCOME tAX EXPENSE .. oo vttt it 264 — 196 460
Income (loss) before minority interests . ..................... 6,816 336 (5,348) 1,804
Minority interests in net income of consolidated subsidiaries, net
03 - - — — 372 372
Netincome (JOSS) ... vvitn i e e $ 6816 $ 336 $(57200 $ 1,432
(in thousands)
Merix Merix Merix
Oregon San Jose Asia Consolidated
For the Fiscal Year Ended May 28, 2005:
Netsales .. ... e e e $173,744 $13,250 $§ — $186,994
Depreciation €Xpemse .. ... c.veunte ittt (13,050) (688) — (13,738)
Amortization expense - identifiable intangible assets ........... — (1,386) — (1,386)
Operating income (1088) . ...t (2,750) 113 — (2,637)
INterest iNCOME . .. ..o\ v ti i i 2,013 — — 2,013
Interest expense . .........c...iiiiiiiiii i (1,681) — — (1,681)
Other income (expense), net. ... .....c.oovvvenveenenn.. (29%) 1 — (297)
Income (loss) before taxes and minority interests .............. (2,716) 114 — (2,602)
Income tax eXpense . .........c.cueruriinuree, 8 — — 8
Income (loss) before minority interests ...................... (2,724) 114 — (2,610)
Minority interests in net income of consolidated subsidiaries, net
Ot . e — — — —
Netincome (10SS) ..o ovver et $ 2724 % 114 § — $ (2,610)
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For the Fiscal Year Ended May 29, 2004:

Netsales . ...,
Depreciation EXpense . ... ... vveeen e,

Amortization expense - identifiable intangible assets

Operating income
Interest income

Interestexpense .......... ...,
Other expense, net .............oovviiunns,

Income before taxes and minority interests . .. ... ...
Incometaxexpense ......... ... .. i,

Income before minority interests . ................

(in thousands)

Minority interests in net income of consolidated subsidiaries, net of

L

Capital Expenditures:

Merix Oregon . .......oooiiiiiin i,
Merix SanJose ........... i i
Merix ASIa . ... v e

Accounts Receivable, net:

Merix Oregon
Merix San Jose

Inventories:

Merix Oregon
Merix San Jose

Total

Merix Asia . ... o

MeriX ASIA ..o v it e e

Merix Merix Merix
Oregon San Jose Asia  Consolidated
............. $156,400 $-— $— $156,400
............. (10,298) -— — (10,298)
............. 1,155 -— — 1,155
............. 728 -— — 728
............. (1,636) -— — (1,636)
............. 219) -— — (219)
............. 28 -— — 28
............. 28 -— — 28
............. $ 28 $-—- $— 8 28
(in thousands)
For the Year Ended:
Mzay 27, May 28, May 29,
2006 2005 2004
........................ $2,720 $¥5215 $13,684
........................ 1,625 598 —
........................ 2,901 —_ —
........................ $7,246 $15,813 $13,684

(in thousands)

May 27, May 28,
2006 2005
............................... $49,005 $34,056
............................... 5,231 3,282
............................... 21,143 —
............................... $75,379 $37,338

(in thousands)

May 27, May 28,
2006 2005
............................... $13,079 $10,372
............................... 1,125 855
............................... 10,180 —
............................... $24,384 311,227

177



(in thousands)

: May 27, May 28,
' 2006 © 2005
Assets Held for Sale:
MeriX OTEZOM ..o ottt ittt ittt e e e e et e $ 1987 § —
Merix San Jose ..o e — —
MeriXx ASIA . . ..o oo e e — —_
Ot o e e e e $ 1987 § —

(in thousands)

May 27, May 28,
2006 2005
Property, Plant and Equipment, net:
MeriX OEZOM . ..ttt t ittt e e e . $ 69,640 $ 83,593
MeriX San JOSE oottt e 4,680 4,539
MeEriX A ST . v vttt e 48,542 —
TOta] o $122,862 $ 88,132

(in thousands)

May 27, May 28,
2006 2005
Goodwill:
METIX OTEZOM . .. ottt e e e $  — $  —
MeriX Sam JOSE . ot e e e e 25,551 25,551
METIX AT . ottt e 64,338 —
TOtal e e $ 89,889 $ 25,551
(in thousands)
May 27, May 28,
2006 2005
Total Assets:
METIX OTEEOM .+ vt vttt ettt $168,300 $207,231
Merix San Jose .. i e 45,303 46,710
MeETiX AT v . oot e e e e 165,327 —
Total .o B $378,930  $253,941

Major Customers: The Company’s five largest OEM customers, which vary from year to year, comprised 39%,
59% and 68% of the Company’s consolidated net sales during the fiscal years ended May 27, 2006, May 28,
2005 and May 29, 2004, respectively. Net sales to one customer individually represented 20% of consolidated net
sales during the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006. Net sales to this customer primarily related to the Merix Oregon
operating segment. Comparatively, sales to two OEM customers individually represented 29% and 16% of
consolidated net sales during the fiscal year ended May 28, 2005 and 35% and 15% of consolidated net sales
during the fiscal year ended May 29, 2004,

The following are our significant end customers by operating segment:

Merix Oregon — Merix Oregon’s five largest customers during the fiscal year 2006, in alphabetic order,
were Cisco Systems Inc., Juniper Networks Inc., Motorola Inc., Nokia Corporation, and Nortel Networks
Inc. During the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006, Merix Oregon’s net sales to Cisco Systems and Motorola
represented 32% and 13%, respectively, of Merix Oregon’s net sales.
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Merix Asia — Merix Asia’s five largest customers during the fiscal year 2006, in alphabetic order, were
Astec. Power, Lear Corporation, Robert Bosch Corporation, TRW Automotive, Inc. and Visteon
Corporation. During the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006, Merix Asia’s net sales to TRW Automotive,
Visteon and Robert Bosch Corporation represented 21%, 12% and 10%, respectively, of Merix Asia’s net
sales.

Merix San Jose — Merix San Jose’s five largest customers during the fiscal year 2006, in alphabetic order,
were Aeroflex, Medtronic Inc., Paramit Corporation, Sauer Danfoss Inc. and Solectron USA Inc. During the
fiscal year ended May 27, 2006, none of Merix San Jose’s customers represented 10% or more of Merix San
Jose’s net sales.

Note 19. BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has two defined contribution plans, one in Oregon and one in California, which meet the
requirements of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code for all regular employees and-executive officers.
Under the 401(k) plan for employees that reside in Oregon, the Company matches employee contributions of
100% of the first 3% of an employee’s base pay and Company contributions vest at a rate of 25% a year. The
Company’s contributions may be made in cash or in the Company’s stock. During the fiscal years 2006, 2005
and 2004, contribution expense related to this plan was $1.1 million, $1.6 million, and $1.4 million, respectively.
Under the 401(k) plan for employees that reside in California, the Company matches employee contributions of
20% of the first 5% of an employee’s base pay and Company contributions vest at a rate of 20% a year after the
first year. During fiscal year 2006, 2005 and 2004 contribution expense related to this plan was $71 thousand,
$25 thousand and $0, respectively. During the calendar year 2005, the Company was not in compliance with
certain 401 (k) regulations relating to highly compensated employees within its 401(k) plan. Contributions for
highly compensated employees exceeded allowed limits by $43 thousand during the calendar year 2005.

Certain Merix Asia employees are entitled to receive a long service payment if they have been employed under a
continuous contract for a period of not less than five years. Upon termination of employment, the employee is
entitled to receive both the long service payment, if eligible, and severance payment, which are together
calculated as the lesser of (1) the employee’s last full month’s wages multiplied by twc-thirds multiplied by the
employee’s total number of service years, or (2) 22,500 Hong Kong Dollars (approximately US$3 thousand at
May 27, 2006) multiplied by two-thirds multiplied by the employee’s total number of service years. The total
cumulative severance and long service plan payment are subject to a maximum payment not to exceed 390,000
Hong Kong Dollars (approximately US$50 thousand at May 27, 2006). The Company’s Long Service Payment
Plan accrual at May 27, 2006 was $2.4 million. During the fiscal year 2006, contribution expense related to this
plan was $59 thousand.

Note 20. CONCENTRATIONS OF RISK

The Company is subject to concentrations of credit risk, primarily associated with cash and cash equivalents,
short-term investments and accounts receivables. To mitigate risk associated with cash, cash equivalents, and
investments, the Company places cash, cash equivalents, and investments with financial institutions with
investment grade credit ratings and limits the amount of credit exposure to any one financial institution. To
mitigate risk associated with short-term investments, the Company further selects investments with creditworthy
investees and diversifies the portfolio. The Company’s more significant credit risk is attributable to accounts
receivables. The Company’s credit risk surrounding accounts receivables are mitigated. through (a) ongoing
credit evaluations of customers, (b) monitoring of current changes in the customers’ businesses, and

(c) responding to circumstances promptly. The accounts receivable can either be due from an OEM customer or
its electronic manufacturing service provider, depending upon the billing arrangement.

In total, five entities represented approximately 39% of the net trade accounts receivable balance at May 27,
2006, individually ranging from 5% to 15%. Comparatively, five entities represented approximately 67% of the
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net trade accounts receivable balance at May 28, 2005, individually ranging from 5% to 39%. The risk in trade
accounts receivable is limited due to the creditworthiness of entities to which we sell products and the relatively
stable geopolitical environment of the countries in which these entities reside. The Company has not had
significant losses related to its accounts receivable in the past.

Certain of the Company’s products use types of laminate materials that are only available from a single supplier
that holds a patent on the material. Although other manufacturers of advanced printed circuit boards must also
use the single supplier, and the Company’s OEM customers generally determine the type of laminate materials
used, a failure to obtain the material from the single supplier, for any reason, may cause disruption, and possible
cancellation, of orders for printed circuit boards using that type of laminate, which in turn would cause a decrease
in the Company’s consolidated net sales.

Note 21. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Litigation
In the normal course of business, the Company is party to various legal claims, actions and complaints.

On June 17, 2004, the Company and certain of its executive officers and directors were named as defendants in
the first of four purported class action lawsuits alleging violations of federal securities laws. These four cases,
which were filed in the United States District Court for the District of Oregon, have now been consolidated in a
single action entitled “In re Merix Securities Litigation”, Lead Case No. CV 04-826-MO. A lead plaintiff was
appointed, who filed a consolidated and amended class action complaint on November 15, 2004. On
September 15, 2005, the court dismissed the complaint, without prejudice, and gave plaintiffs leave to amend
their complaint. On November 18, 2005, the lead plaintiff filed an amended complaint. The complaint, as
amended, alleges that the defendants violated the federal securities laws by making certain alleged inaccurate and
misleading statements in the Prospectus used in connection with the January 2004 public offering. On

January 26, 2006, the defendant’s filed a motion to dismiss the amended complaint. The Company intends to
continue to vigorously defend itself and the officer and director defendants.

On July 2, 2004, two derivative lawsuits were filed in the Circuit Court for the State of Oregon, County of
Multnomah, against certain of the Company’s officers and directors based on the same allegations made in the
class action lawsuit. The Company is named as a nominal defendant in these derivative lawsuits, which have now
been consolidated under a single action entitled “In re Merix Corporation Derivative Litigation”, Lead Case
No. 0407-06807. On April 29, 2008, plaintiffs filed a consolidated shareholder derivative complaint in which
they allege breaches of fiduciary duties and mismanagement by the defendants. Plaintiffs seek unspecified
damages from the defendants, purportedly on behalf of the Company, as well as the derivative plaintiffs’
attorneys’ fees and costs. On August 31, 2005, the federal court hearing the class action lawsuit described above
granted a motion to stay discovery in this state-court derivative action. On September 13, 2005, the state court
stayed all proceedings in the derivative lawsuit pending further developments in the federal class action lawsuit,
including all proceedings on a motion that the defendants filed on July 7, 2005 to dismiss the consolidated
shareholder derivative complaint.

In each complaint, the plaintiffs seek unspecified damages from the defendants. A potential loss or range of loss
that could arise from these complaints is not estimable or probable at this time. The Company has recorded
charges for estimated probable costs associated with defending these claims, as it is the Company’s policy to
accrue legal fees when it is probable that the Company will have to defend itself against known claims or
allegations and it can reasonably estimate the amount of anticipated expense.

We are from time to time made subject to employment-related claims and other commercial claims in the
ordinary course of our business. We have recorded charges for the estimated probable costs associated with
defending these claims. We believe that our reserves are adequate and that the outcome should not have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated results of operations, financial condition or liquidity.
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Environmental Matters

The process to manufacture printed circuit boards requires adherence to environmental regulations regarding the
storage, use, handling and disposal of chemicals, solid wastes and other hazardous materizls as well as air quality
standard applicable in each of the jurisdictions in which the Company operates. The Company’s plants in Huiyung
and Huizhou currently are not compliant with all applicable environmental permits and requirements. The Company
has worked cooperatively with regulators in the People’s Republic of China and has agreed upon a remediation
plan. The Company anticipates that this plan, if executed, would not result in any unplanned fines, penalties or
costs. The Company incurred $340 thousand and $600 thousand of environmental remediation costs relating to the
Huiyang facility and Huizhou facility, respectively, in the People’s Republic during the fiscal year ended May 27,
2006. Management believes that its other facilities comply in all material respects with applicable environmental
laws and regulations. The Company has in the past received certain notices of violations aad has been required to
engage in certain minor corrective activities. There can be no assurance that violations will not occur in the future.

Commitments

As of May 27, 2006, the Company had capital commitments of approximately $8.2 million primarily relating to
the purchase of manufacturing equipment.

On April 14, 2005, the Company entered into a Master Sale and Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) with
EPCH. Pursuant to the Agreement, the Company acquired from EPCH the operations of Eastern Pacific Circuits,
Ltd and certain of its subsidiaries, a Hong Kong based supplier of printed circuit boards, for a total purchase
price of $120.3 million, (1) subject to adjustment based on changes in working capital, (2) subject to an
additional earn out payment of up to $13 million if the business meets certain adjusted EBITDA targets in
calendar 20035, and (3) subject to revised purchase price negotiations based on a revised Merix Asia business
valuation. The Company is continuing to work with EPCH to finalize the purchase price; however, the Company
is currently unable to estimate the date on which the purchase price will be finalized. The Company has not
recorded or accrued for any potential additional consideration relating to the earn out clause, as the Company is
unable to determine the amounts, if any, of additional consideration that will be paid.

The Company has consignment agreements with certain suppliers for raw material inveritory, some of which
obligate the Company to purchase inventory on hand upon termination of the agreement. As of May 27, 2006,
potential commitments under these agreements were insignificant.

Note 22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On September 29, 2005, Merix Caymans entered into an inter-company loan agreement (“the Loan”) with Merix
Corporation. Under the terms of the agreement, Merix Corporation loaned $41.2 million to Merix Caymans with
interest payable at a rate equal to 110% of the Federal mid-term rate for each quarter. The loan proceeds were
used to fund the acquisition of Merix Asia. Interest payments are due on September 1, December 1 and March 1
of each year, as well as on the last Friday in May of each year. The unpaid principal and accrued unpaid interest
on the Loan are payable in full on the last Friday of May of each year, or, on September 1, December 1, March 1
and on the last Friday in May of each year, the unpaid principal amount of the Loan is rolled over into a new
loan. In the event that the parties are no longer affiliated entities, the unpaid principal and accrued unpaid interest
on the Loan will be due immediately and payable in full and the agreement will automatically terminate. During
the year ended May 27, 2006, $1.3 million of interest relating to the Loan was paid to Merix Corporation. All
accrued principal and interest amounts relating to the Loan were eliminated in consolidation in accordance with
the Company’s consolidation policies described in Note 1.

On May 24, 2006, Merix Caymans added an addendum to the inter-company loan agreement with Merix
Corporation discussed above, whereby Merix Corporation loaned an additional $30 million to Merix Caymans
(“the $30 Million Loan™) for the purpose of paying off the Merix Asia $30 million Standard Charter Bank (SCB)
debt. Interest is payable at a rate equal to 110% of the Federal mid-term rate for each quarter. Interest payments
are due on September 1, December 1 and March 1 of each year, as well as on the last Friday in May of each year,
beginning on May 28, 2006. The unpaid principal and accrued unpaid interest on the $30 Million Loan are
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payable in full on the last Friday of May of each year, or, on September 1, December 1, March 1 and on the last
Friday in May of each year, the unpaid principal amount of the $30 Million Loan is rolled over into a new loan.
In the event that the parties are no longer affiliated entities, the unpaid principal and accrued unpaid interest on
the $30 Million Loan will be due immediately and payable in full and the agreement will automatically
terminate. During the year ended May 27, 2006, no interest relating to the $30 Million Loan was paid to Merix
Corporation. All accrued principal amounts relating to the Loan were eliminated in consolidation in accordance
with the Company’s consolidation policies described in Note 1.

During the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006, the Company paid the following amounts to Huizhou Desay
Holdings Co. Ltd, a minority shareholder: $149 thousand for consulting fees, $131 thousand for rental fees, $16
thousand for management fees, and $12 thousand for other fees.

During the fiscal year ended May 27, 2006, a $1.6 million distribution was paid to minority shareholders in the
People’s Republic of China relating to earnings generated from the following four Merix Asia facilities prior to
the Company’s acquisition of Merix Asia: Huizhou facility, Huiyang facility, Dongguan, Luen Yip facility and
Lomber facility (each located in the People’s Republic of China). The Company will continue to be obligated to
pay its minority shareholders based on the profits of each of these facilities.

Note 23. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 18, 2006 the Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong performed an independent assessment of the
capital value of the capital lease of the Hong Kong facility that was assigned to the Company during the purchase
of Merix Asia on September 29, 2005. As a result of the assessment, the Inland Revenue Department of Hong
Kong assessed the Company approximately $495 thousand of additional stamp duties on its Hong Kong facility.
The consolidated balance sheet at May 27, 2006, the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended
May 27, 2006 and the purchase price of Merix Asia have been adjusted to reflect the additional stamp duties
assessed to the Company.

On August 10, 2006, the Company entered into an agreement with a third party to sell two condominiums in
Ontario, Canada for 232 thousand Canadian Dollars. The condominiums were formerly utilized as sales offices
by certain sales representatives of the Company in Canada. As the condominiums were marketed for sale in
August 2006 and were sold in August 2006, the consolidated balance sheet as of May 27, 2006 and the
consolidated statement of operations and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended May 27,
2006 were not adjusted to reflect this sale.

Note 24. SUPPLEMENTARY DATA - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Fiscal Year 2006
1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr
Netsales ..ot e $51,787 $61,672 $95,130 $100,393
Gross profit .. ... . e 7,615 7416 16,571 22,516
Operating income (10SS) .. ... .ot i i (638) (1,533) 3,052 8,988
Netincome (J0SS) . ..ot (545) (2,346) 809 3,514
Basic netincome (loss) pershare . .............. .. .. .. ... .... (0.03) 0.12) 0.04 0.18
Diluted net income (loss) pershare . ........... ... (0.03) (0.12) 0.04 0.17
Fiscal Year 2005
1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr
Netsales . .vit i e e e $42,130 $43,244 $50,008 $ 51,612
Gross Profit . ...t e e 4,393 5,685 7,419 6,292
Operating income (0SS} . ....... ot (1,935) 649 414 (1,765)
Netincome (I088) . ..ottt e e i (1,974) 681 393 1,710)
Basic net income (loss) pershare .............. ... .. .. ... ..... (0.10) 0.04 0.02 (0.09)
Diluted net income (loss) pershare .. ........... ... ... ........ (0.10) 0.04 0.02 (0.09)




Note 25. OPERATING SEGMENTS - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Refer to Note 18 for discussion surrounding the identification of the Company’s operating segments, accounting
policies relating to the Company’s operating segments and other operating segment information.

- All corporate-type expenses have been included in the Merix Oregon segment.

Net sales, depreciation expense, amortization expense of identifiable intangible assets, operating income, a
reconciliation of operating income to net income, capital expenditures, accounts receivables, net, inventories,
property, plant and equipment, net, goodwill and total assets for each operating segment are regularly reviewed

by management and are therefore provided below:

For the Three Months Ended February 25, 2006:

Netsales . ...
Depreciation eXpense . .. .........oennieenenn..
Amortization expense - identifiable intangible assets

Operating income (loss) ........................
Interestincome ............... ... .. ... ...,
Interestexpense ........... ... . Ll
Other income (expense), net .................

Income (loss) before taxes and minority interests

Income taxexpense ............ ...,

Income (loss) before minority interests

Minority interests in net income of consolidated subsidiaries, net of
2 .

Netincome (JOSS) . .. ..ot e i

For the Three Months Ended February 26, 2005:

Netsales . ... i
Depreciation expense . . ...
Amortization expense - identifiable intangible assets

Operating income (10ss) ............o i,
Interestincome ............... . ... .. ...,
Interestexpense ... ...,
Other income (expense), net .................

Income (loss) before taxes and minority interests

Income tax expense ..............coovininiinan.n

Income (loss) before minority interests

Minority interests in net income of consolidated subsidiaries, net of
2 . G

Netincome (I08S) . ... .ot i it ans

(in thousands, unaudited)

Merix Merix Merix
Oregon  San Jose Asia Consolidated

$49.469 $8,278 $37,383  $95,130
(3,017)  (411) (1,805) (5,233)
— (606) (248) (854)

3,885 224 (1,057) 3,052

337 1 22 360
(1,390)  — (842)  (2,232)
172 7 127 38
3,004 218 (2,004 1218
13 — 278 391
2,891 218 (2,282) 827
— — 18 18

$280 § 218 $(2,300) $ 809

(in thousands, unaudited)

Merix Merix Merix
Oregon  San Jose Asia Consolidated
$44,273 $5,7135 $ — $50,008
(3,247)  (197) — (3,444)
— (535) — (635)
597 (183) — 414
472 — — 472
(428) — — (428)
(69) 4 — (65)
572 (179) — 393
572 (179) —_ 393
$ 572 $(179 $§ — $ 393




(in thousands, unaudited)

Merix Merix Merix
Oregon San Jose Asia Consolidated
For the Nine Months Ended February 25, 2006:
Nt Sales .ot e e $139,748 $23,349 $45,492 $208,589
Depreciation EXPense ... .. .vcut ettt e 9,5100 (1,097 (2,311)  (12,918)
Amortization expense - identifiable intangible assets ........... — (2,107) (325) (2,432)
Operating income (I0SS) ... ..ot 3,531 49  (2,699) 881
Interest INCOME . .. ..ottt e e e e 1,419 1 25 1,445
Interest eXpense . ..........iiiiii i e (2,697) — (1,080) 3,777)
Other income (Xpense), Net. . ... ..o vuivrrinneeennnenns 59) 10 (102) (151
Income (loss) before taxes and minority interests .............. 2,194 60 (3,856) (1,602)
Income tax eXpense . ............iiiiiiii e 119 — 330 449
Income (loss) before minority interests .. .................... 2,075 60  (4,186) (2,051)
Minority interests in net income of consolidated subsidiaries, net
Of taX . o e — — 31 31
Netincome (10SS) . .o v vi ittt e e $ 2,075 % 60 $4,217) $ (2,082)

(in thousands, unaudited)

Merix Merix Merix

Oregon San Jose Asia Consolidated
For the Nine Months Ended February 26, 2005:
NetSaAlES . .ottt e $129,647 $ 5735 $§ — $135,382
Depreciation eXpense . ... ....ouu vttt e (9,709) (197) — (9,906)
Amortization expense - identifiable intangible assets ........... — (635) — (635)
Operating loss . .. ..ottt (689) (183) — (872)
Interestincome ........... ... ... 0. 1,456 — — 1,456
Interest EXpense . ....... ..t (1,260) — — (1,260)
Other income (expense), net . . .. ...t rnann.. (227) 4 — (223)
Loss before taxes and minority interests ..................... (720) (179) — (899)
INCOME taX EXPEMNSE . ..ottt ittt et 1 — — 1
Loss before minority interests . .................c. i, (721) (179) — (900)
Minority interests in net income of consolidated subsidiaries, net
Of taX . o e e — — — —
Nt oSS oot e e $ (72108 (179 § — $ (900)
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(in thousands, unaudited)

Merix Merix

Oregon  San Jose Consolidated
For the Three Months Ended November 26, 2005:
Nt SalES L ottt e $45952 §$7.611 $61,672
Depreciation 8Xpense .. .......virtiit i (3,206) (343) (4,055)
Amortization expense - identifiable intangible assets ............. —_ (75D (827)
Operating income (108S) . .. ..o vv it it it 73 35 (1,533)
Interestincome . ......... ...t 449 — 449
INtErest EXPEMSE . . . v vttt it e e et e e (870) — (1,108)
Other income (eXpense), Net . ........vvernnennnenenn... (123) 11 87
Income (loss) before taxes and minority interests ................ 471) 46 (2,279)
Income tax eXPense ... ......oiiiiiiiii e 2 — 54
Income (loss) before minority interests ........................ 473) 46 (2,333)
Minority interests in net income of consolidated subsidiaries, net of
7. QO -— — 13
Net income (1088} .+ o oo v vt ittt e et et e s $ @73) $ 46 $(1,919)  $(2,346)

For the Three Months Ended November 27, 2004:

................ $43,244 $
................ (3,242)

Netsales ............ .o i i
Depreciation eXpense . ............c.coveu...
Amortization expense - identifiable intangible assets

Operatingincome ...................... P
Interestincome .......................
Interestexpense ............ ...
Other expense, net ....................

Income before taxes and minority interests

Income tax expense . .............c...uan..

Income before minority interests .............

(in thousands, unaudited)

Merix Merix
Oregon  San Jose

Consolidated

$43,244
(3,242)

649
538
(413)

©3)

681

Minority interests in net income of consolidated subsidiaries, net of

- .

NetinCOmME .ottt

631

$ 681
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(in thousands, unaudited)

Merix Merix Merix
Oregon San Jose Asia Consolidated

For the Six Months Ended November 26, 2005:

Nt Sales .. $90,279 $15,071 $ 8,109 $113,459
Depreciation €Xpense . ... .. ..ottt e (6,492) (686) (506) (7,684)
Amortization expense - identifiable intangible assets ............ —_ (1,501) (76) (1,577)
Operating 108S . . ..ottt e (354) (175) (1,641 2,170)
Interestincome . ......... ... it i 1,082 — — 1,082
INterest EXPRISE - o . v oottt e e (1,306) — (238) (1,544)
Other income (€Xpense), Net .. ........oveeeevnrnnnnnnan. (229) 17 25 (187)
Loss before taxes and minority interests . . ..................... (807 (158) (1,854) (2,819)
Incometaxexpense ......... ... 7 — 52 59
Loss before minority interests . . ............. ... iiiiiaan... (814) (158) (1,906) (2,878)
Minority interests in net income of consolidated subsidiaries, net of
LK ot e e e e e — — 13 13
Net oSS .ot e $ (814) $ (158) $(1,919) $ (2,891)

(in thousands, unaudited)

Merix Merix Merix
Oregon  San Jose Asia Consolidated
For the Six Months Ended November 27, 2004:
Netsales ....................... S $85374 § — § — $ 85,374
Depreciation eXpense .. .....veetirri i (6,461) — —_ (6,461)
Amortization expense - identifiable intangible assets ............ — — — —
Operating lo8S . ..ottt e (1,286) — — (1,286)
Interestincome ............. e e 974 —_ _ 974
Interest eXpense ... ... e (832) —_ — © (832)
Other eXpense, Net . . ..o vttt ettt i (148) — —_ (148)
Loss before taxes and minority interests .. ...............ov.... (1,292) — — (1,292)
INCOME taX EXPENSE . . .ot i ettt e 1 — — 1
Loss before minority interests . . ... ... ... i (1,293) — — (1,293)

Minority interests in net income of consolidated subsidiaries, net of
A e e e e — — -— —_

Nt 0SS« vttt et e e e $(1,293) $§ — $ — $ (1,293)




(in thousands, unaudited)

Merix Merix Merix
Oregon HanJose Asia  Consolidated

For the Three Months Ended August 27, 2005:

NEESALES « v e vttt e e e e e $44.327 $7,460 $—  $51,787
Depreciation eXPemnse . . ..o vttt e (3,286) (343) — (3,629)
Amortization expense - identifiable intangible assets . .............. — (751 — (751)
Operating losS . .. ..ttt e a2 1y — (638)

Interest INCOME . ..ottt i i e s 633 — — 633

INterest EXPense ... ..ottt e 437) — — 437

Other income (expense), Net ............cvvvriereennnn... (105) 6 —_ 99
Loss before taxes and minority interests . ........................ (336) (205 — (541)
Incometaxexpense .......... .. .. i 4 — — 4
Loss before minority interests . ... ............ v iiiirininann.. (340) (205 — (545)
Minority interests in net income of consolidated subsidiaries, net of

2 . — — —_— —_

Nt 0SS .+t e $ (340) $ (205) $— $ (545

(in 'housands, unaudited)

Merix Merix Merix
Oregon  S:zn Jose  Asia  Consolidated

For the Three Months Ended August 28, 2004:

Nt SalES . oottt i e e e $42,130 § — $— $42,130
Depreciation SXPenSe . . v v v vttt e (3,219) — — 3,219)
Amortization expense - identifiable intangible assets . .............. — — — —
Operating 1088 . ..ottt (1,935) — — (1,935)

Interest inCOmMe . ... ...c.viitiii it et e 436 — — 436

Interest eXPense . .. .o v vt e 409) — — (409)

Other eXpense, NEL . ... u vttt ittt iiin e inaaans (65) —_ — (65)
Loss before taxes and minority interests . ..............c.cuoun... (1,973) — — (1,973)
INCOME LAX BXPEMSE . o vt st et it e i i e e e n s 1 — — 1
Loss before minority interests ... ...t (1,974) — — (1,974)
Minority interests in net income of consolidated subsidiaries, net of

2 —_ -_— -—_ —_—

Nt 0SS .« .ottt $(1,974) $ — $— $(1,974)
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(in thousands, unaudited)

For the Quarter Ended:
February 25, November 26, August 27,
2006 2005 2005
Capital Expenditures:

Merix Oregon . .....ovir e $ 480 $ 578 $ 1,256
Merix San Jose ...t 561 505 223

MerX ASIa . .ottt 2,080 25 —
Total . ... e $ 3,121 $ 1,108 $ 1,479

(in thousands, unaudited)
For the Quarter Ended:

February 26, November 27, August 28,
2005 2004 2004

Capital Expenditures:

Merix OTegon .. ....vouiiiie ettt $ 1,459 $ 5,890 $ 6,619
Merix SanJose ... ... i e 52 — —
MermiX ASIa . ..ot e —_— — —

Total ...... e $ 1,511 $ 5,890 $ 6,619

(in thousands, unaudited)

For the Nine For the Six For the Three
Months Ended: Months Ended: Months Ended:

February 25, November 26, August 27,

2006 2005 2005
Capital Expenditures:
Merix Oregon ..., $ 2,314 $ 1,834 $ 1,256
Merix San JOSE ..o i it e 1,289 728 223
MeriXx ASia . ..o 2,105 25 —
Total ..................... e $ 5,708 $ 2,587 $ 1,479

(in thousands, unaudited)

For the Nine For the Six For the Three
Months Ended: Months Ended: Months Ended:

February 26, November 27, August 28,
2004

2005 2004
Capital Expenditures:
Merix Oregon ......ooiiiiiir i $13,968 $12,509 $ 6,619
Merix SanJose ......... i 52 — —_
MeriX ASIA + vt e e — — —
Total . ... $14,020 $12,509 $ 6,619

(in thousands, unaudited)
February 25, November 26, August 27,

2006 2005 2008
Accounts Receivables, net:
Merix Oregon . ..........iiviinnniinnnn.. D $46,830 $46,243 $31,883
Merix SanJose ... ... e 4,610 3,716 3,646
METIX ASIA o vttt e 21,620 17,526 —

Total ..o $73,060 $67,485 $35,529




(in thousands, unaudited)
February 26, November 27, August 28,

2005 2004 2004
Accounts Receivables, net:
Merix Oregomn . ... .ottt $ 32,924  $ 28,892  $30,976
Merix SanJose . . ... 3,106 — —
MeETIX ASIA ..ttt i e e — — —
Total .o e $ 36,030 $ 28,892  $30,976

(in thousands, unaudited)

February 25, November 26, August 27,

2006 2005 2005
Inventories, net:
MeriX OregOom . ..o ettt ettt $ 12,562 $ 13,451 $12,568
Merix SanJose . ... o 1,206 1,060 1,059
MeriX ASIA ..ot e 8,857 10,944 —
Total .. e $ 22,621 $ 25455  $13,627

(ir: thousands, unaudited)

February 25, November 26, August 28,
2005 2004 2004

Inventories, net:

MeTiX OT€ZOM . . oo ottt e et ettt e $ 1224¢  $ 10,553  $ 9,524
Merix San Jose . . ... .. 816 — —_
METIX ASIA vttt et e e e e — — —

Total .o e e $ 13,062 $ 10,553 $ 9,524

(in thousands, unaudited)

February 25, November 26, August 27,

2006 2005 2005
Property, Plant and Equipment, net:
METIX OTEEOM L 4 4 4 v vttt e e e et e e e n e e e e $ 74434 © $ 77,171 $80,036
Merix San Jose ...t e 4,732 4,581 4,540
Merix ASIA « vttt e 49,664 48,513 —
Total L. $128,830 $130,265 $84,576

(in thousands, unaudited)
February 26, November 27, August 28,

2005 2004 2004
Property, Plant and Equipment, net:
MeriX Oregon . ... oottt e e $ 86,632 $ 88,735 $88,510
MeriX San Jose . ..ot e 4,422 — —
MeriX ASIA ..o e — — —
Total . o e $ 91,054 $ 88,735 $88,510
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(in thousands, unaudited)
February 25, November 26, August 27,

2006 2005 2005
Goodwill:
MeriX OTEZOM - .. vttt ettt ettt et e $ — $ - 5 -
Merix San JOSe ..ottt 25,551 25,551 25,551
Merix ASia .. ..ot e 57,174 56,779 —
Total .. e $ 82,725 $ 82,330 § 25,551
(in thousands, unaudited)
February 25, November 26, August 27,
2005 2004 2004
Goodwill:
Merix OregOn ... voii ittt ettt e $ — s — 3 —
Merix San Jose ... . i e 25,551 — —
MEriX ASIA . oottt e e e — —_ —
Total et $ 25,551 $ — S —
(in thousands, unaudited)
February 25, November 26, August 27,
2005 2004 2004
Total Assets:
Merix Oregom ..ottt e $165,197 $178,561  $205,795
Menx San Jose . ... 45017 44245 46,353
MErIX ASIA . .. ot e e 164,027 162,908 —
Total .. $374,241 $385,714  $252,148

(in thousands, unaudited)
February 26, November 27, August 28,

2005 2004 2004
Total Assets:
Merix OTEgOm . ..ottt e e e $207,697 $247,182  $248,316
Merix San Jose ... ..o 46,267 —_— —
MerixX ASIA . ..ot — — —_
Total . .o $253,964 $247,182  $248,316

MAJOR CUSTOMERS BY OPERATING SEGMENT:

Major Customers: The Company’s five largest OEM customers, which vary from year to year, comprised 40%,
45% and 55% of the Company’s consolidated net sales during the three months ended February 25,

2006, November 26, 2005 and August 27, 2003, respectively. Net sales to two customers individually
represented 27% and 12% of consolidated net sales during the three months ended August 27, 2005. Net sales to
one customer individually represented 26% and 23% of consolidated net sales during the three months ended

November 26, 2005 and February 25, 2006, respectively. Net sales to these customers primarily related to the
Merix Oregon operating segment.
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First Quarter — August 27, 2005:

The following are our significant end customers by operating segment for the three months ended August 27,
2005:

Merix Oregon — Merix Oregon’s five largest customers during the three months ended August 27, 2005, in
alphabetic order, were Cisco Systems Inc., Juniper Networks Inc., Motorola Inc., Nokia Corporation, and
Nortel Networks Inc. During the three months ended August 27, 2005, Merix Oregon’s net sales to Cisco
Systems and Motorola represented 31% and 14%, respectively, of Merix Oregon’s net sales.

Merix San Jose — Merix San Jose’s five largest customers during the three months ended August 27, 2005,
in alphabetic order, were Medtronic Inc., Naprotek, Inc., Paramit Corporation, Solectron USA Inc. and
TransCore Inc. During the three months ended August 27, 2005, none of Merix Sar: Jose’s customers
represented 10% or more of Merix San Jose’s net sales.

Second Quarter — November 26, 2005:

The following are our significant end customers by operating segment for the three monihs ended November 26,
2005:

Merix Oregon - Merix Oregon’s five largest customers during the three months ended November 26, 2005,
in alphabetic order, were Cisco Systems Inc., Juniper Networks Inc., Motorola Inc., Nokia Corporation, and
Sonus Networks, Inc. During the three months ended November 26, 2005, Merix Oregon’s net sales to
Cisco Systems and Motorola represented 34% and 12%, respectively, of Merix Ore zon’s net sales.

Merix Asia - Merix Asia’s five largest customers during the three months ended November 26, 2005, in
alphabetic order, were Astec Power, Lear Corporation, Robert Bosch Corporation, TRW Automotive, Inc.
and Visteon Corporation. During the three months ended November 26, 2005, Merix Asia’s net sales to
TRW Automotive and Robert Bosch Corporation represented 16% and 11, respectively, of Merix Asia’s net
sales.

Merix San Jose — Merix San Jose's five largest customers during the three months znded November 26,
2005, in alphabetic order, were Hand Held Products, Inc., Maxtor Corporation, Mecitronic Inc., Paramit
Corporation, and Zebra Technologies Corporation. During the three months ended November 26, 2005,
none of Merix San Jose’s customers represented 10% or more of Merix San Jose’s net sales.

Third Quarter — February 25, 2006:

The following are our significant end customers by operating segment for the three months ended February 25,
2006:

Merix Oregon — Merix Oregon’s five largest customers during the three months encled February 25, 2006,
in alphabetic order, were Cisco Systems Inc., Motorola Inc., Nortel Networks Inc., Redback Networks, Inc.
and Silicon Graphics, Inc. During the three months ended February 25, 2006, Merix Oregon’s net sales to
Cisco Systems and Motorola represented 35% and 12%, respectively, of Merix Oregon’s net sales.

Merix Asia — Merix Asia’s five largest customers during the three months ended February 25, 2006, in
alphabetic order, were Astec Power, Lear Corporation, Robert Bosch Corporation, TRW Automotive, Inc.
and Visteon Corporation. During the three months ended February 25, 2006, Merix Asia’s net sales to TRW
.Automotive and Robert Bosch Corporation represented 22% and 11%, respectively, of Merix Asia’s net
sales.

Merix San Jose — Merix San Jose’s five largest customers during the three months ended February 25,
2006, in alphabetic order, were Kimball Electronics Group, Maxtor Corporation, Medtronic Inc., Paramit
Corporation, and Sauer Danfoss Inc. During the three months ended February 25, 2006, none of Merix San
Jose’s customers represented 10% or more of Merix San Jose’s net sales.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, (the “Exchange Act”) refer to the controls and other procedures of a company that are
designed to ensure that the information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or
submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms, and that such information is
accumulated and communicated to management, including the CEO and CFO, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosures. Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
(who also serves as our Chief Financial Officer (CFO)) evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of
our disclosure controls and procedures as of May 27, 2006. Based on that evaluation and the identification of
material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting described in Item 8 on page 42 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, as well as our inability to file this Annual Report on Form 10-K within the statutory time
period, our CEQ, concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective, at the reasonable
assurance level, as of May 27, 2006.

Our CEO (who also serves as our CFO) does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures will prevent
all error and all fraud. Although our disclosure controls were designed to provide reasonable assurance of
achieving their objectives, a control system, no matter how ‘well conceived and operated, can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the system are met. Further, the design of a control
system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered
relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can
provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within Merix have been detected.
These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that
breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the
individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the control.
The design of any system of controls also is based partly on certain assumptions about the likelihood of future
events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential
future conditions.

(b) Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.

Management’s report on internal control over financial reporting appears under Item 8 on page 42 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

(¢) Remediation Steps to Address Material Weaknesses.

Management’s plan for remediation of the material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting
appears under Item 8§ on page 42 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(d) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting.

There have been no changes to our internal control over financial reporting during the most recent quarter that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting.
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.
Entry into a Definitive Material Agreement

The Company entered into an Executive Severance and Noncompetition Agreement and an Indemnity
Agreement, each dated July 31, 2006, with Kelly Lang, who serves as Vice President, Finance. Under the
Executive Severance Agreement, Mr. Lang is eligible to receive a cash payment equal to one year of his annual
base salary and certain other severance benefits upon his termination of employment with the Company for a
reason other than cause, death or disability. Mr. Lang is entitled to additional benefits ugon a termination
following a change of control of the Company. The agreement also includes noncompetition, nonsolicitation, and
confidentiality covenants by Mr. Lang in favor of the Company. Under the Indemnity A.greement, the Company
agrees to indemnify Mr. Lang for any liability he may incur by reason of his serving as an executive officer of
the Company, including liability under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT.

The information required by this item about our executive officers is included in Part I of this report. The
remaining information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement for our 2006 annual meeting
of shareholders, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days subsequent to
May 27, 2006.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement for our 2006 annual meeting of
shareholders, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days subsequent to
May 27, 2006.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement for our 2006 annual meeting of
shareholders, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days subsequent to
May 27, 2006. '

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS.

The information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement for our 2006 annual meeting of
shareholders, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days subsequent to
May 27, 2006. '

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

The information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement for our 2006 annual meeting of
shareholders, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days subsequent to
May 27, 2006.
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PARTIV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements.

MERIX CORPORATION

Page Reference

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting ....................... 42
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ............. ... .. ... ... ...... 44
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of May 27, 2006 and May 28,2005 ........................ 47
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the fiscal years ended May 27, 2006, May 28, 2005
and May 29, 2004 . ... 48
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the fiscal years ended May 27, 2006,
May 28,2005 and May 29,2004 . ... ... i e 49
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended May 27, 2006, May 28, 2005
and May 29, 2004 . . ... e 50
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements .. ............. ittt ieeneennnn 51
Financial Statement Schedules
SCHEDULE 11
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Additions
Balance at Chargedto Charged to Acquired| Balance at
Beginning  Costs and Other through End of
of Period Expenses  Accounts®  Acquisitions Deductions® Period
For the year ended May 27, 2006
Allowance for sales adjustments
and doubtful accounts ........ $ 932 $ 387 $856 $2,404 1,896 $2,683
Obsolescence reserve .......... 1,344 3,385 — — 2,137 2,592
Tax valuation allowance ........ 15,604 — — 2,198 1,284 16,518
For the year ended May 28, 2005
Allowance for sales adjustments
and doubtful accounts ........ $ 926 $ — $546 $ 120 $ 932
Obsolescence reserve .......... 1,337 3,664 — — 3,657 1,344
Tax valuation allowance ........ 19,484 604 — (4,484) 15,604
For the year ended May 29, 2004
Allowance for sales adjustments
and doubtful accounts ........ $ 945 $ — $615 $ — $ 926
Obsolescence reserve . ......... 1,204 2,297 — — 2,164 1,337
Tax valuation allowance ........ 16,574 2,910 — — 19,484

(1) Charged to revenues
(2) Write-offs, net of recoveries

95



Index to Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed with, or incorporated by reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Exhibit No.

Description

3.1

32
4.1

42

10.1

10.2%

1031

10.4%

10.5%

10.6%

10.77

10.87

10.9%

10.101

10.11%

Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amended, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 26, 2001.

Bylaws of the Company, as amended

Form of Amendment No. 1 to Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2002, between
the Company and Mellon Investor Services LLC (formerly Chase Mellon Investor Services
LLC), as Rights Agent, incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on April 2, 2002.

Form of Amendment No. 2 to Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2002, between
the Company and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as Rights Agent, incorporated
by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 2, 2002.

Registration Rights Agreement between the Company and Tektronix, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 28,
1994,

1994 Stock Incentive Plan of the Company, as amended, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1
to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-59672).

Executive Severance Agreement between the Company and Steve Robinson as of December 8,
2004, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on May 18, 2005.

Indemnity Agreement between the Company and Carlene M. Ellis as of May 24, 1994,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended May 28, 1994,

Indemnity Agreement between the Company and Dr. Koichi Nishimura as of May 24, 1994,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended May 28, 1994.

Indemnity Agreement between the Company and Janie S. Brown as of August 11, 1998,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended August 29, 1998.

Executive Severance Agreement between the Company and Janie S. Brown as of October 5, 1998,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended November 28, 1998.

Executive Severance Agreement between the Company and Mark R. Hollinger, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.33 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended August 30, 1997.

Indemnity Agreement between the Company and Mark R. Hollinger as of September 2, 1997,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended August 30, 1997.

Indemnity Agreement between the Company and William C. McCormick as of October 21, 1997,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended November 29, 1997.

Indemnity Agreement between the Company and Robert C. Strandberg as of June 30, 1998,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended May 30, 1998.
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.12¢

10.13%

10.14t

10.15%

10.16

10.17

10.18%

10.197

10.20t

10.21%

10.22¢

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26%

10.27

Indemnity Agreement between the Company and Daniel T. Olson as of October 25, 1999,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended November 27, 1999,

Executive Severance Agreement between the Company and Daniel T. Olson as of December 1,
1999, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended November 27, 1999.

Executive Severance Agreement between the Company and Anaya K. Vardya, dated as of January
18, 2000, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the Company’s Registration Statement
on Form S-3, (Registration No. 333-32616).

Indemnity Agreement between the Company and Anaya K. Vardya as of December 20, 1999,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the Company s Registration Statement on
Form S-3, (Registration No. 333-32616).

Amendment to Registration Rights Agreement between the Company and Tektronix, Inc.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-3, (Registration No. 333-32616).

Lease Agreement between the Company and Opus Northwest, LLC, dated as of August 22, 2000,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended August 26, 2000.

Indemnity Agreement between the Company and Dr. William Lattin dated as of September 28,
2000, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended November 25, 2000.

Indemnity Agreement between the Company and George H. Kerckhove dated as of June 28, 2001,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended May 26, 2001.

2000 Nongqualified Stock Option Plan of the Company, as amended, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.28 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 25,
2002.

Indemnity Agreement between the Company and Donald D. Jobe dated as of December 20, 2001,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended November 24, 2001.

Indemnity Agreement between the Company and Gary R. Lenaghan dated as of October 1, 2001,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended February 23, 2002.

Securities Purchase Agreement dated May 30, 2002, by and between th: Company and SF Capital
Partners Ltd., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Compary’s Registration Statement
on Form S-3, (Registration No. 333-90374).

Convertible Debenture dated May 30, 2002 issued by Merix Corporation to SF Capital Partners
Ltd. in the amount of $25,000,000.00, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3, (Registration No. 333-90374).

Registration Rights Agreement dated May 30, 2002, by and between Merix Corporation and SF
Capital Partners Ltd., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the {Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-3, (Registration No. 333-90374),

Indemnity Agreement between the Company and Kirby A. Dyess dated as of September 24, 2002,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended November 23, 2002.

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of December 9, 2004, incorporated by reference to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended November 27, 2004.
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.28

10.297

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35%

10.36%

1037+

10.38%

10.39¢

10.40%

10.411

10.42%

10.43+

10.44

10.45

Promissory Note dated December 9, 2004, incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended November 27, 2004.

Indemnity Agreement between the Company and Steve Robinson dated as of May 13, 2005,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended May 28, 2005.

Master Sale and Purchase Agreement between the Company and Eastern Pacific Circuits
Holdings Limited dated as of April 14, 2005, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended August 27, 2005.

Supplemental Agreement dated September 29, 2005, relating to the Master Sale and Purchase
Agreement dated as of April 14, 2005, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended August 27, 2005.

Loan and Security Agreement dated September 28, 2005, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended August 27,
2005. \

Credit Agreement dated September 29, 2005, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended August 27, 2005.

Promissory Note dated September 29, 2005, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended August 27, 2005.

Executive Severance and Noncompetition Agreement between the Company and Stephen Going
dated September 21, 2005, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended August 27, 2005.

Indemnity Agreement between the Company and Stephen Going dated September 21, 2005,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the period ended August 27, 2005.

Executive Severance Agreement between the Company and Thomas R. Ingham dated August 22,
2005, incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
August 30, 2005. '

Indemnity Agreement between the Company and Thomas R. Ingham dated August 22, 2005,
incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 30,
200s5.

Employee Stock Bonus Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended August 27, 2005.

Summary of Executive Compensation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended November 26, 2005.

Form of Executive Officer Stock Option Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended February 25, 2006.

Restricted Stock Award Grant Program for Non-Employee Directors under the Merix Corporation
1994 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended February 25, 2006.

Summary of Non-Employee Director Compensation Arrangements, incorporated by reference to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 11, 2006.

Indenture dated May 16, 2006, between Merix Corporation and U.S. Bank National Association,
as Trustee, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K file on May 16, 2006.

Form of 4% Convertible Senior Subordinated Note Due 2013 (included in Section 2.2 of
Exhibit 10.44 to this report).
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.46

10.47

231
311
31.2
321

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of May 16, 2006, between Merix Corporation and
Thomas Weisel Partners LLC, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 16, 2006.

Amendment No. 2 to Loan and Security Agreement among Merix Corporation, Wachovia Capital
Finance Corporation and Bank of America, N.A., dated May 10, 2000, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 16,
2006.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

1 This Exhibit constitutes a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangemerit.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized
on August 23, 2006.

MERIX CORPORATION

By: /s MARK R. HOLLINGER

Mark R. Hollinger
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below on
August 18, 2006 by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title
/s/ MARK R. HOLLINGER Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President (Principal
Mark R. Hollinger Executive Officer)
/s/ CHEE W. CHUNG Director
Chee W. Chung
/s/  KmrBY A. DYESS Director

Kirby A. Dyess

/s/ CARLENE M. ELLIS Director
Carlene M. Ellis

/s/ DoNALD D. JOBE Director
Donald D. Jobe
/s/ GEORGE H. KERCKHOVE ‘ Director

George H. Kerckhove

/s/ DR. WILLIAM W, LATTIN Director
Dr. William W. Lattin

/s/ WiLLiaM C. MCCORMICK Director
William C. McCormick

/s/  ROBERT C. STRANDBERG Director
Robert C. Strandberg
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Corporate Information

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mark R. Hollinger
Chairman CEQ and President
Merix Corporation

Chee W. Chung
Executive Director, President & CEO
Compass Technology Co. Ltd.

Kirby A. Dyess
Principal
Austin Capital Management LLC

Carlene M. Ellis
Retired Vice President
Intel Corporation

Donald D. Jobe
Retired Chief Executive Officer
Isola Laminate Systems USA

George H. Kerckhove
Retired Vice President
American Standard Companies

Dr. William W. Lattin
Retired Executive Vice President
Synopsys, Inc.

William C. McCormick
Retired Chief Executive Officer
Precision Castparts Corp.

Robert C. Strandberg
Owner
Mattern Holdings, Inc.

MANUFACTURING LOCATIONS

NORTH AMERICA

1521 Poplar Lane

Forest Grove, Gregon 97116
503.359.9300

23365 NE Halsey Street
Wood Village, Oregon 97060
503.35%9.9300

355 Turtle Creek Court
San Jose, California 95125
408.280.0422

HONG KONG

2 Chun Yat Street

Tseung Kwan O Industrial Estate
Tseung Kwan O, Kowloon, Hong Kong
852.2357.8111

PEOPLES REPUBLIC OF CHINA
Gu Tang Au Industrial District
Huizhou City

Guangdong Province, China
86.752.2266.111

23Yin Ling Lu

Chen Jiang Town, Huiyang City
Guangdong Province, China
86.752.2617.111

SINGLE-SIDED FACILITIES
138 Hing Yu Industrial District
No. 3-4 Hong Ye Scuth 2 Road
Tangxia Town, Dongguan City
Guangdong Province, China
86.0769.772.4932

Gu Tang Au Industrial District
Huizhou City

Guangdong Province, China
86.0752.238.1757

CORPORATE OFFICES

P.0. Box 3000
Forest Grove, Oregon 97116
503.359.9300

ANNUAL MEETING

October 5, 2006

Merix Ccrporation

1512 Poplar Lane

Forest Grove, Oregon 97116

STOCK LISTING
Nasdaq Nationat Market Symbol: MERX

TRANSFER AGENT

AND RECISTRAR

American Stock Transfer &
Trust Cornpany

59 Maide Lane, Plaza Level
New York, New York 10038
212.936.5100
www.amstock.com
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

CORPORATE ATTORNEYS
Perkins Coie LLP
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